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Directors' Report
The directors present their report together with the financial statements for the period ended 31 December
2013. The attached version of the financial statements incudes additional financial information denominated
in Indian Rupees which does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
Principal activities

The principal activity of the company in the year under review was that of the manufacture of forgings and
general engineering.
Results and dividends

The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £67,708 (6,898,091 Rupees) (2013: loss £1,129,571
115,080,693 Rupees).
No dividends will be distributed by the company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).
Directors

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:
H Luthra
J Young (resigned 31 July 2013)
Z Bhiwandiwala (resigned 19 March 2014)
P G Morgan (appointed 31 July 2013)
Financial instruments

The company’s principal financial instruments comprise an invoice discounting facility, group loans, finance
leases and hire purchase contracts, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Company’s operations. The company has various other financial
instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations. The company
does not enter into derivative transactions.
It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the company’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from the company’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, commodity price risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, and credit risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
Interest rate risk

The company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the company’s
invoice discounting facility, group loans and finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The company’s
policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of variable and fixed rate debt.
Liquidity risk

The company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of group loans, invoice discounting facilities and finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The
company’s policy is to utilise the undrawn proportion of funds on its invoice discounting arrangement for its
cashflow needs. The company finances specific large plant acquisitions via hire purchase contracts or bank
loans secured specifically on the assets being acquired or from group loans.
Foreign currency risk

3
The company is exposed to translation and transaction
foreign exchange risk. Transaction exposures are
mitigated by matching receipts and payments where possible.
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Directors' Report (continued)
Credit risk

The company trades with only recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the company policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit vetting procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
x
x
x
x

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' Report is approved has confirmed
that:
x so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor
is unaware, and
x that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that
information.
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Directors' Report (continued)
Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485
of the Companies Act 2006.
This report was approved by the board on 22 April 2014 and signed on its behalf.

L Seville
Secretary
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Stokes
Group Limited
We have audited the UK statutory financial statements of Stokes Group Limited denominated in GB Pounds.
The attached financial statements contain additional information denominated in Indian Rupees which is
non-statutory and represents a simple conversion of all GB Pound figures using the Mahindra CIE
Automotive Limited period end exchange rate as at 31 December 2013. For clarity the same rate is applied to
both the current and comparative periods.
We have reproduced below the full text of the audit report as included in the UK statutory financial
statements and we can confirm that we agree with the arithmetic accuracy of the Rupee conversion based on
the policy set out above.
We have audited the financial statements of Stokes Group Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013
which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB's website at
www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.
Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
x give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the
company's loss for the year then ended;
x have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
x have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Stokes
Group Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
x adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
x the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
x certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
x we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Martin Ramsey
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Birmingham
Date: 22 April 2014
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Profit and Loss Account
Note

December
2013

March
2013

£

Rupees
'000s

12,759,328

1,299,920

Cost of sales

(11,329,932)

(1,154,293) (15,427,595)

Gross profit

1,429,396

Turnover

1,2

Distribution costs

£

Rupees
'000s

16,817,811

1,713,399

145,627

(1,571,763)

1,390,216

141,635

(183,905)

(18,736)

(236,165)

(24,060)

(1,232,611)
(1,232,611)

(125,578)
(125,578)

(1,698,220)
(134,252)
(1,832,472)

(173,015)
(13,678)
(186,692)

Administrative expenses
Exceptional administrative expenses
Total administrative expenses

9

Other operating income

3

12,750

1,299

17,000

1,732

Operating profit / (loss)

4

25,630

2,611

(661,421)

(67,386)

Net profit on sale of tangible fixed assets

9

37,158

3,786

274,797

27,996

62,788

6,397

(386,624)

(39,389)

Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
before interest
Interest receivable and similar income

7

477,236

48,621

37,096

3,779

Interest payable and similar charges

8

(607,732)

(61,916)

(780,043)

(79,471)

(67,708)

(6,898)

(1,129,571)

(115,081)

Loss on ordinary activities before
taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities

10

Loss for the year

23

(67,708)

(6,898)

(1,129,571)

(115,081)

All of the activities of the Company are classed as continuing.
There were no recognised gains or losses other than the result for the financial year.


The accompanying principal accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial
statements
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Balance Sheet

Note
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

December
2013
£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

11
12
13

3,824,256
2
3,824,258

389,615
389,615

3,718,950
2
3,718,952

378,887
378,887

14
15

2,049,617
1,878,899
7,494
3,936,010

208,815
191,422
763
401,001

1,959,480
2,005,801
5,275
3,970,556

199,632
204,351
537
404,520

16

(4,566,389)

(465,224)

(4,200,719)

(427,969)

Net current liabilities

(630,379)

(64,223)

(230,163)

(23,449)

Total assets less current liabilities

3,193,879

325,392

3,488,789

(355,438)

17

(6,635,048)
(3,441,169)

(675,979)
(350,586)

(6,862,250)
(3,373,461)

(699,126)
(343,688)

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account

22
23
23
23

Equity shareholders’ deficit

24

1,546,531
6,903,196
41,268
(11,932,164)
(3,441,169)

157,561
1,547,731
703,298
6,903,196
4,204
40,068
(1,215,649) (11,864,456)
(350,586) (3,373,461)

157,683
703,298
4,082
(1,208,751)
(343,688)

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year
Net liabilities

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2014 and are signed on
their behalf by:

P G Morgan
Director
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Notes to the financial statements
1

Principal accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards and under the historical cost convention except that they have been modified to include the
revaluation of certain fixed assets.
The financial statements contain additional non-statutory information denominated in Indian Rupees which
represents a simple conversion of all GB Pound figures using the Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited period
end exchange rate as at 31 December 2013. For clarity the same rate is applied to both the current and
comparative periods. The specific rate adopted in these financial statements is 101.88 Rupees to the GB
Pound.
The Company is exempt from preparing consolidated financial statements under the Companies Act 2006
on the grounds that it is itself a wholly owned subsidiary and its results are consolidated in the immediate
parent Company’s financial statements. Therefore, these financial statements present information about
the
Company
as
an
individual
Company
and
not
about
its
group.
Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that Participaciones
Internacionales Autometal Dos, S.L. a subsidiary of the ultimate parent company, CIE Automotive, S.A. will
provide such funds as are necessary to the company for the foreseeable future to meet its financial liabilities
as they fall due.
Cash flow

The company, being a subsidiary undertaking where 90% or more of the voting rights are controlled
within a group whose consolidated financial statements are publicly available, is exempt from the
requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in accordance with FRS 1.
Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the company in respect of goods and services supplied during the
year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts. Turnover is recognised on the delivery of products
to customers.
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write
off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the
following bases:
Improvements to leasehold property
Freehold property
Plant and equipment

Duration of lease
2% on cost
10% on cost

Revaluation of tangible fixed assets

As permitted by the transitional provisions of FRS 15 Tangible Fixed Assets the company has elected not
to adopt a policy of revaluation of tangible fixed assets. The company will retain the book value of land
and buildings, previously revalued at 14 January 2002 and will not update that valuation.
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Notes to the financial statements
Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment.
Leasing and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed assets.
Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
Assets acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful lives. Finance leases are those where
substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the company. Obligations under
such agreements are included in creditors net of the finance charge allocated to future periods. The
finance element of the rental payment is charged to the profit and loss account so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.
Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the
lease term.
Stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate
proportion of fixed and variable overheads
Deferred taxation

Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences between the
recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax computation.
A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at the time the
timing differences are expected to reverse.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the
transaction.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Government grants

Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to the
Profit and loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other grants are credited to
the Profit and loss account as the related expenditure is incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements
Pensions

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents the
amounts payable by the company to the fund in respect of the year.
Financial instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the entity after deducting all of its financial liabilities.
Where the contractual obligations of financial instruments (including share capital) are equivalent to a
similar debt instrument, those financial instruments are classed as financial liabilities. Financial liabilities
are presented as such in the balance sheet. Finance costs and gains or losses relating to financial liabilities
are included in the profit and loss account. Finance costs are calculated so as to produce a constant rate of
return on the outstanding liability.
Where the contractual terms of share capital do not have any terms meeting the definition of a financial
liability then this is classed as an equity instrument. Dividends and distributions relating to equity
instruments are debited directly to equity.
2

Turnover

Turnover and (loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation are attributable to the company's
principal activity.
An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below
December
2013

United Kingdom
Europe
Rest of the World

3

Other operating income

March
2013

£

December
2013
Rupees
‘000s

£

March
2013
Rupees
‘000s

10,057,657
2,297,218
404,453
12,759,328

1,024,674
234,041
41,206
1,299,920

13,484,416
2,662,093
671,302
16,817,811

1,373,792
271,214
68,392
1,713,399

December
2013

March
2013

£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

12,750

1,299

17,000

1,732

Grant income
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4

Operating profit/(loss)

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging/(crediting):
December
2013
£
Depreciation - owned assets
Depreciation – assets held under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts
Auditors remuneration
Auditors' remuneration for non-audit work
Hire of buildings
Plant hire
Grants released
5

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

451,409

45,990

819,931

83,535

90,161
26,000
3,250
55,978
73,549
(12,750)

9,186
3,195
331
5,703
7,493
(1,299)

168,425
28,000
3,250
99,611
81,243
(17,000)

17,159
2,853
331
10,148
8,277
(1,732)

March
2013

£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

2,699,048
248,407
56,881
3,004,336

274,979
25,308
5,795
306,082

3,570,728
328,928
68,498
3,968,154

363,786
33,511
6,979
404,276

Staff costs

Staff costs, including directors, during the year were as follows:
December
2013

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

The above excludes redundancy costs of £nil (Rupees nil) for the period ended 31 December 2013 (31 March
2013: £134,252 Rupees 13.7m) that have been shown separately as exceptional items.
The average number of employees of the Company during the year was:
December
2013
Number
19
140
159

Office and management
Manufacturing

13

March
2013
Number
21
138
159
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Notes to the financial statements
6

Directors' remuneration

Remuneration in respect of all of the directors was as follows:
December
2013

Emoluments
Pension contributions to money purchase
pension schemes

March
2013

£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

75,715

7,714

112,389

11,450

5,290
81,005

539
8,253

108,556
220,945

11,060
22,510

During the year 1 director (2013 : 1 director) participated in defined contribution schemes.
7

Interest receivable

December
2013
£
477,236
477,236

Interest receivable from Group companies
Gain on foreign exchange

8

48,621
48,621

March
2013
£
37,096
37,096

March
2013
Rupees
'000s
3,779
3,779

Interest payable

December
2013
£
45,644
2,781
559,307
607,732

On invoice discounting facility
Hire purchase interest
On Group loans
Loss on foreign exchange

9

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

December
2013
Rupees
'000s
4,650
283
56,982
61,916

March
2013
£
42,502
25,342
348,512
363,687
780,043

March
2013
Rupees
'000s
4,330
2,582
35,506
37,052
79,471

Exceptional items

December
2013

Redundancy and restructuring
Profit on disposal of fixed assets

14

March
2013

£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

(37,158)

(3,710)

134,252
(274,797)

13,678
(27,996)
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Taxation

Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2013 – lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 24% (2013: 24%). The differences are explained below:
December
2013
£

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
£

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

(67,708)

(6,898)

(1,129,571)

115,081

Loss on ordinary activities at the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 23% (2013 – 24%)

(15,573)

(1,587)

(271,097)

(27,619)

62,064

6,323

641

65

125,273
(1,339)
(251)

12,763
(136)
(26)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Utilisation of losses
Other short term timing differences
Capital allowances for the year in excess of
depreciation
Fixed asset differences
Unrelieved tax losses and other deductions
arising in the period
Non-taxable income
Total current tax

(98,485)
10,439

(10,034)
1,064

151,494
-

15,434
-

43,847
(2,933)
-

4,467
(299)
-

(4,080)
-

(416)
-

Unrelieved tax losses of £9,791,473 (Rupees 997.5m) (March 2013: £9,383,644) (Rupees 956.0m) remain
available to offset against future taxable profits.
The company has an un-provided deferred tax asset of £2,354,846 (Rupees 239.9m) (March 2013:
£2,647,070) (Rupees 269.7m), which has not been recognised due to uncertainty over the timing of its
reversal.
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Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill
Rupees
£
‘000s

Cost
At 1 April 2013 and 31 December 2013
Amortisation
At 1 April 2013 and 31 December 2013

44,908

440,792

44,908

-

-

================== ==================

Net book value
At 1 April 2013 and 31 December 2013

12

440,792

================== ==================

================== ==================

Tangible fixed assets

Improvements to
leasehold
property
£

Plant and
equipment
£

Total
£

512,684
512,684

575,486
155,800
731,286

5,446,825
522,791
(137,041)
5,832,575

6,534,995
678,591
(137,041)
7,076,545

Depreciation
At 1 April 2013
Provided in the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2013

104,685
7,650
112,335

249,527
37,736
287,263

2,461,833
497,057
(106,199)
2,852,691

2,816,045
542,443
(106,199)
3,252,289

Net book value
At 31 December 2013

400,349

444,023

2,979,884

3,824,256

At 31 March 2013

407,999

325,959

2,984,992

3,718,950

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2013
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2013

Freehold
Property
£
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Freehold
property
Rupees
‘000s

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2013
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2013

Improvements to
leasehold Plant and
property equipment
Rupees
Rupees
‘000s
‘000s

Total
Rupees
‘000s

52,232
52,232

58,631
15,873
74,503

554,923
53,262
(13,962)
594,223

665,785
69,135
(13,962)
720,958

10,665
779
11,445

25,422
3,845
29,266

250,812
50,640
(10,820)
290,632

286,899
55,264
(10,820)
331,343

At 31 December 2013

40,788

45,237

303,591

389,615

At 31 March 2013

41,567

33,209

304,111

378,887

Depreciation
At 1 April 2013
Provided in the year
Eliminated on disposals
At 31 December 2013
Net book value

The net book value of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included above, are as
follows:
Plant and
machinery
£

Plant and
machinery
Rupees
‘000s

At 31 December 2013

484,426

49,353

At 31 March 2013

710,111

72,346

Net book value

The property was valued at £480,000 (Rupees 49.9m) on 13 August 2010, using the basis of existing use value
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and
Valuation Manual. The transitional provisions of FRS 15 are being followed and the valuation of freehold
property has not been updated since the date of a previous revaluation which was 14 January 2002.
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Fixed asset investments

Investments in group
undertakings
Rupees
'000s
£

Cost
At 1 April 2013 and 31 December 2013

2

-

Net book value
At 31 December 2013

2

-

At 31 March 2013

2

-

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the company:
Subsidiaries
Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited
Stokes Forgings Limited

14

Nature of business
Dormant
Dormant

Stocks

Raw materials
Tooling and spares
Work in progress and finished goods

Raw materials
Tooling and spares
Work in progress and finished goods

18

December
2013
£

March
2013
£

392,566
1,015,626
641,425
2,049,617

322,798
867,959
768,723
1,959,480

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

39,995
103,472
65,348
208,815

32,887
88,428
78,317
199,632

Stokes Group Limited
Financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements
15

Debtors

Trade debtors
Prepayments

Trade debtors
Prepayments

16

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Invoice discounting facility
Hire purchase contracts
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Social security and other taxes
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred government grants

Invoice discounting facility
Hire purchase contracts
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Social security and other taxes
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred government grants

December
2013
£
1,735,394
143,505
1,878,899

March
2013
£
1,997,001
8,800
2,005,801

December
2013
Rupees
'000s
176,802
14,620
191,422

March
2013
Rupees
'000s
203,454
898
204,351

December
2013
£
1,280,428
34,702
2,121,846
399,523
148,220
301,618
263,052
17,000
4,566,389

March
2013
£
813,488
240,448
2,153,840
364,209
225,115
15,020
371,599
17,000
4,200,719

December
2013
Rupees
'000s
130,450
3,535
216,174
40,703
15,101
30,729
26,800
1,732
465,224

March
2013
Rupees
'000s
82,878
24,497
219,433
37,106
22,935
1,530
37,859
1,732
427,969

The invoice discounting facility is secured by way of a debenture over all of the company's assets.
The amounts due under finance leases and hire19purchase contracts are secured on the assets to which they
relate.

Stokes Group Limited
Financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements
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Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Hire purchase contracts
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Deferred government grants

Hire purchase contracts
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Deferred government grants

December
2013
£

March
2013
£

6,582,632
52,416
6,635,048

2,302
6,794,782
65,166
6,862,250

December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

670,639
5,340
675,979

235
692,252
6,639
699,126

The invoice discounting facility is secured by way of a debenture over all of the company's assets.
The amounts due under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are secured on the assets to which they
relate.
Interest is charged on loans from group undertakings at 4.5% per annum.
Creditors include amounts not wholly repayable within 5 years as follows:
£

Rupees
‘000s

At 31 December 2013

6,582,632

670,639

At 31 March 2013

6,794,782

692,252

Repayable other than by instalments

20
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Notes to the financial statements
18

Invoice discounting and hire purchase contracts

An analysis of the maturity of the invoice discounting facility and finance leases and hire purchase contracts is
given below:
December 2013
£

Amounts falling due within one year or on
demand
Invoice discounting facility
Finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

March 2013 December 2013
Rupees
'000s
£

March 2013
Rupees
'000s

1,280,428

813,488

130,450

82,878

34,702
1,315,130

240,448
1,053,936

3,535
133,985

24,497
107,375

2,302

-

235

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amounts falling due between one and two years
Finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

-

Amounts falling due between two and five years
Bank loans
Finance leases and hire purchase
contracts
19

-

Capital commitments

The directors have confirmed that there is a capital commitments of £171,500 (Rupees 17.5m) as at 31
December 2013 (£nil at 31 March 2013).
20

Pension commitments

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the company in independently administered funds. The pension cost charge represents
contributions paid by the company to the funds and these amounted to £56,881 (Rupees 5.8m) for the period
ended 31 December 2013 (31 March 2013: £68,498) (Rupees 6.9m). The outstanding pension contribution at
31 December 2013 was £9,506 (Rupees 1.0m) (31 March 2013: £6,719 (Rupees 0.7m).

21
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Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2013 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

Expiring:
Within one year
Between two and five years
After more than five years

Expiring:
Within one year
Between two and five years
After more than five years

22

-

-

104,039
104,039

101,304
101,304

Land and buildings
December
March
2013
2013
Rupees
Rupees
'000s
'000s
10,599
10,599

10,321
10,321

Other
December
2013
£

March
2013
£

21,807
22,252
44,059

17,643
20,802
38,445

Other
December
2013
Rupees
'000s

March
2013
Rupees
'000s

2,222
2,267
4,489

1,797
2,119
3,916

Share capital

Allotted, issued and fully paid
15,465,310 Ordinary shares of 10p
each (2013: 15,477,310)
23

Land and buildings
December
March
2013
2013
£
£

31 December 2013
Rupees
£
'000s
1,546,531

157,561

31 March 2013
£
1,547,731

Rupees
'000s
157,683

Reserves

At 31 March 2013
Loss for the year
Cancellation - purchase of own shares
At 31 December 2013

Share
premium
account
£

Capital
redemption
reserve
£

6,903,196
22
6,903,196

40,068
1,200
41,268

Profit and
loss account
£
(11,864,456)
(67,708)
(11,932,164)

Totals
£
(4,921,192)
(67,708)
1,200
(4,987,700)

Stokes Group Limited
Financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements
Share
Premium
account
Rupees
'000s
At 31 March 2013
Loss for the year
Cancellation - purchase of own shares
At 31 December 2013
24

703,298
703,298

4,082
122
4,204

Profit and
loss account
Rupees
'000s

Totals
Rupees
'000s

(1,208,751)
(6,898)
(1,215,649)

(501,371)
(6,898)
122
508,147

December
2013
£

March
2013
£

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Loss for the financial year
Opening equity shareholders' deficit
Closing equity shareholders' deficit

Loss for the financial year
Opening equity shareholders' deficit
Closing equity shareholders' deficit
25

Capital
redemption
reserve
Rupees
'000s

(67,708)

(1,129,571)

(3,373,461)
(3,441,169)

(2,243,890)
(3,373,461)

2014
Rupees
'000s

2013
Rupees
'000s

(6,898)

(115,081)

(343,688)
(350,586)

(228,607)
(343,688)

Contingent liabilities

The directors have confirmed that there are no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2013 or 31 March
2013.
26

Related party transaction

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in Financial Reporting Standard No 8 "Related party
transactions" and has not disclosed transactions with group undertakings.
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Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The ultimate parent company is CIE Automotive S.A., a company registered in Spain. The immediate parent
company is Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly Mahindra Forgings Limited), a subsidiary of CIE
Automotive S.A.
Copies of Stokes Group Limited's accounts are available from the Secretary, 34 Cochrane Road, Holly Hall,
Dudley, West Midlands, DY2 0SE.

24

Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited
Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Company information
Company registration number

04289934

Registered office

Cochrane Road
Holly Hall
Dudley
West Midlands
DY2 0SE

Directors

H Luthra
J Young (resigned 31 July 2013)
P G Morgan

Secretary

L Seville

25

Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited
Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Directors' report
The directors present their report and the unaudited financial statements of the company for the period
ended 31 December 2013.
Principal activities

The company was dormant throughout the year. There has been no income or expenditure and no
change has arisen in the position of the company.
Directors

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:
H Luthra
J Young (resigned 31 July 2013)
P G Morgan (appointed 31 July 2013)
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

L Seville
Secretary
Date: 22 April 2014

Company No. 04289934
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Balance sheet

Note
Current assets
Debtors: due after more than one year

December
2013

2

£

December
2013
Rupees
'000

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

2

Net assets

2

Capital and reserves
Called-up equity share capital

3

Shareholders' funds

4

2

-

-

March
2013
£

March
2013
Rupees
'000

2
2

2

-

-

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

2

-

2

-

For the period ended 31 December 2013 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section
480 of the Companies Act 2006.
Members have not required the company to obtain an audit in accordance with section 476 of the
Companies Act 2006.
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the directors on 22 April 2014 and are signed on their behalf
by:

P G Morgan
Director
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Dudley Limitedstatements
Notes
toForgings
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Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements

1

Principal accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies of the company have remained
unchanged from the previous year.
2

1

2

Principal accounting policies
Debtors

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention. The
principal accounting
policies of March
the company March
have remained
December
December
unchanged from the previous year.
2013
2013
2013
2013
Rupees
Rupees
Debtors
£
£
'000
'000

Amounts owed by group undertakings

2
2 March
-March
December
December
2013============================================== 2013============================================== 2013==============================================2013
Rupees
Rupees
£
£
'000
'000

==============================================

All debtors are due after more than one year.
3

ShareAmounts
capitalowed by group undertakings

2
==============================================

Authorised share capital:
All debtors are due after more than one year.
December
2013
3
Share capital
Authorised share capital:
1,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each

==============================================

December
2013
Rupees
'000

£

2
==============================================

March
2013

==============================================

March
2013
Rupees
'000

£

December
December
1,000
82
1,000 March
99March
2013============================================== 2013============================================== 2013==============================================2013
Rupees
Rupees
£
£
'000
'000

==============================================

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
1,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of £1 each
Ordinary shares of £1 each

Ordinary shares of £1 each

December
1,0002013
====No
==========================================
2

£

82

==============================================

2

==============================================

March
2013
1,000
No
=====
=========================================
2

==============================================

99

2

==============================================

December 2013
£
DecemberNo
2013
Rupees
No 2
'000 2
==============================================
==============================================

£

==============================================

==============================================

March 2013
No
£
March 2013
Rupees
No 2
'000 2
==============================================
==============================================

2
2
==============================================
==============================================
==============================================
December 2013
March 2013
Rupees
Rupees
No
No
'000
'000

==============================================

2

==============================================

28

-

==============================================

2

==============================================

-

==============================================

Stokes Forgings Dudley Limited
Financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
4

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders' funds

December
2013
£
Equity dividends paid
Opening shareholders' funds

2

-

March
2013
£
2

March
2013
Rupees
'000
-

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

2

Closing shareholders' funds
5

December
2013
Rupees
'000

-

2

-

Ultimate parent company

The directors consider that the company's immediate parent undertaking is Stokes Group Limited due to
its 100% shareholding in the company.
The ultimate parent company is CIE Automotive S.A., a company registered in Spain. The immediate
parent company of Stokes Group Limited is Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly Mahindra
Forgings Limited), a subsidiary of CIE Automotive Limited.
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Stokes Forgings Limited
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Company information
Company registration number

353854

Registered office

Cochrane Road
Holly Hall
Dudley
West Midlands
DY2 0SE

Directors

H Luthra
J Young (resigned 31 July 2013)
P G Morgan

Secretary

L Seville
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Stokes Forgings Limited
Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Directors' report
The directors present their report and the unaudited financial statements of the company for the period
ended 31 December 2013.
Principal activities

The company was dormant throughout the year. There has been no income or expenditure and no
change has arisen in the position of the company.
Directors

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:
H Luthra
P G Morgan (appointed 31 July 2013)
J Young (resigned 31 July 2013)

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

L Seville
Director
Date: 22 April 2014
Company No. 353854
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Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Balance sheet
December December
2013
2013
Rupees
‘000
Total assets less current liabilities

-

Capital and reserves
Called-up equity share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

2
3
3

Shareholders' funds

3

-

March
2013

-

March
2013
Rupees
‘000
-

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

60,000
6,000
(66,000)

6,113
611
(6,724)

60,000
6,000
(66,000)

6,113
611
(6,724)

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

==============================================

-

-

-

-

For the period ended 31 December 2013 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section
480 of the Companies Act 2006.
Members have not required the company to obtain an audit in accordance with section 476 of the
Companies Act 2006.
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the directors on 22 April 2014 and are signed on their behalf
by

P G Morgan
Director
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Stokes Forgings Limited
Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

1

Principal accounting policies

Notes
tostatements
the financial
statements
The financial
have been prepared
in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies of the company have remained
unchanged from the previous year.

1
2

2

Principal accounting policies
Share capital

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
Authorised
share capital:
under
the historical
cost convention. The principal accounting policies of the company have remained
December
December
March
March
unchanged from the previous year.
2013
2013
2013
2013
Rupees
Rupees
Share capital
£
£
'000
'000
Authorised
share shares
capital:of £1 each
75,000 Ordinary
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
75,000
Ordinary
shares
of £1 each
Ordinary
shares of
£1 each
Allotted,
Allotted, called
called up
up and
and fully
fully paid:
paid:

Ordinary shares of £1 each
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
3

75,000
60,000

==============================================
==============================================

75,000
March
2013

7,641
March
2013
March 2013 Rupees
£
'000£
No

==============================================

7,641
60,000

75,000
60,000

==============================================
==============================================

==============================================
==============================================

December 2013
2013
December
No
Rupees£
No
60,000

==============================================

60,000

==============================================

'000
60,000

==============================================

6,113

==============================================

==============================================

7,641
60,000

==============================================
==============================================

March 2013
2013
March
No
£
Rupees
No
'000
60,000
60,000

==============================================

60,000

==============================================

==============================================

6,113

==============================================

December 2013
March 2013
Rupees
Rupees
No
No
'000
'000
Share premium Profit and loss
Total shareaccount
account
funds
Share capital
60,000
6,113
60,000 holders’ 6,113
======================
========================
===============================
===============
=====================================£
=========
==========================================£
====
£
£

Reconciliation of shareholders' funds and movement on reserves

Ordinary shares of £1 each
3

75,000
7,641
==============================================
==============================================
December
December
2013
2013
Rupees
December 2013
£
'000
No
£

Reconciliation
of 31
shareholders'
funds and movement on reserves
At 1 April 2013 and
December

2013

At 1 April 2013 and 31 December
2013
At 1 April 2013 and 31 December
2013

At 1 April 2013 and 31 December
2013

60,000

6,000
(66,000)
============================================
=======================================
==============================================
Share ==premium
Profit=======and
loss
Total
shareaccount
account holders’ funds
Share capital
£ Share premium
£ Profit and loss
£
£
Total shareShare capital
account
account holders’ funds
Rupees
Rupees
Rupees
Rupees
60,000
6,000
(66,000)
'000
'000
'000
'000==============================================
==============================================
==============================================
==============================================
==============================================

6,113
Share capital
==============================================
Rupees
'000

6,113

==============================================
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Share premium Profit and loss
Total share611
(6,724) holders’ fundsaccount
account
==============================================
==============================================
==============================================
Rupees
Rupees
Rupees
'000
'000
'000

611

==============================================

(6,724)

==============================================

-

==============================================

Stokes Forgings Limited
Unaudited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
4

Ultimate parent company

The directors consider that the company's immediate parent undertaking is Stokes Group Limited due to
its 100% shareholding in the company.
The ultimate parent company is CIE Automotive S.A., a company registered in Spain. The immediate
parent company of Stokes Group Limited is Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly Mahindra
Forgings Limited), a subsidiary of CIE Automotive Limited.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 APRIL 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013
The directors present the audited financial statements of Mahindra Forgings International Ltd (the
“Company”) for the period ended 31 December 2013.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment holding company.
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL YEAR END
The Company changed its reporting date from 31 March to 31 December and these financial statements run
from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013.
The comparatives figures are for the period from 01 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and consequently, the
comparative figures for the financial statements are not comparable.
RESULTS
The results for the period are shown in the statement of comprehensive income and related notes.
DIRECTORS
The present membership of the board is as follows :
1. Couldiplall Basanta Lala
2. Sanjay Vasant Joglekar
3. Mohammad Akshar Maherally
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period, which present fairly
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, Grant Thornton, have indicated their willingness to continue in office until the next Annual
Meeting.
CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY UNDER SECTION 166 (d) OF THE MAURITIUS
COMPANIES ACT 2001
We certify, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that we have filed with the Registrar of Companies all such
returns as are required of Mahindra Forgings International Ltd under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001
during the period ended 31 December 2013.

______________________________________
For International Financial Services Limited
Secretary
Registered Office:
IFS Court
TwentyEight
Cybercity
Ebene
Republic of Mauritius
Date: 14th February, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mahindra Forgings International Ltd,
the “Company”, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the exemption from
consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding a Category 1 Global
Business Licence and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001,
and for such internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 7 to 28 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
modified by the exemption from consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for
companies holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence and the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd)
TO THE MEMBER OF MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:


we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as
auditors;



we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and



in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears
from our examination of those records.

Other Matters
This report is made solely to the member of the Company as a body in accordance with Section
205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s member as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Grant Thornton
Chartered Accountants

K RAMCHURUN, FCCA
Licensed by FRC

Date: 14th February, 2014

Ebene, Republic of Mauritius
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 APRIL 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013

Notes

INCOME
Interest on loan
Upfront fees

Period
from

01 April to

01 April to

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

Year ended
31
March
2013
EUR

Year ended
31
March
2013
INR

63,544
4,500

5,422,845
384,030

299,244
4,500

25,537,483
384,030

68,044

5,806,875

303,744

25,921,513

652,204
152,740
13,088
4,500
3,086
1,547
895
124

55,659,089
13,034,832
1,116,930
384,030
263,359
132,021
76,379
10,582

844,276
438,444
18,665
4,500
3,021
1,510
748
221

828,184

70,677,222

1,311,385

72,050,514
37,416,811
1,592,871
384,030
257,812
128,863
63,834
18,860
111,913,595

-760,140
-

-64,870,347
-

-1,007,641
-

-85,992,082
-

-760,140

-64,870,347

-1,007,641

-85,992,082

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME:
Items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Items that may be classified
subsequently to profit or loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR, NET OF
TAX

-

-

-

-

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR

-760,140

-64,870,347

-1,007,641

-85,992,082

EXPENDITURE
Interest expense
Interest on borrowings
Professional fees
Upfront fees
Audit fees
Licence fees
Bank charges
Foreign exchange loss

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Tax expense
LOSS FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR

9

Period
from

12
13 (ii)
14

7

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current
Investments in subsidiary
Non-current assets
Current
Other receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

31-Mar-13

31-Mar-13

EUR

INR

EUR

INR

116,373,486
116,373,486

9,931,313,295
9,931,313,295

109,373,486
109,373,486

9,333,933,295
9,333,933,295

9

35,924
8,207
44,131

3,065,754
700,385
3,766,139

38,847
35,257
74,104

3,315,203
3,008,832
6,324,035

116,417,617

9,935,079,434

109,447,590

9,340,257,330

79,910,001

6,819,519,485

72,910,001

6,222,139,485

9,000,000

768,060,000

9,000,000

768,060,000

5,302,064

452,478,142

5,302,064

452,478,142

-10,115,580
84,096,485

(863,263,597)
7,176,794,030

-9,355,440
77,856,625

-798,393,250
6,644,284,377

29,639,025
2,179,617
31,818,642

2,529,394,394
186,008,515
2,715,402,909

28,986,821
2,089,992
31,076,813

2,473,735,304
178,359,917
2,652,095,221

495,879
6,611
502,490

42,318,313
564,182
42,882,495

506,308
7,844
514,152

43,208,324
669,408
43,877,732

32,321,132

2,758,285,404

31,590,965

2,695,972,953

116,417,617

9,935,079,434

109,447,590

9,340,257,330

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated capital
10
Non-cumulative redeemable preference
11
shares
Deemed capital contribution by fellow
12 (ii)
subsidiary
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Current
Borrowings
Accruals
Current liabilities

31-Dec-13

8

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Non-current
Convertible debentures
Borrowings
Non-current liabilities

31-Dec-13

12 (i)
13

Approved by the Board of Directors on 14th February, 2014 and signed on its behalf by:
DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Noncumulative
redeemable
preference
shares
EUR

Stated capital
EUR
Balance at 01 April 2012

Accumulated
losses

Deemed capital
contribution by
fellow subsidiary

EUR

EUR

Total
EUR

72,910,001

9,000,000

-8,347,799

5,302,064

78,864,266

Loss for the year

-

-

-1,007,641

-

-1,007,641

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-1,007,641

-

-1,007,641

72,910,001

9,000,000

-9,355,440

5,302,064

77,856,625

72,910,001

9,000,000

-9,355,440

5,302,064

77,856,625

Issue of shares during
the period (Note 10)

7,000,000

-

-

-

7,000,000

Transactions with the
shareholder

Total comprehensive loss
for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013
Balance at 01 April
2013

7,000,000

-

-

-

7,000,000

Loss for the period

-

-

-760,140

-

-760,140

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-760,140

-

-760,140

79,910,001

9,000,000

-10,115,580

5,302,064

84,096,485

Total
comprehensive
loss for the period
Balance at 31
December 2013

Noncumulative
redeemable
preference
shares
INR

Stated capital
INR
Balance at 01 April 2012

Accumulated
losses

Deemed capital
contribution by
fellow subsidiary

INR

INR

Total
INR

6,222,139,485

768,060,000

-712,401,167

452,478,142

6,730,276,460

Loss for the year

-

-

-85,992,082

-

-85,992,082

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

-

-

-85,992,082

-

-85,992,082

Total comprehensive loss
for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013

6,222,139,485

768,060,000

-798,393,249

452,478,142

6,644,284,378

6,222,139,485

768,060,000

-798,393,249

452,478,142

6,644,284,378

Issue of shares during
the period (Note 10)

597,380,000

-

-

-

597,380,000

Transactions with the
shareholder

Balance at 01 April
2013

597,380,000

-

-

-

597,380,000

Loss for the period

-

-

-64,870,348

-

-64,870,348

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

-

-

Total

comprehensive
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Operating activities
Loss before tax

Period from
01 April to
31-Dec-13
EUR

Period from
01 April to
31-Dec-13
INR

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
EUR

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
INR

-760,140

-64,870,347

-1,007,641

-85,992,083

152,740
-63,544
652,204
-18,740

13,034,832
-5,422,845
55,659,089
-1,599,271

438,444
-299,244
844,276
-24,165

37,416,811
-25,537,483
72,050,514
-2,062,241

Changes in working capital:
Increase in prepayments
(Decrease)/increase in accruals
Net cash used in operations

-1,441
-1,233
-21,414

-122,975
-105,224
-1,827,470

-29
767
-23,427

-2474.86
65455.78
-1,999,260

Interest paid
Interest received
Net cash used in operating activities

-63,115
63,544
-20,985

-5,386,234
5,422,845
-1,790,859

-319,487
299,244
-43,670

-27,265,021
25,537,483
-3,726,798

Investing activities
Investment in subsidiary
Net cash used in investing activities

-7,000,000 -597,380,000
-7,000,000 -597,380,000

-

-

Financing activities
Loan received
Loan given to related parties
Repayment of loan given to related parties
Repayment of loan taken from related parties
Proceeds from issue of shares
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

2,000,000 170,680,000
-2,000,000 -170,680,000
2,004,364 171,052,424
-2,010,429 -171,570,011
7,000,000 597,380,000
6,993,935 596,862,413

3,000,000
-3,037,181
3,000,000
-3,015,825
-53,006

256,020,000
-259,193,027
256,020,000
-257,370,506
-4,523,532

Adjustments for:
Interest on borrowings
Interest income
Interest expense

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period /
year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period /
year
Cash and cash equivalents made up of:
Cash at bank

-27,050

-2,308,447

-96,676

-8,250,330
0

35,257

3,008,832

131,933

11,259,162

8,207

700,385

35,257

3,008,832

8,207

700,385

35,257

3,008,832

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)
Mahindra Forgings International Ltd, the “Company” was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius
under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 on 18 August 2006 as a private company with liability limited
by shares and holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission.
The Company's registered office is IFS Court, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene, Republic of Mauritius.
The principal purpose of the Company is to hold investments in Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, an
unquoted company in the Federal Republic of Germany.
The Company changed its reporting date from 31 March to 31 December and these financial statements
run from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013.The comparatives figures are for the period from 01 April
2012 to 31 March 2013 and consequently, the comparative figures for the financial statements are not
comparable. The current figures are for the period ended 31 December 2013.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as modified by the exemption from consolidation in the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding Category 1 Global Business Licence (“IFRS as
modified by Mauritius Companies Act 2001”).
India Rupee (INR) amounts are included solely for convenience, These translations should not be
construed as representations that the EUR amounts actually represent. or have been or could be converted
into INR. As the amounts shown in INR are for convenience only, the rate of 1EUR = 85.34 INR has been
used for the purpose of presentation of the INR amounts in the accompanying financial statements for the
two years ended 31st December, 2013 and 31st March 2013.

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

2.1

New and revised standards that are effective for the annual period beginning on 01 April 2013
In the current period, the following new and revised Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) are mandatory for the first time for the financial period beginning on 01 April
2013:
IAS 27
IAS 28
IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12
IFRS 13
IFRS 7
IFRS 10, 11
and 12
IFRS 1
IAS 1
IAS 19
IFRIC 20
Various

Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7)
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance – Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
Government Loans - Amendments to IFRS
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1)
Employee Benefits (Revised 2011)
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Annual improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

The directors have assessed the impact of these revised standards, interpretations and amendments and
concluded that only IAS 1, Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1)
has an impact on the disclosure of these financial statements.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Contd)

2.2

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Company
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations to existing Standards have been published by the IASB but not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Company.
Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements.
Information on new Standards, Amendments and Interpretations is provided below.
IFRS 9
IAS 39
IAS 36
IFRS 10, 12
and IAS 27
IAS 32
IAS 19
IFRIC 21
Various

Financial Instruments
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to IAS 39)
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36)
Investment Entities (Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)
Levies
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2013 Cycle

3.

SUMMARY OFACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Overall considerations
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement
bases summarised below.

3.2

Revenue
Interest income is recognised on the accrual basis using the effective interest method, unless collectibility
is in doubt.

3.3

Expenses
All expenses are accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income on the accrual basis.

3.4

Taxation
Tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income comprises of deferred tax and current
tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise of those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current
tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements. Calculation of
current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting date.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OFACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.4

Taxation (Contd)
Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

3.5

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instruments and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described
below.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial
liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company’s financial assets are classified into the
category of loans and receivables upon initial recognition.
All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date. Financial assets are
impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and other receivables fall into this
category of financial instruments.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities consist of convertible debentures, borrowings and accruals.
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
All interest-related charges are reported in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OFACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.5

Financial instruments (Contd)
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.6

Consolidated financial statements
The financial statements are separate financial statements which contain information about Mahindra
Forgings International Ltd as an individual company and do not contain consolidated financial information
as the parent of a group.
The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission
and has taken advantage of the exemption given in Section 12 of Part 1 of the Fourteenth Schedule of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as it is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly known as Mahindra Forgings
Limited), a company incorporated in the Republic of India.

3.7

Investment in subsidiary
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Company controls another entity.
Investment in subsidiary is initially shown at cost. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of the investment is assessed. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the
difference is charged to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

3.8

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

3.9

Equity
Stated capital represents the value of shares that have been issued.
Accumulated losses include all current period and prior years’ results as disclosed in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OFACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.9

Equity (Contd)
The non-cumulative redeemable preference shares would be redeemed at the option of the Company and
have been classified as equity (Note 11).
“Deemed capital contribution from the fellow subsidiary” represents the difference in transaction price and
fair value of convertible debentures on initial recognition and which has been recorded as a credit to equity
(Note 12).

3.10

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense in the statement of comprehensive income.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

3.11

Related parties
Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating policy decisions.

3.12

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in EUR which is also the functional and presentation currency of
the Company.
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using
the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OFACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.13

Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When an indication of impairment
loss exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down to its recoverable amount.

3.14

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the
current period.

4.

SIGNIFICANT MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Significant management judgement
The following is significant management judgement in applying the accounting policies of the Company
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.
Determination of functional currency
The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions and
exchange differences arising therefrom are dependent on the functional currency selected. The directors
have considered those factors and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the
EUR.
Estimation uncertainty
In assessing impairment of investments in subsidiary, management estimates the recoverable amount based
on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK
Risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to its financial instruments. The main types of risks
are market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK (Contd)
Risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
The Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities by category are summarised below.
31-Dec-13
EUR
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Current
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current
Convertible debentures
Borrowings
Current
Borrowings
Accruals

Total financial liabilities

32,817
8,207
41,024

31-Dec-13
INR

31-Mar-13
EUR

31-Mar-13
INR

2,800,603
700,385
3,500,988

37,181
35,257
72,438

3,173,027
3,008,832
6,181,859

29,639,025 2,529,394,394
2,179,617
186,008,515
31,818,642 2,715,402,909

28,986,821
2,089,992
31,076,813

2,473,735,304
178,359,917
2,652,095,221

42,318,314
564,183
42,882,497

506,308
7,844
514,152

43,208,325
669,407
43,877,732

32,321,132 2,758,285,406

31,590,965

2,695,972,953

495,879
6,611
502,490

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate measures and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and in the Company’s activities.
The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets and derivatives for speculative
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below.
5.1

Market risk analysis
The Company is not exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments. Market risk is
specifically comprised of currency risk and interest rate risk, which result from both its operating and
investing activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK (Contd)
Risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

5.1

Market risk analysis (Contd)
Foreign currency sensitivity
The Company is not exposed to any currency risk as most of its financial assets and financial liabilities
are denominated in the Euro, the functional currency of the Company.
The currency profile of its financial assets and liabilities is as follows:
Financial
assets
31-Dec-13
EUR
Long term exposure
Euro (EUR)
Short term exposure
Euro (EUR)
United States Dollar (USD)
Total exposure

Financial
assets
31-Dec-13
INR

Financial
liabilities
31-Dec-13
EUR

Financial
liabilities
31-Dec-13
INR

Financial
assets
31-Mar-13
EUR

Financial
assets
31-Mar-13
INR

Financial
liabilities
31-Mar-13
EUR

-

- 31,818,642 2,715,402,908

-

-

41,024
41,024

3,500,988
495,879
42,318,314
6,611
564,183
3,500,988 32,321,132 2,758,285,405

72,438
72,438

6,181,859
6,181,859

Financial
liabilities
31-Mar-13
INR

31,076,813 2,652,095,221.00

506,308
7,844
31,590,965

43,208,325.00
669,407.00
2,695,972,953

Interest rate sensitivity
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company is not subject to interest rate fluctuations on its financial assets and financial
liabilitiesand is consequently not exposed to any interest rate risk.
5.2

Credit risk analysis
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets
recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

ASSETS
Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

32,817
8,207
41,024

2,800,603
700,386
3,500,989
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31-Mar
2013
EUR

37,181
35,257
72,438

31-Mar
2013
INR

3,173,027
3,008,832
6,181,859

MAHINDRA FORGINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
5.
5.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK (Contd)
Risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
Credit risk analysis (Contd)

(i)

The Company has provided short term advances to related parties during the period under review and the
directors believe that these receivables are not exposed to any credit risk.

(ii)

The credit risk for the bank balance is considered negligible, since the counterparty is a reputable bank
with high quality external credit ratings.

(iii)

The carrying amounts disclosed above are the Company’s maximum possible credit risk exposure in
relation to these instruments.

(iv)

None of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

5.3

Liquidity risk analysis
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might be unable to meet its obligations.
The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring all its cash inflows and outflows. The
Company maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements and the financial support of its
related companies is sought where necessary.
At 31 December 2013, the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which are
summarised below:
More than 1
More than 1 year
Within 1 year
Within 1 year
year
EUR
INR
EUR
INR

Convertible debentures
Loan payable to a related
party
Accruals
Total

-

-

29,639,025

2,529,394,394

495,879

42,318,314

2,179,617

186,008,515

6,611
502,490

564,183
42,882,497

31,818,642

2,715,402,909

This compares to the maturity of the Company’s financial liabilities in the previous reporting period as
follows:
Within 1
Within 1
More than 1 year More than 1 year
Year
Year
EUR
INR
EUR
INR

Convertible debentures
Loan payable to a related
party
Accruals
Total
5.4

-

-

28,986,821

2,473,735,304

506,308

43,208,325

2,089,992

178,359,917

7,844
514,152

669,407
43,877,732

31,076,813

2,652,095,221

Financial instruments measured at fair value
The Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at their carrying amounts, which
approximates their fair values.
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6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns to its shareholder.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to its member, buy back shares or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of total borrowings (including convertible debentures) less cash
and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the statement of financial position.
The details of the gearing ratio are disclosed as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: cash at bank
Net debt
Total equity
Total capital
Gearing ratio (%)

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

32,314,521
-8,207

2,757,721,222
-700,385

31,583,121
-35,257

2,695,303,546
-3,008,832

32,306,314
84,096,485
116,402,799

2,757,020,837
7,176,794,030
9,933,814,867

31,547,864
77,856,625
109,404,489

2,692,294,714
6,644,284,378
9,336,579,091

28.84%

27.75%

The Company has maintained a gearing ratio of around 28% for the year ended 31 March 2013 and period
ended 31 December 2013 and the directors consider that this level of gearing is reasonable taking into
account the Company’s business activities.
7.
(i)

TAXATION
Income tax
Under current laws and regulations, the Company is liable to pay income tax on its net income at a rate of
15%. The Company is, however, entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of actual foreign tax
suffered and 80% of Mauritius tax payable in respect of its foreign source income, thus reducing its
maximum effective tax rate to 3%. Capital gains from sales of units and securities are exempt from income
tax in the Republic of Mauritius
The Company has received tax residence certificates from the Mauritian authorities that it is a tax resident
of the Republic of Mauritius, which is renewable on an annual basis subject to meeting certain conditions
and which is eligible to obtain benefits under the double tax treaties between the Republic of Mauritius and
the Republic of India and the Republic of Mauritius and the Federal Republic of Germany.
The Company had a tax loss of EUR 107,936 INR 9,211,258 for the period from 01 April 2013 to 31
December 2013.
The foregoing is based on current interpretation and practice and is subject to any future changes in tax
laws and in the double tax treaties between the Republic of India and the Republic of Mauritius and the
Federal Republic of Germany and the Republic of Mauritius.
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7.
(ii)

TAXATION (Contd)
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at the rate of 3%.
At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the tax losses carried forward as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available in the foreseeable future.

(iii)

Income tax reconciliation
The income tax on the Company’s loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the effective tax rate of the Company as follows:
Period from
01 April to
31-Dec
2013
EUR

Loss before tax
Tax calculated at the rate of 3%
Exempt income not subject to tax
Deferred tax asset not recognised
Tax charge

8.

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
EUR

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
INR

-760,140

-64,870,348

-1,007,641

-85,992,083

-22,804
19,566
3,238
-

-1,946,093
1,669,762
276,331
-

-30,229
25,328
4,901
-

-2,579,743
2,161,492
418,251
-

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

(i)

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

Unquoted investment at cost:
109,373,486
7,000,000
116,373,486

Opening balance
Addition during the period/year
Closing balance

(ii)

Period from
01 April to
31-Dec
2013
INR

9,333,933,295
597,380,000
9,931,313,295

109,373,486
109,373,486

9,333,933,295
9,333,933,295

Details pertaining to the unquoted investments are as follows:

Name of investee company

Mahindra Forgings Europe AG
Mahindra Forgings Europe AG

Type of

Equity
Non-equity

Cost
31-Dec-13

Cost
31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

100,373,486
16,000,000
116,373,486

8,565,873,295
1,365,440,000
9,931,313,295

Cost
31-Mar
2013
EUR
100,373,486
9,000,000
109,373,486

Cost
31-Mar
2013
INR
8,565,873,295
7,680,600
8,573,553,895

The Company has 100% shareholding of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft (“Mahindra
Forgings Europe AG”), a company incorporated in the Federal Republic of Germany.
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8.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY (Contd)

(iii)

The Company has indirect holdings through Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as follows:
Cost
31-Dec
2013
EUR

Cost
31-Dec
2013
INR

Cost
31-Mar
2013
EUR

Cost
31-Mar
2013
INR

Country of
incorporation

%
holding

Federal Republic
of Germany

100%

32,644,996

2,785,923,959

32,644,996

2,785,923,959

Gesenkschmiede Schneider GmbH

Federal Republic
of Germany

100%

553,705

47,253,185

553,705

47,253,185

FalkenrothUmformtechnik GmbH

Federal Republic
of Germany

100%

1,029,305

87,840,889

1,029,305

87,840,889

Federal Republic
of Germany

100%

5,193,619

443,223,445

5,193,619

443,223,445

Name of subsidiaries

Shoneweiss & CO

JECO – Jellinghaus GmbH

(iv)

The directors have assessed the recoverable amount of the investments and confirmed that the carrying
amount of these investments have not suffered any impairment in value at the reporting date.

(v)

The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued by the Financial Services
Commission and has therefore taken advantage of Section 12 of Part 1 of the Fourteenth Schedule of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 which dispenses it from presenting consolidated financial statements as
it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a company incorporated in the Republic of India.

(vi)

The non-equity investment in Mahindra Forgings Europe AG represents funds invested as “capital
reserves” and settlement is not likely within one year. Repayment would be agreed between the Company
and its investee company.

9.

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables (Note 9 (i))
Prepayments

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

32,817
3,107
35,924

2,800,603
265,151
3,065,754
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31-Mar
2013
EUR

37,181
1,666
38,847

31-Mar
2013
INR

3,173,027
142,176
3,315,203
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9.
(i)

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (Contd)
The movement in other receivables is as follows:
31-Dec-13
EUR

Opening balance
Movement during the period/year:
Advances to related parties
Loan given to the subsidiary (Note 9 (iii))
Interest income for the period/year
Repayment during the period/year
Repayment from Related Party
Closing balance

31-Dec-13
INR

31-Mar-13
EUR

31-Mar-13
INR

37,181

3,173,027

-

-

2,000,000
63,544
-2,063,544
-4,364

170,680,000
5,422,845
-176,102,845
-372,424

37,181
3,000,000
299,244
-3,299,244

3,173,027
256,020,000
25,537,483
-281,557,483

32,817

2,800,603

37,181

3,173,027

(ii)

Advances to related parties comprise of EUR 22,867 INR 1,951,470 (31 March 2013: EUR 22,867,
INR 1,951,470) and EUR 9,950 INR 849,133 (31 March 2013: EUR 14,314, INR 1,221,557) provided
to Mahindra Gears Global Limited and Mahindra Gears International Ltd respectively, both
incorporated and regulated under the laws of the Republic of Mauritius, during the period. Such
advances are interest free, unsecured and receivable on demand.

(iii)

The loan given to Mahindra Forgings Europe AG was unsecured, carried interest at 13.30% per annum
and has been fully repaid during the period ended 31 December 2013.

10.

STATED CAPITAL
31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

Issued and paid Ordinary shares of
EUR1 each:
Opening balance
Additions during the period/year
Closing balance

72,910,001
7,000,000
79,910,001

6,222,139,485
597,380,000
6,819,519,485

72,910,001
72,910,001

6,222,139,485
6,222,139,485

In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, the main rights and obligations attached to the
ordinary shares are as follows:





confer to its holder the rights to attend and exercise one vote at meetings of members generally
and class meetings of the ordinary shares;



have a right to receive any dividend or distribution; and

be entitled, on a winding up, to share in the assets of the Company available for distribution.
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11.

NON-CUMULATIVE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

9,000,000 (6.5%) non-cumulative
redeemable preference shares of EUR 1
each

9,000,000

768,060,000

9,000,000

768,060,000

The non-cumulative redeemable preference shares would be redeemed after 7 years with an option for
pre-payment at the option of the Company and have therefore been accounted for as equity instead of a
financial liability, in accordance with IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation.
As approved by the Board of the Company, the main rights and obligations attached to the noncumulative redeemable preference shares are as follows:


confer to its holder the rights to attend and exercise one vote at meetings of members generally
and class meetings of the preference shares;



have a right of redemption with an option for pre-payment at the option of the Company; and



be entitled, on a winding up, to a return of the amount paid-up on the preference shares in
priority of the ordinary shares and shall also be entitled to share in the assets of the Company
available for distribution.

12.

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND DEEMED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

(i)

Convertible debentures

Opening balance
Interest expense
Closing balance

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

28,986,821 2,473,735,304
652,204
55,659,089
29,639,025 2,529,394,394

28,142,545
844,276
28,986,821
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12.
(ii)

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND DEEMED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY (Contd)
Deemed capital contribution by fellow subsidiary

Balance at start and at end

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

5,302,064 452,478,142

31-Mar
2013
EUR

5,302,064

31-Mar
2013
INR

452,478,142

(iii)

The Company issued 32,624,923 (zero percent) convertible debentures of EUR1 each to Mahindra
Forgings Global Limited, a fellow subsidiary, and which are repayable within 7 years from the date of
issue and subject to some trigger events. In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, the convertible debentures met the criteria of a financial liability and have been
classified as non-current liabilities in these financial statements. The convertible debentures have been
measured at fair value at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Since the
Company issued convertible debentures to its fellow subsidiary, Mahindra Forgings Global Limited, the
difference between the transaction price and fair value on initial recognition has been recorded as a credit
to equity and classified as “Deemed capital contribution from the fellow subsidiary”.

13.

BORROWINGS
31-Dec
2013
EUR

(i)

(ii)

31-Dec
2013
INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

Non-current
Loans from related party (Note 13 (vi))

2,179,617

186,008,515

2,089,992

178,359,917

Current
Loans from related party (Note 13 (v))

495,879

42,318,314

506,308

43,208,325

2,675,496

228,326,829

2,596,300

221,568,242

Total
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13.

BORROWINGS (Contd)

(iii)

The movement during the period / year was as follows:
31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

Opening balance

2,596,300

221,568,242

2,493,168

212,766,957

Loan received during the period / year
Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (Note 13 (iv))

2,000,000

170,680,000

3,000,000

256,020,000

Loan repaid during the period / year
Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (Note 13 (iv))

-2,000,000

-170,680,000

-3,000,000

-256,020,000

Mahindra Forgings Global Limited (Note 13 (v))

-10,429

-890,011

-15,825

-1,350,506

Interest element for the period / year
Interest expense

152,740

13,034,832

438,444

37,416,811

Interest payment

-63,115

-5,386,234

-319,487

-27,265,021

2,675,496

228,326,829

2,596,300

221,568,242

Closing balance

(iv)

The loan from Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly known as Mahindra Forgings Limited) is
unsecured, carries interest at 13.25% per annum and has been fully repaid during the period under
review.

(v)

The loan from Mahindra Forgings Global Limited is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(vi)

The loan from Mahindra Forgings Europe AG is unsecured, repayable after more than one year and
carries interest at 6.85% per annum.

14.

PROFESSIONAL FEES

31-Dec
2013
EUR
Administration fees and
disbursements
Directors’ fees
Fees for tax filings
Secretarial fees

31-Dec
2013
INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

9,736

830,870

13,927

1,188,530

1,470
1,000
882
13,088

125,450
85,340
75,270
1,116,930

2,202
1,189
1,347
18,665

187,919
101,469
114,953
1,592,871
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15.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the period from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013, the Company had transactions with related
parties. The nature, volume of transactions and the balances with the related parties are as follows:

Name of
companies

Nature of
relationship

Nature of
transactions

Mahindra
Forgings Europe
AG (Note 15 (i))

Subsidiary
company

Loan

Mahindra
Forgings Global
Limited (Note 15
(ii))

Common
shareholder

Mahindra
Forgings Global
Limited (Note 15
(iii))

Volume
of
transactions
EUR

Debit/(credit)
balances at 31
December
2013
EUR

Debit/
(credit)
balances at
31 March 2013
EUR

89,625

(2,179,617)

(2,089,992)

Loan

10,429

(495,879)

(506,308)

Common
shareholder

Convertible
debentures

652,204

(29,639,025)

(28,986,821)

Mahindra Gears
Global Limited
(Note 15 (iv))

Common
shareholder

Other
receivables

-

Mahindra Gears
International
Limited (Note 15
(iv))

Common
shareholder

Other
receivables

International
Financial
Services Limited

Administrator,
Secretary and
Mauritian Tax
Agent

International
Financial
Services Limited

Administrator,
Secretary and
Mauritian
Tax Agent

22,867

22,867

(4,364)

9,950

14,314

Professional
fees

3,352

3,107

1,171

Professional
fees

9,736

(3,525)

(4,824)
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Name of companies

Nature of
relationship

Nature of
transactions

Volume
of
transactions
INR

Debit/(credit)
balances at 31
December 2013

Debit/(credit)

INR

balances at
31- Mar-13
INR

Mahindra Forgings Europe AG (Note Subsidiary company
15 (i))

Loan

7,648,598

-186,008,515

-178,359,917

Mahindra Forgings Global Limited
(Note 15 (ii))

Common shareholder

Loan

890,011

-42,318,314

-43,208,325

Mahindra Forgings Global Limited
(Note 15 (iii))

Common shareholder

Convertible
debentures

Mahindra Gears Global Limited (Note Common shareholder
15 (iv))

Other
receivables

Mahindra Gears International Limited Common shareholder
(Note 15 (iv))

Other
receivables

International Financial Services
Limited

Administrator,
Secretary and
Mauritian Tax Agent

International Financial Services
Limited

Administrator,
Secretary and
Mauritian Tax Agent

55,659,089

-2,529,394,394 -2,473,735,304

1,951,470

1,951,470

-372,424

849,133

1,221,557

Professional
fees

286,060

265,151

99,933

Professional
fees

830,870

-300,824

-411,680
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15.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(i)

The loan from Mahindra Forgings Europe AG is unsecured, repayable after more than one year and
carries interest at 6.85% per annum.

(ii)

The loan from Mahindra Forgings Global Limited is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(iii)

The convertible debentures issued to Mahindra Forgings Global Limited are repayable within 7 years
and subject to some trigger events.

(iv)

The receivables from Mahindra Gears Global Limited and Mahindra Gears International Ltd are
unsecured, interest free and receivable on demand.

16.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has no litigation claims outstanding, pending or threatened against it, which could have a
material adverse effect on its financial position or results as at 31 December 2013.

17.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no events after the reporting date which requires disclosure or adjustment to the
31 December 2013 financial statements.

18.

HOLDING COMPANIES
The directors regard Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly known as Mahindra Forgings Limited),
a quoted company incorporated in the Republic of India, as the Company’s immediate holding company
and CIE Automotive S.A., a company incorporated in the Republic of Spain, as the Company’s ultimate
holding company.
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- For translation purposes only Group Management Report to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the short business year 2013 (1 April 2013 – 31 December 2013)
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen

A.

Business of the group and basic conditions

I.

Business of the group

Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft is the parent company of the German sub-group, which
itself

is

majority-owned

by

CIE

Automotive

S.A.,

Bilbao/Spain.

Mahindra

Forgings

Europe

Aktiengesellschaft is the sole shareholder of Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter
Haftung, Aalen, Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Gevelsberg, Falkenroth
Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, and SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen.
As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao,
Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the majority of shares of the Indian parent
company Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited ( formally known as Mahindra Forgings Ltd.), Mumbai, India.
In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of the new group
shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short
business year of nine months has been established for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December
2013. The entry into the commercial register Hagen was made under HRB 501382 on 12 December
2013. The previous year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are
therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The business development of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft directly depends on the
business development and business transactions of its subsidiaries. These companies produce drop
forge parts from all usual steel grades. The forging capacity of the subsidiaries amounts to about 130,000
tons per year. A large part of the goods is processed mechanically. For the mechanical processing the
subsidiaries use the latest machining centres, parting and centring units as well as CNC lathes. Being
strategic partners of the automotive industry, the subsidiaries focus on the production and development of
pre-finished components. In order to be an efficient partner for the automotive industry, which is reliable
even in complex situations with high requirements, the group companies develop further continuously.
Therefore, the high level of employee qualification, modern technical equipment and a flat organisation
are the basis for success.
This group of companies employed 1,103 employees at average during the financial year and generated
sales of about EUR 184 million, Rs. 15,715 million during the reporting period.
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II.

Basic conditions and course of business during the financial year 2013

In 2013 the global economy developed only moderately with 3% compared to 2.5% in the previous year.
Besides the debt crisis in the EU, this development was caused by the development in some emerging
markets where growth slowed down significantly. As in previous years, the growth of the global economy
was primarily caused by the economies in Asia, although the growth continued to decrease perceptibly
especially in China and India. Other emerging markets in Asia, Latin America and Eastern Europe did
show positive developments, but these were even significantly weaker in 2013 than in 2012. While the EU
did not have any growth compared to 2012, the export-oriented (western) industrial nations of the Euro
zone depending on industrial goods generated a negative growth of -0.3% in 2013. In Japan there was an
economic growth of 1.2% compared to 2% in the previous year. In the US as well – being still the largest
industrial nation – consumption and investment behaviour developed only weakly in 2013 with only 1.85%
(PY 2.2%). The altogether weak development of economic growth in Europe was influenced by the
developments in Germany (+0.5%) and France. (+0.3%). The recession in most other European
economies stabilized during 2013 and therefore positive impulses can be expected here for 2014.
In the global markets for cars and especially those for commercial vehicles, which are important for
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, the demand showed an almost stable development during
the past year.
The German and European market for commercial vehicles, which is important for Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft, gave a very incoherent impression. While demand decreased in the markets in
Germany, France, Spain and Italy, the demand for medium-heavy and heavy commercial vehicles in the
markets UK, Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary showed a positive growth development. The
development of the major German and European OEM, which altogether showed a slight decline in 2013,
did not influence the development of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft.
Due to the company’s customer structure and the market development of the German OEMs of the
transport industry and commercial vehicle market, the business of Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft developed accordingly. Group sales of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft
for the financial year amount to EUR 184,144 k Rs. 15,714,825k (PY EUR 234,425 k, Rs. 20,005,863k).
The material costs rate decreased to 56.6% (PY 57.4%) correspondingly to the commodity prices
development (steel and alloy prices). The unadjusted margin for the short business year (9 months)
amounts to EUR 80,689 k, Rs. 6,885,999k compared to EUR 98,003 k, Rs. 8,363,576k in the previous
year’s period of 12 months. This financial year was burdened by the delayed run-up of demands for Euro
6 trucks, whereas the demand in low-margin parts for previous models was higher than expected.
In part due to the stagnating development of demand and the weak results of operation of the company,
the flexibility and cost reduction measures were continued and intensified. As measured by the total
performance, the personnel expenditure quota improved to 27.3% (PY 29.6%). However, it has to be
considered that personnel expenditure was burdened by unexpected personnel measures with an amount
of EUR 456 k, Rs. 38,915k. The financial year 2013 of the group Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft ended altogether
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with a net loss of EUR 13,60, Rs. 1,161,263k 7 k (PY EUR -20.469 k, Rs. -1,746,824k). This deficit
includes special items of the financial year in the amount of about EUR -3.6 million, Rs. – 307 mn.
For the material processes relevant for the annual financial statements a systematic process description
is available for the subsidiaries of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft. It describes for all
material transactions in the companies which controlling processes are established for the important
areas purchases and sales.
The board of directors of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft and important executives of the
individual subsidiaries permanently discuss the current development. There is a monthly board meeting
which is – besides the board of directors of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft – attended by
all managing directors of the subsidiaries as well as the sales managers, purchases managers and
technical development managers. This ensures that risks are identified at an early stage and are handled
on management level.
Research and development
We work continuously on the further development of production procedures as well as on other
rationalising measures that improve quality. Various projects are in the process of being developed and
are in start of serial production. Special attention is paid to the optimization of charge weights.
From the large number of projects, which the group accompanies and initiates for our customers, several
subjects stand out that present the development expertise as well as the practical implementation into
highly complex forgings.
These projects include new front axle beams for two OEMs and the optimization of complex components
for another OEM, which are already in full-scale production. For several components, the calculation,
design and optimization were made with Pro/MECHANICA by applying the finite element approach. As a
result, components in lightweight design could be presented. The use of the finite element approach
helped us increase our development expertise significantly.
By using the simulation software Forge 2011, the whole forging process is now simulated for each
component before the tools are produced. This substantially reduces the number of optimization cycles
and sample forgings in the production. For the design of the forging parts and tools, we have been
consistently using the CAD program Creo 2.0 since summer 2013, which replaces the previous program
Pro/ENGINEER. The CAD program Euklid used up to now will no longer be used. This helps to further
increase construction efficiency. In order to administrate the CAD data with all development stages, we
implemented the product data management system PDM-Essentials.
In order to verify raw parts and tools, we purchased a Faro laser scanner. With this we are able to
consistently determine the size accuracy of raw parts and tools based on the CAD geometry and
additionally analyse the wear and tear of tools. Furthermore, for the first time we used a computer-based
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and led to production quality improvements.

III. Summarized assessment by management
In summary it can be stated that the course of business stabilized, but the position and the operating
result of the company are still highly negative. By considering the special items burdening the result,
however, it can be clearly seen that the implemented improvement projects show first results. For the
short business year 2013, the group discloses a negative annual result in the amount of EUR 13,607 k,
Rs. 1,161,263k (PY EUR -20,469 k, Rs. -1,746,824k).
B.

Position of the company

I.

Results of operation

During the financial year from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 a net loss amounting to EUR 13,607 k,
Rs. 1,161,263k was realized (PY EUR -20,469 k, Rs. -1,746,844k). Sales amount to EUR 184,144 k, Rs.
15,714,825k during the financial year (9 months) compared to EUR 234,425 k, Rs. 20,005,863k in the
previous year. This change was caused by – besides the adjustment of the financial year – the conditions
of our business operations described in II. This is also the main cause for the development of the
following key figures.
Due to the sales development, group gross profit amounts to EUR 80,689 k, Rs. 6885,999k (9 months)
compared to EUR 98,003 k, Rs. 8,363,576k in the previous year (12 months) with altogether decreased
initial material prices. Calculated on a basis of 9 months, this corresponds to an increase of about EUR 7
million, Rs. 597 mn (about 9%) compared to the previous year. The material costs rate decreased from
57.4% to 56.6%.
Group Personnel expenditure during the short business year (9 months) amounts to EUR 50,725 k, Rs.
4,328,889k compared to EUR 67,973 k, Rs. 5,800,827k in the previous year (12 months). Compared to a
9 months period of the previous year, personnel expenditure remained more or less constant. The group
personnel expenditure quota amounts to 27.3% in the current reporting period compared to 29.6% in the
previous year. In May 2013 the company agreed a social plan with the workers council of Schöneweiss &
Co GmbH to terminate a certain number of employment contracts with employees. Based on this
agreement the company recorded a provision for expected compensation payments on the basis of the
proposed social compensation plan as well as payments to the personnel transfer company for the
execution of qualification measures for the employees who agreed to being replaced to the transfer
company. As per 31 December 2013 the provision amounts to EUR 636 k, Rs. 54,276k. The total
expenses for these personnel restructuring measures amount to EUR 1,027 k, Rs. 87,687k during the
reporting period and are disclosed as extraordinary expenses.
The group average number of employees (section 267 HGB) reduced from 1,131 employees to 1,103
employees when comparing the reporting periods. This is contrasted by a change of temporary workers
employed as per 31 December 2013 from 170 in the previous year to 202.
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Other operating expenses including other taxes amount to EUR 28,806 k, Rs. 2,458,295k during the
reporting period (9 months) compared to EUR 32,316k, Rs. 2,757,860k in the previous year (12 months).
The part of other operating expenses including other taxes related to the total performance amounted to
15.5% during the current financial year after 14.0% in the previous year. This increase of group other
operating expenses compared to the previous period is mainly based on – with more or less constant
maintenance expenses of about 5% of the total performance – the increase of costs for temporary
workers (5.1% of the total performance compared to 3.7% in the previous year) as well as an increase of
shipping costs including extra tours of about 1.4% of the total performance compared to 1.0% in the
previous year. Other differences within other operating expenses were within the usual range.
Amortizations/depreciations for the group amount to EUR 9,289 k, Rs. 792,773k (9 months) compared to
EUR 12,136k, Rs. 1,035,686k (12 months) and correspond to 5.0% of the total performance (PY 5.3%).
The interest income for the group of EUR -5,040 k, Rs. 430,154k (9 months) (PY EUR -5,951 k, Rs.
507,804k (12 months)) is still as high and amounts to 2.7% of the total performance (PY 2.6%). Interest
income of the financial year is further burdened by non-recurring additional financing charges during the
implementation of a group-wide factoring, recurring factoring charges as well as costs from the
replacement of a financing bank.
The tax charge of the financial year results on the one hand from the actual income taxes amounting to
EUR 16 k, Rs. 1,313k (PY EUR 196 k, Rs. 16,725k) as well as deferred taxes amounting to EUR 187 k,
Rs. 15,966k (PY EUR 1,265 k, Rs. 107,969k).
II.

Net assets

Fixed assets decreased by EUR 3,229 k, Rs. 275,462k compared to the previous year. This development
is caused by investment activity having been mostly focused on preserving the capacity due to the
business situation of the group. This has resulted in group investments (EUR 6,095 k, Rs. 520,147k)
being again lower than depreciations in the financial year (EUR 9,290 k, Rs. 792,773k). The proportion of
investments (fixed assets / balance sheet total), however, increased as per the balance sheet date from
45.3% to 48.3%. This development is caused by the balance sheet total being reduced due to lower trade
receivables, which resulted from the factoring implemented during the financial year.
The group inventory turnover (sales revenues / inventory) changed during the reporting year to 5.68
compared to 6.79 in the previous year. This key figure is hardly comparable due to the non-comparable
periods of the financial years. With EUR 32,445 k, Rs. 2,768,848k compared to the previous year (EUR
34,483 k, Rs. 2,942,787k), inventories are on a similar level.
Group Trade receivables were reduced as per the balance sheet date from EUR 30,357 k, Rs. 2,590,658k
to EUR 4,228 k, Rs. 360,791k. As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility
limited to EUR 20 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the receivables by
ICICI provides financing to the company and is without recourse and the client’s bad debt risk remains at
ICICI. By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the companies of the MFE group sold receivables to
ICICI amounting to EUR 19.7 million, Rs. 1,681 mn. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has
varied. The difference to receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with ICICI.
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As per 31 December 2013 the company sold receivables to ICICI amounting to EUR 14.2 million, Rs.
1,212 million. The difference between the balance of receivables sold as per the balance sheet date and
the amount paid out by ICICI is disclosed as liabilities due to banks.
The increase of other assets of the group compared to the previous year (EUR 6,593 k, Rs. 562,669k; PY
EUR 2,005 k, Rs. 171,147k) is based on paid advances for major repairs planned for the upcoming
financial year on the one hand (EUR 1,982 k, Rs. 169,144k; PY 0 k) as well as credits at ICICI within the
scope of the factoring agreement on the other hand (EUR 2,496 k, rs. 213,009k; PY 0 k).
Deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 6,334 k, Rs, 540,542k (PY EUR 6,521 k, Rs. 556,508k) mainly
refer to deferred taxes with EUR 5,461 k, Rs. 466,042k (PY EUR 5,445 k, Rs. 464,676k) which were
made for tax losses carried forward and with EUR 977 k, Rs. 83,377k (PY EUR 895 k, Rs. 76,379k ) to
deferred taxes on the difference of the pension provision recognised according to commercial law and tax
law.
Pension provisions were calculated on the basis of the average market rate of the past seven years
issued by Deutsche Bundesbank, with an assumed test duration of 15 years, and amount to EUR 18,881
k, Rs. 1,611,295k as per the balance sheet date compared to EUR 18,744 k, Rs. 1,599,608k in the
previous year.
Other provisions of the group altogether increased slightly by EUR 829 k, Rs. 70,747k compared to the
previous year. This change is mainly based on the increased provisions for compensation payments
(EUR 523 k, Rs. 44,633k, PY EUR 14 k, Rs. 1195k ), provisions for invoices not yet received (EUR 2,642
k, Rs. 225468k; PY EUR 1,488 k, Rs. 126946k) as well as provisions for implemented personnel
restructuring measures at Schöneweiss & CO GmbH (EUR 639 k, Rs. 54,532k; PY EUR 0 k), all included
as per the balance sheet date. This development is contrasted by significantly reduced provisions for
holiday and Christmas bonuses (EUR 123 k, Rs. 10,497k; PY EUR 1,322 k, Rs. 112,819k) as well as
remaining leave (EUR 1,172 k, Rs. 100,018k; PY EUR 1,741 k, Rs. 148,577k).
The slight increase of trade liabilities of the group from EUR 16,142 k, Rs. 1,377,563 to EUR 17,997 k,
Rs. 1,535,851k arose, as the payment conditions with suppliers are normal again and regular payment
targets can again be used.
Regarding liabilities due to affiliated companies as per 31 December 2013, EUR 10,636 k, Rs. 907,653k
refer to a group financing by CIE group.
Due to the group annual deficit of EUR 13,607 k, Rs. 1,161,263k, the balance sheet loss for the group
altogether increased from EUR 11,957 k, Rs. 1,020,426k to EUR 25,564 k, Rs. 2,181,689k. In order to
maintain equity, the sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings International Ltd., Mauritius, paid EUR 7,000 k,
Rs. 597,380k into the capital reserve by shareholders’ resolution dated 3 October 2013.
The balance sheet total decreased due to the factoring, which led to a significant reduction of the working
capital. Furthermore, the decrease of investments in fixed assets, which resulted from the lower production
activity, caused a further reduction of the balance sheet total. Altogether, these developments resulted in
the equity ratio (share of equity in the balance sheet total) being reduced from 5.4% as per 31 March 2013
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to 0.94% as per 31 December 2013. In order to avoid an over-indebtedness of the company, there is a
qualified subordination for an intra-group loan of EUR 10,000 k, Rs. 853,400k granted to the company.

III.

Financial position

The financial management shall ensure the company’s solvency in the long term. It is a further objective
of the financial management to ensure that the company is able to meet its due liabilities on schedule.
Liquid assets increased in the financial year from EUR 4,872 k, Rs. 415,776k as per 31 March 2013 to
EUR 16,241 k, Rs. 1,386,007k as per 31 December 2013. Business operations result in an operating
cash inflow of EUR 20,448 k, Rs. 1,745,032k (PY cash outflow of EUR 3,765 k, Rs. 321,305k). The
change is mainly due to the reduction of trade receivables made in the course of the factoring. The cash
outflow from investment activities of the group amounts to EUR 6,070 k, Rs. 518,014k (PY EUR 8,002 k,
Rs. 682,891k). The company’s financing activities result in a cash outflow of EUR 3,009 k, Rs. 256,788k.
Due to the operating problems from the production of new serial parts which exist since the financial year
2011/2012 and which led to excessive material and personnel costs in order to meet delivery
commitments, the company realized significant losses during the past two reporting periods. Together
with other group companies, the company has taken a number of measures already during the financial
year 2012/2013 in order to restore the group’s profitability and productivity. These measures were
continued and further intensified during the financial year with the support of the CIE group. Due to the
positive effects and result of these measures in the last months of the financial year, realized price
increases for 2014 and a constant development of purchase prices, the board of directors assumes that
thanks to these developments the profitability will improve significantly during the financial year 2014 and
beyond.
The board of directors assumes that renewed intercompany and external credit facilities will have to be
provided in 2014 as well and beyond so that the company will be able to continue its business activities.
Discussions in this regard were started with the banks financing the company as well as with the financing
group companies.
In order to ensure the liquidity of the MFE group, the group base company Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo,
Brazil, issued an comfort letter dated 21 January 2014. If necessary, the comfort letter guarantees the
financing and going concern of the company and ensures at the same time that Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft is able to meet its payment obligations vis-à-vis its creditors as soon as these
become due. Against this background, the board of directors prepared the consolidated financial
statements by assuming going concern.
Altogether the board of directors assesses the company’s net assets, financial position and results of
operation as being not satisfying, even when this development is within the expectations.

IV.

Procurement and production

The development of the procurement markets is significantly influenced by economic conditions. Prices of
many raw materials relevant for the company, which in part increased again substantially in the previous
year after having been extremely low in past years, rather stagnated during the financial year. This led to
an only immaterial change of purchase prices for Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft during the
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financial year via raw material components, whereas alloy components even decreased slightly. This led
amongst other things to the reduced material intensity of the group of 56.6% compared to 57.4% in the
previous year.

V.

Personnel and social affairs

In the course of the economic development in previous years the number of employees was only slightly
increased. Considering the continuing economic uncertainties in our sales markets, the company still
focuses on the policy to employ sufficient temporary workers in order to cope with work peaks. If
improvements occur, these can be compensated with a reduction of temporary workers without materially
changing the number of employees. Accordingly, the average number of employees of the group was only
reduced marginally by 28 (2.5%) to 1,103 employees. As per 31 December 2013 47 apprentices (PY 24)
were employed.

VI.

Investments

Due to the economic situation, investments in the group were only made to preserve the production
facilities and the capacity. Additionally, key aggregates were reconditioned in order to be able to produce
reliably with these facilities in future. Altogether, in the reporting period 2013 EUR 6,095 k, Rs. 520,147k
have been invested in group fixed assets (PY EUR 8,382 k, Rs. 715,320k (12 months)). Thereof, EUR
1,816 k, Rs. 155,019k (PY EUR 3,740 k, Rs. 319,155k) fall upon self-provided tools, forging dies and
moulds. Depreciations and amortisations amount to EUR 9,290 k, Rs. 792,773k for the reporting period of
9 months compared to EUR 12,136 k, Rs. 1,035,686k in the previous year (12 months).

VII.

Environment protection

All companies of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft were successfully audited in accordance
with DIN ISO 14001 during January to June 2013. Following audits will take place during the same period
of 2014.
C.

Branches

The group does not have any branches.
D.

Important events after the balance sheet date

Important events after the reporting period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 did not occur.

Risk report
Risk management system
The group implemented an early risk detection and management system oriented to its operating risks.
Risks are regularly identified, measured as well as reviewed and reported to the management or the board
of the parent company. Material elements to manage and control risks in the accounting are established
through a definite allocation of responsibilities and controls with regard to the preparation of financial
statements, appropriate authorizations for the IT systems relevant for the financial statements as well as a
definite arrangement of responsibilities for the use of external experts. The four-eyes principle, separations
of functions and the close integration of the board in the business decisions are important
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control principles. In regular management meetings on the level of Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft problems as well as risks and opportunities of the group are discussed together with
the management of each subsidiary. The effectiveness of internal controls with regard to the accounting is
assessed at least once a year, mainly during the preparation of the financial statements.
Economic risks / industry and market risk of the automotive markets
In the past financial year the German and European economy stabilized compared to 2012. However, it
cannot be said yet how the long-term development will be. Considering the international debt crisis and
the volatility of the economic situation, the risk of a new recession is significantly lower. Global economic
developments with an impact on the large international manufacturers of commercial vehicles directly
influence Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft as the company’s business operations are
dependent on these customers. Therefore, due to the general development of the automotive industry,
especially that of commercial vehicles, the sales potential with regard to volumes and margins can still
only be assessed with difficulties in the long term. The company endeavours to be prepared for these
risks in the long term with flexibility and adjusted cost structures in order to be able to react rapidly.
Development of purchased raw materials
Stagnating or slightly decreasing raw material prices in 2013 had a marginally positive impact on our raw
material, steel. With regard to scrap metal and alloying components, the invoicing procedure applied in
our market segment for many years equalizes credits and debits with the suppliers as far as possible with
a small time delay.
Development of energy prices
Costs for individual energy sources constitute a significant portion of raw materials and supplies. With
regard to the oil price development, prices are still on a high level. This is as well driven by the insecure
political development, especially in the oil producing countries. The electricity tariffs increase
continuously. In order to respond to this trend, the company has taken appropriate measures for longterm
price security. The company responds to the expected price increase by a stringent peak load
management and by specific measures to save energy on the one hand, and by consolidating the
demand of all Mahindra Forgings Europe AG subsidiaries on the other hand, in order to systematically
realize economies of scale when purchasing energy. Nevertheless, increasing energy prices intensify the
cost pressure and affect the operating result when a complete cost transfer via price increases is not
possible. For the year 2014, the company applied for a refund according to the Renewable Energy Law,
which – according to today’s legal situation – lead to a significant relief. The impact of political changes
which might result from the complaint of the European commission vis-à-vis Germany cannot yet be
foreseen.
Customer structure
In 2013 Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft generated about 56.2% of the total group sales
revenues (PY 51.1%) with four large commercial vehicle manufacturers. Therefore, the group is
significantly dependent on a few large commercial vehicle manufacturers. Thus, the general market and
price risks which affect the large commercial vehicle manufacturers have a direct impact on the supplier
industry as
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well and therewith on Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft. Nevertheless, the market positioning
of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft is still targeted on these major customers of the
automotive sector. The company responds on the one hand to this risk by its further strengthened
technological leadership in the segment of steering components, on the other hand it has tried to evade
the customer dependency by a very diversified range of components. Despite all these measures it can
be altogether said that this dependency may have a negative impact on the operating results of the
company by the pricing pressures in the automotive supplier market when the flexibility for cost reduction
is limited and when an economic and market weakness occur.
Financing risk
The financing of the company is made from operating cash flow, which includes the factoring again used
during the financial year, as well as by partly long-term bank financing and intra-group financing. For
short-term financial requirements the company needs sufficient liquidity reserves. The basis of the
management decision is a detailed financial planning of the company. The company’s current account
line is kept in the cash pool with the other companies of MFE AG. Considering the increased fin ancing
needs of MFE AG, there is a significant dependency on the financing banks and the financing
shareholder of the international CIE Automotive S.A. group, which increased further during the financial
year. Considering the current economic development, the company’s financing seems ensured due to
the implemented factoring and the existing financing by way of credit. Risks of changes in interest rates
for existing loans are not significant.
In order to ensure the liquidity of the MFE group, the group base company Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo,
Brazil, issued a comfort letter dated 21 January 2014. If necessary, the comfort letter guarantees the
financing and going concern of the company and ensures at the same time that Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft is able to meet its payment obligations vis-à-vis its creditors as soon as these
become due. Against this background, the board of directors prepared the consolidated financial
statements by assuming going concern.
In summary it can be said that the company’s net assets, financial position and results of operation are
again negative in the financial year 2013. Due to the overall positive long-term prospects and the firm
integration in the German and international CIE Automotive S.A., we do not see any urgent risks that have
an impact on the company’s existence with regard to procurement, sales and human resources. The
going concern beyond the financial year 2014 depends on the continued financing through the parent
company and internationally CIE Automotive S.A. Due to the company’s risk management system as well
as the related organisational measures, the management can detect risks at an early stage and take
appropriate measures.
E.

Risk reporting on the use of financial instruments

Our business policy is dominated by the principle to minimise the unavoidable risks of each operating
activity for financial instruments by identifying financial risks as early as possible. For this purpose, an
effective planning and controlling instrument is implemented which minimises current and future financial
risks and includes the risk controlling for financial instruments (financial assets, receivables, liabilities and
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financial derivatives). It is the purpose of the risk management to identify risks regarding financial
instruments at an early stage and to eliminate them.
The contingency risk of assets is mainly that of a failing trade partner. The risk management principles
stipulate how the risk from trade shall be minimised. For this purpose, information about new customers
as well as about existing customers is gathered on a regular basis. In general, there were no
contingencies of trade receivables in particular in the past as the client base of Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft includes primarily large car manufacturers and automotive suppliers who have a high
degree of reliability. Despite the good economic development, there are nevertheless contingency risks,
which have to be reduced. The company responds to these contingency risks with an intensive debt
management.
Changes of exchange rates can influence prices for goods and services as well as result margins.
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft purchases the semi-finished goods and services in Euros
and invoices almost exclusively in Euro. Therefore there is no appreciable exchange rate risk.
Derivative financial instruments have been used by the group to the extent shown in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The company used interest hedge agreements (interest swaps) in
order to hedge the risk from the variable yield of bank loans.
The used financial instruments are based on physical hedged items; there are no commercial
transactions with financial instruments. There are no reportable risks, especially price changing,
contingency, liquidity and cash flow variation risks, from the used financial instruments that would be
materially relevant for the position or prospective development of the company.

F.

Opportunities of future development and forecast report

The economic growth of the years 2010 and 2011 slowed down considerably in 2013 compared to 2012.
Positive effects on the economic development are currently caused by the continuing growth in emerging
markets. Material risks for the economy are new disavowals in the financial and capital markets as well as
commodity prices rising too strongly due to speculations.
According to the present forecasts for 2014 and beyond, the overall economic situation will stabilize in the
euro zone. A growth of about 1.4 to 1.7% is forecast for Germany. According to the large commercial
vehicle manufacturers, global demand in the commercial vehicle segment is altogether expected to grow
only moderately – apart from the considerable growth in the large emerging markets. Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft depends on this development as its product range is focused on the large
commercial vehicle manufacturers. With the beginning of the year 2014, new emission standards became
effective in the EU, which only allow Euro 6 trucks. Due to this, the part of new generation vehicles will
increase significantly. New developments for the new generation of commercial vehicles at Daimler,
however, will increase the number of components per vehicle. Thus the company will benefit from the
market growth.
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The economic prospects are regarded as stable and positive in the medium term and we expect a small
one-digit increase of sales volumes for the upcoming financial year 2014 and beyond, which will lead to
increasing sales revenues. In cooperation with the CIE group, numerous projects are realized and in the
last months of the past financial year first successes began to show. Besides a price adjustment of lowyield products, a significant streamlining could be realized by optimizing the production process, which
makes multiple transportation unnecessary, streamlines the production process and improves its quality.
Further projects are identified in this area, which will be realized during the next months. In addition, we
continue to observe the economic development in order to take additional measures if required. As an
example, we would like to mention several measures which significantly reduce the energy consumption
and thus reduce energy costs materially. It cannot be said yet how energy costs will develop on the basis
of political decisions.
The company’s business plan for the year 2014 and the following years was made on the basis of the
information and market assessments available in the last months of 2013. Focus will be on the company’s
financing and cash management. Cost reduction measures that are already implemented and will be
further intensified support this plan.
The described future-related statements and information are based on today’s expectations and certain
assumptions. Therefore they hold a number of risks and uncertainties. A large number of factors, of which
numerous are not within control of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, have an impact on
business activities and their result. From today’s point of view, however, we expect a further material
improvement of the market environment and of the company’s development.

G.

Final declaration of the controlled company report

Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft received a reasonable return for every legal intercompany
transaction and measure, which is listed in the report on connections to affiliated companies, according to
the circumstances known at the time when the legal intercompany transactions and measures were made
and was not penalised by actions taken or omitted.

Aalen, 25 January 2014
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft
Board of directors
Edmundo Fernandez

Burkard Rausch

Board member

Board member
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- For translation purposes only Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated balance sheet as per December 31, 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34
“Auditor’s opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss
statement, notes, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity – and the group
management report of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, for the short business
year for the 9 month ending 31 December 2013. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and group management report in accordance with German commercial law are the
responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements and the group management report based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB [German
Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements, whether due to error
or fraud, materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with German principles of proper
accounting and in the group management report are detected with reasonable assurance.
Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the group and
expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence
supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes
assessing the financial statements included in the consolidated financial statements, the scope of
the consolidated entities, the accounting and consolidation principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements and group management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements of
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, for the short business year for the 9 month
ending 31 December 2013 comply with legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations of the group in accordance with German principles
of proper accounting. The group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the group’s position and suitably presents the
chances and risks of future development.”
Düsseldorf, 25 January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Grabenkamp
Wirtschaftsprüferin

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer
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- For translation purposes only Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated balance sheet as per December 31,
2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34
ASSETS
A. Fixed Assets
I. Intangible Assets
1. Purchased licences, industrial property
rights and licences on those rights
2. Goodwill
II. Tangible fixed assets
1.Land and buildings
2.Technical equipment and machines
3.Other assets and office equipment
4. Prepayments and assets under
construction
III. Investments
1. Loans to affiliated companies
2.Shares
B. Current Assets
I. Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies
2. Work in progress
3. Finished goods and merchandise

II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade debtors
2.Receivables due from affiliated companies
3.Other assets
III. Cash on hand and at banks
C.Prepaid expenses
D.Deferred tax assets

31.12.13
EUR

Rs.'000

31.3.13
EUR

Rs.'000

338,253.83
7,198,210.42
7,536,464.25

28,866.58
614,295.28
643,161.86

497,556.41
8,061,995.59
8,559,552.00

42,461.46
688,010.70
730,472.17

12,908,679.16
26,372,233.45
10,615,338.54

1,101,626.68
2,250,606.40
905,912.99

13,319,258.45
24,808,810.18
11,262,637.74

1,136,665.52
2,117,183.86
961,153.50

3,116,568.39

265,967.95

5,826,845.92

497,263.03

53,012,819.54

4,524,114.02

55,217,552.29

4,712,265.91

1,736,591.02
41,017.96
1,777,608.98

148,200.68
3,500.47
151,701.15

1,736,591.02
41,017.96
1,777,608.98

148,200.68
3,500.47
151,701.15

5,747,918.17
18,557,349.94

490,527.34
1,583,684.24

7,581,339.45
19,839,223.53

646,991.51
1,693,079.34

8,139,635.71

694,636.51

7,062,531.75

602,716.46

32,444,903.82

2,768,848.09

34,483,094.73

2,942,787.30

4,227,688.99
443,597.04
6,593,266.93
11,264,552.96
16,241,053.53
453,701.69
6,333,986.66
129,065,091.43

360,790.98
37,856.57
562,669.40
961,316.95
1,386,011.51
38,718.90
540,542.42
11,014,414.90

30,356,900.72
353,401.01
2,005,468.91
32,715,770.64
4,871,915.06
634,677.46
6,521,080.23
144,781,251.39

2,590,657.91
30,159.24
171,146.72
2,791,963.87
415,769.23
54,163.37
556,508.99
12,355,631.99
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- For translation purposes only Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated balance sheet as per December 31, 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34

LIABILITIES

31.12.13
EUR

A. Equity
I.Share Capital
II.Capital reserve
III. Profit reserves
1. Statutory reserves
2. Other profit reserves

IV. Consolidated balance sheet loss

B. Provisions
1. Provisions for pensions and similar
obligations
2. Tax provisions
3.Other provisions

C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks
2. Trade creditors
3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
4. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 1,054 k Rs.89,957
k (PY EUR 1,104 k; Rs. 94,215 k)
- thereof for social security EUR 75 k; Rs.
6,401 k(PY EUR 47k; Rs. 4,011 k)
D. Deferred income

Rs.'000

31.3.13
EUR

5,000,000.00

426,700.00

16,000,000.00

1,365,440.00

9,000,000.00

768,060.00

500,000.00

42,670.00

500,000.00

42,670.00

5,268,590.14

449,621.48

5,268,590.14

449,621.48

5,768,590.14

492,291.48

(25,564,676.11)

(2,181,689.46)

1,203,914.03

102,742.02

18,880,897.00

1,611,295.75

18,743,947.00

1,599,608.44

477,431.33

40,743.99

584,000.00

49,838.56

12,440,417.42

1,061,665.22

11,611,295.84

990,907.99

31,798,745.75

2,713,704.96

30,939,242.84

2,640,354.98

65,936,070.32

5,626,984.24

80,944,444.40

6,907,798.89

17,996,851.12

1,535,851.27

16,142,058.72

1,377,563.29

10,635,724.30

907,652.71

6,788,153.74

579,301.04

1,493,635.91

127,466.89

2,147,923.46

183,303.79

96,062,281.65
150.00

8,197,955.12
12.80

106,022,580.32
8,025.00

9,047,967.00
684.85

129,065,091.43

11,014,414.90

144,781,251.39

12,355,631.99
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5,000,000.00

Rs.'000

5,768,590.14
(11,957,186.91)
7,811,403.23

426,700.00

492,291.48
(1,020,426.33)
666,625.15

Consolidated profit and loss statement
for the short business year for the period
01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs.
85.34

1. Sales
2. Change in unfinished and finished goods
3. Other own work capitalized
4. Other operating income
- income from currency conversion
- others

5. Cost of materials
a)Cost of raw materials and supplies
b)Expenses for received services

01 Apr 2013
to
31 Dec 2013

01 Apr 2012
to
31 Mar 2013

EUR

Rs'000

EUR

Rs'000

184,143,708.31
-115,084.26

15,714,824.07
-9,821.29

234,425,395.18
-8,160,065.76

20,005,863.22
-696,380.01

1,816,486.94

155,019.00

3,739,807.63

319,155.18

929.76
793,057.50

79.35
67,679.53

62,106.95
1,300,728.32

5,300.21
111,004.15

793,987.26

67,758.87

1,362,835.27

116,304.36

186,639,098.25

15,927,780.64

231,367,972.32

19,744,942.76

-85,080,547.64
-20,075,341.55
105,155,889.19

-7,260,773.94
-1,713,229.65

109,422,159.49
-22,579,551.68
132,001,711.17

-9,338,087.09
-1,926,938.94
11,265,026.03

-42,174,213.87

-3,599,147.41

-55,875,726.09

-4,768,434.46

-8,550,992.61

-729,741.71

-12,097,408.82

-1,032,392.87

-50,725,206.48

-4,328,889.12

-67,973,134.91

-5,800,827.33

-9,289,584.53

-792,773.14

-12,136,006.08

-1,035,686.76

-1,282.40
-28,663,974.09

-109.44
-2,446,183.55

-16,886.55
-32,139,137.83

-1,441.10
-2,742,754.02

-28,665,256.49

-2,446,292.99

-32,156,024.38

-2,744,195.12

-7,196,838.44

-614,178.19

-12,898,904.22

-1,100,792.49

432.00

36.87

1,305.43

111.41

89,624.75

7,648.58

118,956.48

10,151.75

2,318.26

197.84

4,461.25

380.72

-759,795.72
-4,372,608.62

-64,840.97
-373,158.42

-1,055,920.04
-5,017,860.03

-90,112.22
-428,224.17

-5,132,404.34

-437,999.39

-6,073,780.07

-518,336.39

-8,974,003.58

6. Personnel expenses
a)Wages and salaries
b)Statutory social contributions, expenses for
pensions and optional support
- thereof expenses for pensions
-EUR 485 k; Rs. 41,390 k (PY EUR 663 k;
Rs. 56,580 k)
7. Amortization of intangible assets and
depreciation of tangible fixed assets
8. Other operating expenses
- expenses from currency conversion
- others

9. Profits from companies wherein
investments are held
10. Profits from long term financial
investments
- thereof from affiliated companies
EUR 89 k; Rs. 7,595 k
(PY EUR 119 k; Rs. 10,155 k)
11. Other interest and similar income
- thereof from affiliated companies
EUR 127k ; Rs. 10,838 k
(PY EUR 343 k; Rs. 29,272 k)
EUR 0,00 (PY EUR 0 k)
12. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof to affiliated companies
- expenses from discounting
- others

78

13. Income from operations
14. Extraordinary expenses

-12,236,867.77

-1,044,294.30

-18,847,961.13

-1,608,485.00

-1,027,509.39

-87,687.65

0.00

0.00

-1,027,509.39

-87,687.65

0.00

0.00

-15,380.93
-187,093.57

-1,312.61
-15,966.57

-195,978.08
-1,265,166.01

-16,724.77
-107,969.27

-202,474.50

-17,279.17

-1,461,144.09

-124,694.04

-140,637.54

-12,002.01

-160,128.24

-13,665.34

18. Net consolidated loss of the year

-13,607,489.20

-1,161,263.13

-20,469,233.46

-1,746,844.38

19. Loss brought forward

-11,957,186.91

-1,020,426.33

8,512,046.55

726,418.05

20. Consolidated balance sheet loss

-25,564,676.11

-2,181,689.46

-11,957,186.91

-1,020,426.33

15. Extraordinary Result
16. Taxes on profits and income - current tax
- deferred tax
17. Other taxes

Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the short business year for the period
01 April 2013 until 31 December 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34
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Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the short business year for the period
01 April 2013 until 31 December 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34
1Apr to
31Dec 13
EUR k
Net result
Depreciations on fixed assets
Change of accruals and provisions
Loss/Profit on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Change of inventories, trade receivables and other
assets

1 Apr 12to
31March 13
EUR k

-13,608.00

1Apr to
31Dec 13
Rupees k
1,161,306.72

-20,469.00

1 Apr 12to
31March 13
Rupees k
1,746,824.46

9,290.00

792,808.60

12,136.00

1,035,686.24

859.00

73,307.06

-2,533.00

-216,166.22

-9.00

-768.06

62.00

5,291.08

23,856.00

2,035,871.04

17,268.00

1,473,651.12

Change of trade payables and other liabilities
Cash flows from operating activities
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of financial assets

60.00
20,448.00

5,120.40
1,745,032.32

-10,229.00
-3,765.00

-872,942.86
-321,305.10

25.00

2,133.50

384.00

32,770.56

-6,044.00
-51.00
0.00

-515,794.96
-4,352.34
0.00

-8,267.00
-115.00
-4.00

-705,505.78
-9,814.10
-341.36

Cash flows from investing activities

-6,070.00

-518,013.80

-8,002.00

-682,890.68

7,000.00

597,380.00

0.00

0.00

10,000.00
-5,000.00
0.00
-15,009.00

0.00
0.00
22,000.00
-6,784.00

0.00
0.00
1,877,480.00
-578,946.56

15,216.00

1,298,533.44

Contribution into equity (capital reserve)
Cash proceeds from intercompany loans
Cash out from repayments of intercompany loans
Cash proceeds from bank loans
Cash out from repayments of bank loans
Cash flows from financing activities

-3,009.00

853,400.00
-426,700.00
0.00
1,280,868.06
-256,788.06

Change in cash funds from cash relevant transactions

11,369.00

970,230.46

3,449.00

294,337.66

4,872.00

415,776.48

1,423.00

121,438.82

16,241.00

1,386,006.94

4,872.00

415,776.48

Cash funds at the beginnig of period
Cash funds at the end of period

Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the short business year for the period
01 April 2013 until 31 December 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34
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Balance at 31 March 2012
Group net loss in 2012/2013
Balance at 31 March 2013
Contribution into equity (capital reserve)
Group net loss for the short business year 2013
Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 31 March 2012
Group net loss in 2012/2013
Balance at 31 March 2013
Contribution into equity (capital reserve)
Group net loss for the short business year 2013
Balance at 31 December 2013

Capital
reserve
Rs.'000
768,060
768,060
597,380
1,365,440

426,700
426,700

42,670

42,670

Rs.'000
42,670

449,621

449,621

Rs.'000
449,621

-1,161,263
-2,181,689

Rs.'000
726,418
-1,746,844
-1,020,426

28,280,637
-20,469,233
7,811,403
7,000,000
-13,607,489
1,203,914

EUR

Total group
equity

Parent company
Accumulated
other
gains and losses
Translation
exchange
Total group
differences
equity
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
0
2,413,469
-1,746,844
0
666,625
597,380
-1,161,263
0
102,742

0

-13,607,489
-25,564,676

0
0

EUR

8,512,047
-20,469,233
-11,957,187

EUR

Translation
exchange
differences

Parent company
Accumulated
other
gains and losses

Equity earned by the group
Other profit Group balance
reserves
sheet profit

5,268,590

5,268,590

5,268,590

EUR

Equity earned by the group
Other profit
Group
balance
reserves
sheet profit

Statutory
reserves

500,000

500,000

500,000

EUR

Statutory
reserves

Share
capital
Rs.'000
426,700

16,000,000

5,000,000

9,000,000
9,000,000
7,000,000

R

Capital
reserve
EU

5,000,000

5,000,000

EUR

Shar
e capital

- For translation purposes only Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Statement of changes in group equity as per 31 December 2013
Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34

- For translation purposes only Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the short business year
from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen

I. Accounting principles and general information about the financial statements
As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”),
Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the majority of shares of the
Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the
changed shareholder structure and the financial year of the new group shareholder “PIA”, the
company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of
nine months has been established for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The
entry into the commercial register Ulm was made under HRB 501382 on 12 December 2013.
The previous year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are
therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft ("the
company" or “MFE AG”) for the reporting period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
have been prepared in EUR in accordance with the accounting principles of the
Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB) [German Commercial Code] and the supplementary provisions laid
down in the Aktiengesetz (AktG) [German Stock Corporation Act].
For the profit and loss account the total cost method has been used.
The balance sheet date is the balance sheet date of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft (31 December); the annual financial statements of all subsidiaries have also
been prepared for the same balance sheet date.
Regarding disclosures of remunerations paid to current members of the management
board of our company pursuant to section 314 (1) no. 6a HGB, our company has applied the safeguard clause in analogue appliance of section 286 (4) HGB, as it wouldbe
possible to identify the remuneration paid to each person, given the limited number of
individuals involved in our company.
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II. Scope of consolidation and consolidation principles

(1)

Scope of consolidation

Besides MFE AG (parent company) the following subsidiaries were included (fully
consolidated) in the consolidated financial statements as per 31 December 2013:
Share quote
Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen

100%

Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Gevelsberg

100%

Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle

100%

SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen

100%

The basis of consolidation did not change compared to the consolidated financial statements
as per 31 March 2013.

(2)

Equity consolidation

The equity consolidation is made according to the book value method in accordance with
section 301 (1) clause 2 no. 1 HGB old version for the companies of the scope of consolidation
acquired until 31 March 2010. For this purpose the investment book value of the parent
company is set off with the pro-rata book-entry equity of the subsidiary at the time of the first
consolidation. This offsetting in accordance with section 301 (1) HGB old version is made on
the basis of the valuation at the time of the investment acquisition. Resulting positive or
negative differences were balanced.
For the companies of the scope of consolidation that were acquired after 31 March 2010 the
equity consolidation is made by using the revaluation method in accordance with section 301 (1)
clause 2 HGB by setting off the investment book values with the newly valued equity of the
subsidiaries at the time of their acquisition. For this purpose the equity is recognized with the
amount that corresponds to the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities, accruals and deferrals
and special items that has to be allocated to them at the time of acquisition. Remaining
positive differences are accounted for as goodwill. Negative differences from the first
consolidation are disclosed under “differences from the investment consolidation” after equity.
The discovered hidden reserves and burdens are continued within the subsequent
consolidation according to the corresponding assets, liabilities, accruals and deferrals and
special items.
The consolidation procedures result in a net income effect of EUR k -979 Rs. -83548 k from the
depreciation of re-evaluated fixed assets and deferred taxes of SCHÖNEWEISS & CO
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GmbH and the amortization of the goodwill of SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH.

(3)

Consolidation of debts

For the consolidation of debts intragroup receivables, provisions and liabilities as well as
accruals and deferrals are netted. Accumulating differences are adjusted with an effect on
profit.

(4)

Consolidation of profit

Intragroup profits and losses, sales revenues as well as expenses and proceeds existing
between the consolidated companies are eliminated. Especially assets from intragroup trades
included in fixed assets and inventories are adjusted by intercompany results. The elimination
of intercompany results was omitted in accordance with section 304 (2) HGB as far as these are
less important to show the true net assets, financial position and operating result of the group.
The appreciations and depreciations on investments in group companies made in the annual
financial statements during the financial year are cancelled again in the consolidated financial
statements.

(5)

Tax accrual and deferral

If consolidation processes lead to differences between the valuation of assets, liabilities,
accruals and deferrals according to commercial law and the valuation according to tax law, and
if these differences are expected to be non-permanent in the following financial years, the
income tax effects thereon have been taken into consideration and deferred taxes are
recognized in the consolidation process. Deferred taxes resulting from income effective
consolidation bookings have been taken into account by using the expected tax rate for the
respective company.

(6)

Currency translation during the consolidation

The Annual Financial Statements of each consolidated Company have been prepared
in EUR, therefore a currency translation was not necessary.
III. Accounting and valuation principles, currency translation
Assets and liabilities of the consolidated companies are recognised in accordance with the
joint accounting and valuation principles of the MFE AG-group, which is German Commercial
Code (HGB).
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Goodwill from acquisitions is capitalised and amortised according to the straight-line method at a
useful life of 10 years. The assumption that the purchased goodwill has a useful life of more than
5 years is due to the fact that in the last years the subsidiary SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH,
Hagen, – from the acquisition of which the goodwill arose – has made investments and
expenses in order to be able to manufacture a variety of parts for a new generation of
vehicles for an important customer. The goodwill is generated from the purchase of
SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen. The product life cycle of this new generation of
vehicles is expected to be about 10 years. A corresponding useful life over the lifetime of the
expected product life cycle is applied for the goodwill.
Purchased intangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition cost, after deducting straight-line
method amortization. Generally a useful life of 3 to 5 years is applied for intangible fixed assets.
Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition or production cost, after deducting straight-line
method depreciation. Production costs of self-provided tools include direct cost plus an
appropriate allocation of overhead cost and depreciation. In general, a useful life of 25 to 50
years is applied to buildings, a useful life of 4 to 15 years is applied to technical equipment and
machines and a useful life of 3 to 21 years is applied to other assets and office equipment.
For low value items which were purchased until 31 December 2009 the company applies the
German tax law regulations section 6 (2) and section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act]
valid until December 31, 2009. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition cost up to EUR
150; Rs. 12801 are fully depreciated and disposed in the year of acquisition. Low value items
with acquisition cost of EUR 150; Rs. 12801 to EUR 1000; Rs. 85,340 are added to a
compound item which is depreciated over a period of 5 years and then disposed.
For low value items purchased after 31 December 2009 the company applies the German tax
law regulations section 6 (2) EStG [German Income Tax Act] valid since then. Accordingly, low
value items with acquisition cost up to EUR 410; Rs. 34,989 are fully depreciated and disposed
in the year of acquisition.
Investments are valued at acquisition costs or at the lower values to be attributed.

If the book value of fixed assets determined by the above principles is higher than the fair value
at the balance sheet date, fixed assets are impaired. As far as the reasons for prior year’s
impairments no longer exist the original values are reinstated.
Raw materials and supplies are valued at the average purchase cost or the lower market
price.
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Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts
of overhead costs as well as depreciation are considered in addition to directly attributable direct
material costs, direct labour costs and special direct costs. According to the principles of valuation
the lower value of production costs and sales prices less expenses to be accrued until
completion has been recognised.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets that are recognised at their nominal value, all
identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit risk is
appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables.
Capitalized discounts and expenditures that are expenses after the balance sheet date are
accounted for as prepaid expenses.
The option to capitalise deferred taxes on tax losses carried forward is exercised. In the
balance sheet deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted. Deferred taxes have been
calculated by using the expected tax rate for the company of origin. For valuation and
recognition of deferred tax assets please refer to the explanations on the balance sheet.
For pension provisions please see the explanations on the balance sheet.
Provisions for taxation and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and undetermined
obligations at the balance sheet date. They are recognized at the amount being necessary
according to reasonable commercial assessment to cover the repayment amount of the
identifiable obligations. Anticipated inflation rates and changes in costs are recognized.
Provisions with a maturity of more than one year are discounted at the average market rate
determined by Deutsche Bundesbank.
Other assets and liabilities are stated at the nominal values or repayment values.

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the day of
origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchan ge rate changes up to the
balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange rate changes are only
considered with a maturity of one year or less.
In order to hedge the risk of a variable interest rate of a loan liability with an amount of EUR
28.0 Mio.; Rs.2,390 Mio a contract was concluded on 30 November 2010 for a maturity interest
rate swap amounting EUR 20.0 Mio.; Rs. 1,707 Mio. The loan amounting to EUR 7,778 k;
Rs.663,775 k at the balance sheet date as well as the swap amounting to EUR 6,250 k; Rs.
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533,375 k at the balance sheet date have a maturity until 24 March 2015. The hedged amount
due to the swap is agreed with the scheduled repayment of the loan. Over the whole maturity of
the contracts there is actually no interest rate risk. Therefore, both transactions were
summarised into a valuation unit which is called micro-hedge, in accordance with section 254
HGB. Due to the conclusion of the interest rate swap, the variable interests (6-month
EURIBOR) from the borrowing of the loan are converted into fixed interests of the loan to
hedge possible interest rate risks. Over the entire period of financing, which takes until the
year 2015, the risk resulting from increasing interest obligations out of the loan are hedged
through higher variable payments from the interest rate swaps and vice versa. As per the
balance sheet date, there is a hedged risk amounting EUR -108 k; Rs. -9217 k (PY EUR 283 k;
Rs. 24,151 k) which is reflected in the positive market value of the interest rate swap.

IV. Disclosures to the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss
account

(1)

Fixed assets of the group

The itemization and movements in intangible fixed assets, tangible assets as well as in
investments, amortisation and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement
schedule of the group.

(2)

Name

L is t o f sha re owne rsh ip
Location

Gesenkschmiede Schneider
Gesell- schaft mit beschränkter
Haftung
Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung

Share
quote

Equity

Net result

31.12.2013

financial year

Aalen

100%

EUR 19,612 k

EUR 0 k *)

100%

EUR 6,371 k

EUR 0 k *)

Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH

Gevelsberg
Schalksmüh
le

100%

EUR 2,349 k

EUR 0 k *)

SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH

Hagen

EUR 8,222 k

EUR 14,204 k **)

Name

Location

100%
Shar
e
quote

Gesenkschmiede Schneider
Gesell- schaft mit beschränkter
Haftung
Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung

Equity

Net result

31.12.2013

financial year

Aalen

100%

Rs 1,673,688 k

Rs. 0 k *)

100%

Rs 543,701 k

Rs. 0 k *)

Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH

Gevelsberg
Schalksmüh
le

100%

Rs 200,464 k

SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH

Hagen

100%

Rs 701,665 k

Rs. 0 k *)
Rs. 1,212,169 k
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**)

*) A profit and loss transfer agreement is in effect between the subsidiary (profit transferring
company) and MFE AG
**) Control agreement between the subsidiary being the controlled company and MFE
There are loans to affiliated companies with a term of more th an one year amounting
to EUR 1,737 k; Rs. 148,236 k (PY EUR 1,737 k; Rs. 148,236 k).

(3) Receivables and other assets
Receivables due from affiliated companies are due from companies of Mahindra &
Mahindra Ltd. group, Mumbai/India. All receivables have a maturity of less than one
year.

As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million; Rs. 1,707 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of
the receivables from the operative companies of MFE group by ICICI provides
financing to MFE group and is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI.
By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to
ICICI amounting to EUR 19.7 million; Rs.1,681 million which have been paid out to
the companies in July 2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied.
Cash received via factoring are included in the group’s cash management maintained
by MFE. The difference to receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not
been settled with ICICI. As per 31 December 2013 the operative companies sold
receivables to ICICI amounting to EUR 14,144 k; Rs. 1,207,049 k. If the balance of the
receivables sold as per the balance sheet date is lower than the amount paid out by
ICICI, this difference is disclosed as liabilities due to banks.
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(4)

Cash on hand and at banks

Cash on hand and at banks amount to EUR 16,241 k; Rs. 1,386,011 k as per the balance sheet
date. Within the scope of the execution of a social compensation plan at a subsidiary (see
explanations on the extraordinary result), time deposits in the amount of EUR 405 k; Rs. 34,563
k were pledged to a transfer company, therefore this credit cannot be disposed of freely.

(5)

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses mainly include discounts (EUR 316 k; Rs. 26,967 k; PY EUR 496 k; Rs.
42,329 k) and insurance premiums paid in advance. Discounts are dissolved according to
schedule in compliance with section 250 (3) HGB.

(6)

Equity

For the movements in equity in the financial year 2013 we refer to the separately disclosed
statement of changes in group equity. Minority shareholders do not exist.
The share capital amounts to EUR 5,000,000.00; Rs. 426700 k and is enrolled in the register
of commerce at the district court of Ulm, register no. HRB 501382.
As of 31 December 2013 the share capital of EUR 5,000,000.00 ; Rs. 427 Mio.
consists of 5,000,000 no-par-value shares (unchanged to 31 March 2013). All shares are
registered and entitle to equal rights.
By shareholders’ resolution dated 3/28 October 2013 the sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings
International Ltd., Mauritius, paid EUR 7,000 k; Rs. 597,380 k into the capital reserve.
Mahindra Forgings International Ltd., Mauritius, has informed Mahindra Forgings Europe AG,
that she holds the majority of shares in the company.

(7) Provisions for pensions and similar obligations
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations are determined according to the pro
jected unit credit method. The calculation is based on the following assumptions:
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Interest rate
(according to the first-year conversion section
253 (2) paragraph 2 HGB)

4.90 % (PY 5.03 %)

Expected increase in wages and salaries (up to)

2.70 % (PY 3.00 %)

Expected increase in pensions
(individual commitments with adjustment clause
starting on 1 May 14)
(individual commitments with adjustment clause starting 2015)

2.20 % (PY 2.00 %)
2.00 % (PY 2.00 %)

Expected increase in pensions (other)

1.00 % (PY 1.00 %)

During the financial year 2013 the following amounts have been allocated to pension provisions:
personnel costs amounting to EUR 460 k; Rs. 39,256 k (PY EUR 616 k; Rs. 39,256 k) and
interest expense amounting to EUR 690 k; Rs. 58,885 k (PY EUR 933 k; Rs. 79,622 k). An
amount of EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k (PY EUR 63 k; Rs. 5,376 k) has been released.

(8)

Tax provisions

Tax provisions in the amount of EUR 477 k; Rs. 40,744 k (PY EUR 584 k; Rs. 49,839 k)
completely concern previous years.

(9)

Other provisions

Provisions for early retirement and jubilee payments are as well calculated on the basis of
the mortality tables „2005 G“ based on actuarial valuation. Provisions for early retirement
were accounted for on the basis of a discount rate of 3.41 % (PY 3.67 %) with an average
duration of one year and on the basis of a salary increase of 2.20 to 3.00 %. The increase of
income thresholds has been considered with 2.7 to 3.0 % per year. Early retirement
obligations were set off with the credit balance from the refund claim due from the Employment
Agency in accordance with section 246 (2) HGB.

Partial retirement obligation
./. assets
Remaining partial retirement obligation
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EUR k

EUR k

31.12.2013

31.03.2013

1,401

1,736

0

-10

1,401

1,726

Partial retirement obligation
./. assets
Remaining partial retirement obligation

Rs k

Rs k

31.12.2013

31.03.2013

119,561

148,150

0

-853

119,561

147,297

Provisions for jubilee obligations were accounted for according to the projected unit credit
method on the basis of a discount rate of 4.90 % (PY 5.03 %) for an overall maturity of 15
years.
Other provisions mainly refer to obligations for early retirement, for jubilee obligations, for other
personnel provisions and accruals for warranties and for invoices not yet received.

( 1 0 ) Liabilities

Liabilities due to

Trade liabilities

Liabilities due to
affiliated
companies

Other liabilities

Thereof
secured by
pledges and
similar rights

up to 1 year
EUR k
52,943
PY EUR k
58,535

Maturity
2 to 5 years
EUR k
12,993
PY EUR k
22,409

17,997
PY EUR k
16,142

0
PY EUR k 0

636

10,000

PY EUR k
1,788

PY EUR k 5,000

1,474
PY EUR k
2,129

15

73,050
PY EUR k
78,594

> 5 years
EUR k
0
PY EUR
k0

Total
31.12.2013
EUR k
65,936
PY EUR k
80,944

0
PY EUR
k0

17,997
PY EUR k
16,142
10,636

0
PY EUR
k0

PY EUR k
6,788

PY EUR k 14

5
PY EUR
5k

PY EUR k 2,148

23,008
PY EUR k
27,423

5
PY EUR
k5

96,063
PY EUR k
106,022
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1,494

Type of
security

EUR k
61,826
PY EUR k
80,944

See below
Usual retention of ownership

Liabilities due to
banks

Trade liabilities

Liabilities due to
affiliated
companies

Other liabilities

up to 1
year
Rs. k
4,518,156

Maturity
2 to 5
years
Rs. k
1,108,828

Total

PY Rs. k
4,995,377
1,535,851
PY Rs. k
1,377,563
54,276

853,376

PY Rs. k
152,588

PY Rs. k
426,713

125,760
PY Rs. k
181,682

1,280
PY Rs. k
1,195

427
PY Rs. k
427

127,467
PY Rs. k
183,304

6,234,043
PY Rs. k
6,707,210

1,963,484
PY Rs. k
2,340,329

427
PY Rs. k
427

8,197,954
PY Rs. k
9,047,966

Thereof
secured by
pledges and
similar rights

> 5 years
Rs. k
0

31.12.2013
Rs. k
5,626,984

Rs. k
5,276,231

PY Rs. k
1,912,421

PY Rs. k 0

PY Rs. k
6,907,798

PY Rs. k
6,907,761

0

0

PY Rs. k 0

PY Rs. k 0

1,535,851
PY Rs. k
1,377,563

Type of
security

See below
Usual retention of ownership

907,652
0
PY Rs. k 0

PY Rs. k
579,301

Liabilities due to affiliated companies include a loan of PIA, Bilbao, Spain, in the amount of
EUR 10,000 k; Rs. 853,400 k The loan has to be repaid on 15 December 2015.
The subsidiaries Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen,
Jeco-Jellinghaus

Gesellschaft

mit

beschränkter

Haftung,

Gevelsberg,

Falkenroth

Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, and Schöneweiss & CO GmbH, Hagen, have pledged
intangible assets (intellectual property), equipment, trade receivables and inventory as
collaterals for the loan agreements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen,
with ICICI Bank UK Plc, Frankfurt Branch, dated June 2010. The subsidiaries’ real estate is
encumbered with a land charge in the same context. Furthermore, there are pledges of bank
accounts and reimbursement claims against insurances to the above named bank. Additionally
the shares of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft held in consolidated subsidiaries
and intangible fixed assets (intellectual property) of the company have been pledged as
collaterals.(screw press including peripheral devices) was assigned by way of a collateral. Additionally, there is the usual retention of title from deliveries of raw materials and supplies and
goods.
The risk of the usage of pledges is deemed to be unlikely due to the planned going concern
and the planned results of the company within the next financial years.
Liabilities due to affiliated companies amounting to EUR 10,636 k; Rs. 907,676 k (PY EUR
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6,788 k; Rs. 579,288 k) include loan liabilities and interest liabilities from this loan amounting to
EUR 10,036 k; Rs. 856,472 k (PY EUR 6,333 k; Rs. 540,458 k).

(11) Deferred taxes and income taxes
The disclosed net deferred tax assets are based on the difference between the balance sheet
approach according to commercial law and the balance sheet approach according to tax law for
the following assets and liabilities as well as on tax losses and interests carried forward:
31-Dec-13

31-Mar-13

EUR k

EUR k

Deferred tax assets:

31-Dec-13

31-Mar-13

RS k

RS k

5,461

5,445

466,042

Tangible assets

299

528

25,517

464,676
464 676
45,060

Pension provisions

977

895

83,377

76,379

Other provisions

127

232

10,838

19,799

6,864

7,100

585,774

605,914

Deferred Tax Liabilities

530

579

45,230

49,412

Total deferred tax liabilities

530

579

45,230

49,412

6,334

6,521

540,544

556,502

Tax losses carried forward

Total deferred tax assets

Total net deferred tax assets:

The deferred tax assets refer to the tax unity Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft,
Aalen, with an amount of EUR 4,503 k; Rs. 384,286 k and to SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH,
Hagen, with an amount of EUR 2,361 k; Rs. 201,488 k.
The valuation of deferred taxes for the tax unity Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft,
Aalen, is based on a tax rate of 29.77 % (PY 29.8 %) and for SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH,
Hagen, on a tax rate of 33.29 % (PY 32.98 %).
For tax losses carried forward existing as per the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets are
made if a loss offsetting is expected within five years. Equally, deferred tax assets from
temporary differences were fully capitalised, because currently a future compensation is
expected.
Basis of the valuation approach for deferred tax assets from tax losses carried forward are
expected positive results of the tax balance sheet. This assumption is based on an estimated
increase of sales resulting from the general development of sales markets as well as from the
increased profitability due to initiated measures.
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(12) Sales revenues
2013

2012/2013

2013

2012/2013

EUR k

EUR k

RS k

RS k

Segmentation according to business operations:
Forging parts

70,912

100,056

Manufacturing

99,065

119,312

6,051,630
6 051 630
8,454,207

8,538,739
8 538 779
10,182,086

1,642

2,942

140,128

251,070

13,153

13,026

1,122,477

1,111,639

-628

-911

(53,594)

(77,745)

184,144

234,425

15,714,849

20,005,830

149,161

191,983

12,729,400

16,383,829

35,611

43,353

3,039,043

3,699,745

-628

-911

(53,594)

(77,745)

184,144

234,425

15,714,849

20,005,830

Forging dies and tools
Other sales revenues
Sales decreases

Geographical segmentation:
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
Sales decreases

(13) O t h e r o p e r a t in g in c o m e
Other operating income includes income from other financial years with an amount of EUR 160
k; Rs. 13,654 k (PY EUR 599 k; Rs. 51,119 k). Income from previous periods includes the
release of provisions (EUR 141 k; Rs 12,033 k; PY EUR 542 k; Rs. 46,254 k) and income from
the disposal of fixed assets (EUR 19 k; Rs. 1,621 k; PY EUR 57 k; Rs. 4,864 k).

(14) Depreciation, amortization
Scheduled amortisation and depreciation have been made on intangible fixed assets amounting
to EUR 1,074 k; Rs. 91,650 k (PY EUR 1,454 k; Rs. 124,084 k) and on tangible assets
amounting to EUR 8,216 k; Rs. 701,123 k (PY EUR 10,682 k; Rs. 911,602 k). During the financial
year unscheduled depreciation amounting to EUR 460 k; Rs.39,256 k has been accounted for
assets under construction.

(15) Other operatin g expenses
Other operating expenses include expenses relating to other financial years amounting to
EUR 28 k; Rs. 2390 k (PY EUR 119 k; Rs. 10,155 k). They relate to losses from the disposal of
tangible assets.

(16) Ex trao rd inar y resu lt
In the short financial year 2013 an extraordinary result of EUR 1,027 k; Rs. 87,688 k was
disclosed. In May 2013 the company agreed a social plan with the workers council of Schöneweiss & Co GmbH to terminate a certain number of employment contracts with employees.
Based on this agreement the company recorded a provision for expected compensation
payments on the basis of the proposed social compensation plan as well as payments to the
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personnel transfer company for the execution of qualification measures for the employees who
agreed to being replaced to the transfer company. As per 31 December 2013 the provision
amounts to EUR 636 k; Rs. 54,276 k The total expenses for these personnel restructuring
measures amount to EUR 1,027 k; Rs.87688 k during the short business year and are
disclosed as extraordinary expenses.
V. Group cash flow statement
The group cash flow statement of the MFE group for the financial year 2013 is disclosed
separately. The supporting disclosures are as follows:
The underlying cash fund of the cash flow statement consists of cash and cash- equivalents
(cash on hand and credit at banks); it is in line with the corresponding balance sheet item.
The cash flow from interest income in the financial year amounts to EUR 107 k; Rs. 9,131 k
(net pay-out; PY EUR -90 k; Rs. 7,681 k); as the cash flow from interest, it is included in the
operating cash flow. The cash flow from received interest of the financial year amounts to
EUR 92 k; Rs. 7,846 k (PY EUR 123 k; Rs. 10,533 k), the cash flow from paid interest
amounts to EUR -4,373 k; Rs. 373,192 k (PY EUR -4,671 k; Rs. 398,623 k).
VI. Statement of changes in group equity
The statement of changes in group equity of the MFE group for the financial year
2013 is disclosed separately.
VII. Other disclosures

(1)

Off balance sheet it ems

According to supplementary collective agreements, which the subsidiaries Falkenroth
Umformtechnik

GmbH,

Schalksmühle,

Gesenkschmiede

Schneider

Gesellschaft

mit

beschränkter Haftung, Aalen and Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung,
Gevelsberg, concluded in 2009/2010, holiday and Christmas bonuses were suspended for the
year 2010 for cost cutting purposes. As a compensation the agreement includes the
commitment of the company to pay a special bonus depending on predefined positive
financial results from the beginning of the financial year 2011/2012.
Operating leasing contracts are made for assets used in the administration department (for
example vehicles, office equipment, etc.) as well as for operating activities (for example
machines and car pool etc.) to use these assets with the smallest freezing of funds. These
contracts were concluded within the ordinary business activities. The underlying assets were
not capitalized in the balance sheet. The maturity of the leasing contracts is about 24 to 120
months. During the financial year 2013 the outflow of liquidity from these businesses
amounted to EUR 2,694 k (PY EUR 2,973 k). Future liquidity effects of rental and lease
contracts are disclosed in the note of other financial commitments.
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(2)

Other financial commitments
31.12.13

31.3.13

31.12.13

31.3.13

EUR k

Rs. K

Rs. K

32,023

37,841

2,732,843

3,229,351

2,123

1,642

181,177

140,128

EUR k
Rental and leasing costs (buildings,
machinery, office
equipment, software)
Investment purchase commitments
at reporting date

(3)

Auditor fees

The total fees for the auditor of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
2013 amount to:

EUR k

Rs. K

180

15,361

23

1,963

Tax advisory services

7

597

Other services

4

341

214

18,263

Audit services
Other assurance services

(4)

Average number of employees
2013

2012/2013

Employees

207

211

Factory workers

896

920

1,103

1,131

24

29

Thereof part-time employees

(5)

Board of directors and supervisory board

During the reporting period members of the board of directors were:
- Mr. Thomas Körner, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Schwelm (until 31 Dec 2013) - Mr.
Burkard Rausch, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Warendorf
- Mr. Edmundo Fernandez, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Director CIE Automotive S.A.,
Bilbao/Spain, Vitoria/Spain (since 7 Nov 2013)
As only two members of the board of management received a salary from the company, the
easement of section 286 (4) HGB was applied.
Supervisory board members during the reporting96
period were:

- Mr. Hemant Luthra, Member of the Board of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. (located in
Mumbai/India), Mumbai/India, chairman (until 4 October 2013)
- Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera Barandiaran, CEO of CIE Automotive (located in Bil bao/Spain), Antizapan de Zaragoza/Mexico, chairman (since 5 October 2013)
- Mr. Oliver Scholz, CEO Scholz AG (located in Essingen), Aalen, vice chairman
(until 4 October 2013)
- Mr. Zhooben Bhiwandiwala, Vice President Corporate Affairs of Mahindra &
Mahindra Ltd. (located in Mumbai/India), Mumbai/India (until 4 October 2013)
- Mr. Sanjay Joglekar, Chief Financial Officer of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. Systech
Sector, (located in Mumbai/India), Mumbai/India,
- Mr. Rajeev Dubey, member of the Board of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. (located in
Mumbai/India), Mumbai/India, (until 4 October 2013)
- Mr. Krishnan Ramaswami, Chief Executive Officer of Mahindra Forgings Limited (located
in Pune/India), Pune/India,
- Mr. Antonio Maria Pradera Jauregui, chairman of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain), Getxo/Spain, deputy chairman (since 5 October 2013)
- Mr. Ignacio Artazcoz Barrena, CFO of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain),
Getxo/Spain (since 5 October 2013)
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- Mr. Pedro Echegaray Larrea, representative of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain), Sao Paulo/Brazil (since 5 October 2013)
The supervisory board did not receive any renumeration within the short business year
2013.

(6)

Escape clause according to section 264 (3) HGB

The subsidiaries Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen,
Jeco-Jellinghaus

Gesellschaft

mit

beschränkter

Haftung,

Gevelsberg,

Falkenroth

Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, make use of the escape clause of section 264 (3)
HGB with regard to the publishing of the annual financial statements and preparation of a
management report for the financial year 2013. The subsidiary Schöneweiss & CO
Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Hagen, makes use of the escape clause of section
264 (3) HGB with regard to the preparation of a management report.

(7)

Consolidated financial statements

The annual financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft and of the
four consolidated subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements of
Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, and in the consolidated financial state ments of CIE
Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain, which prepares the consolidated financial statements for the
largest group of companies. The consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil and CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain are published at their respective locations.
Being the parent company of the German Mahindra group, Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft prepares consolidated financial statements for the smallest group of
companies in accordance with section 290 ff HGB. The consolidated financial statements of
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft are published in the electronic Federal Gazette.
Aalen, 25 January 2014
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft
Board of directors
Edmundo Fernandez

Burkard Rausch

Board member

Board member
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2. Shares

1. Loans to affiliated companies

III. Investments

Technical equipment and
2. machines
Other assets and office
3. equipment
Prepayments and assets under
4. construction

1. Land and buildings

II. Tangible fixed assets

2. Goodw ill

Purchased licences, industrial
property rightsand licences on
1. those rights

I. Intangible Assets

15,355,533

0
0
6,095,149

1,802,020

282,533,835

6,044,301

265,376,281

0

1,159,215

5,826,846

65,429

2,160,307

56,795,001

1,736,591

2,724,779

165,690,000

0

0
50,848

11,517,136

37,064,435

50,848

EUR

1,182,680

0

0

0

1,134,110

5,058

784,612

344,439

0

48,570

0

48,570

EUR

0

0

0

0

37,064,435

15,357,811

11,517,136

3,840,675

EUR

31-Dec-13

23,745,176

6,795,981

3,455,141

3,340,841

EUR

1-Apr-13

3,576,568

58,604,569
0

45,532,363

1,802,020

65,429

1,736,591

0
24,411

24,411

0 287,446,304 216,979,122

0

0

0

0 270,286,473 210,158,729

-3,404,434

433,873

9,289,585

0

0

0

8,215,649

460,000

3,215,381

4,129,689

410,579

1,073,936

863,785

210,151

EUR

7,536,464

7,198,210

338,254

EUR

8,559,552

8,061,996

497,556

EUR

24,155,756 12,908,679 13,319,258

7,821,347

4,318,926

3,502,421

EUR

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 31-Mar-13

Book Value

460,000

3,116,568

5,826,846

47,989,230 10,615,339 11,262,638

0
24,411

24,411

1,777,609

41,018

1,736,591

1,777,609

41,018

1,736,591

1,149,295 225,119,411 62,326,893 65,554,713

0

0

0

1,100,725 217,273,653 53,012,820 55,217,552

0

758,514

342,211 144,668,667 26,372,233 24,808,810

0

48,570

0

48,570

EUR

Additions Disposals

Am ortisation / Depreciation

2,970,561 171,040,901 140,881,189

EUR

Additions Disposals Reclassified

Historical Costs

3,838,397

EUR

1-Apr-13

Convenience Translation Rate 1 Euro = Rs. 85.34

Consolidated Fixed Assets Movem ent Schedule as per 31 Decem ber 2013

Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen

- For translation purposes only -

Attachm ent to the notes

100

232,533
184,361
98,927
515,821

14,139,985
4,846,885
497,263
22,647,212

0
0
520,160

148,201
5,584
153,784
24,111,437

2. Shares

0

0

0
4,339

982,872
1,310,441
3,163,079

4,339

327,569

1. Loans to affiliated companies

III. Investments

1. Land and buildings
Technical equipment and
2.
machines
Other assets and office
3.
equipment
Prepayments and assets under
4.
construction

II. Tangible fixed assets

I. Intangible Assets
1. Purchased licences, industrial
property rightsand licences on
those rights
2. Goodw ill

Rs.'000

1-Apr-13

100,930

0
0

0

96,785

432

66,959

29,394

0

0
4,145

4,145

0

0
0

0

0

-290,534

37,027

253,508

0

0
0

0

Reclassifica
Additions Disposals
tion
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.'000

Historical Costs

24,530,668

5,584
153,784

148,201

23,066,248

305,224

5,001,314

14,596,630

3,163,079

982,872
1,310,636

327,763

Rs.'000

31-Dec-13

18,516,998

2,083
2,083

0

17,934,946

0

3,885,732

12,022,801

2,026,413

294,862
579,969

285,107

Rs.'000

1-Apr-13

792,773

0
0

0

701,123

39,256

274,401

352,428

35,039

73,715
91,650

17,934

Rs.'000

98,081

0
0

0

93,936

0

64,732

29,204

0

0
4,145

4,145

Rs.'000

Additions Disposals

Book Value

19,211,691

2,083
2,083

0

18,542,134

39,256

4,095,401

12,346,024

2,061,452

368,577
667,474

298,897

Rs.'000

5,318,977

3,500
151,701

148,201

4,524,114

265,968

905,913

2,250,606

1,101,627

614,295
643,162

28,867

Rs.'000

5,594,439

3,500
151,701

148,201

4,712,266

497,263

961,154

2,117,184

1,136,666

688,011
730,472

42,461

Rs.'000

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 31-Mar-13

Amortisation / Depreciation

The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes
only:
Auditor’s opinion
To Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
We have audited the financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss account
and notes – together with the bookkeeping system of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, for the short financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The
maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with German commercial law are the responsibility of the company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, together with the
bookkeeping system based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB [German Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial
statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany] (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, materially affecting the presentation of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in accordance with
German principles of proper accounting are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of
the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the company and
expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence
supporting the disclosures in the books and records and the financial statements are examined
primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the financial statements report of Mahindra
Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, for the short financial year from 01 April 2013 to
31 December 2013 comply with legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the company in accordance with German
principles of proper accounting.
Düsseldorf, 24 January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer

Johnen
Wirtschaftsprüfer

[German Public Auditor]

[German Public Auditor]

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including
translations into other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer hereby in particular to section 328 HGB.
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Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Balance Sheet as per December 31, 2013

85 Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
ASSETS

December 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

March 31,
Euro
INR'000

A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1. Acquired licences, industrial property rights and
1. licences on those rights

62,387

5,324

137,438

11,729

39,108

3,337

53,290

4,548

II. Tangible fixed assets
1. Other assets and office equipment
III. Investments
1. Shares in affiliated companies

39,421,625 3,364,242 39,421,625 3,364,242

2. Loans to affiliated companies

1,736,591

148,201

1,736,591

148,201

41,259,712 3,521,104 41,348,944 3,528,719
B. Current assets
I. Receivables and other assets
1. Receivables due from affiliated companies
2. Other assets

9,523,957
87,783
9,611,740

II. Cash on hand and at banks

812,774 37,705,516 3,217,789
7,491

188,130

16,055

820,266 37,893,645 3,233,844

15,291,333 1,304,962

4,809,001

410,400

24,903,073 2,125,228 42,702,647 3,644,244
C. Prepaid expenses

338,315

28,872

504,280

43,035

D. Deferred Tax Assets

4,502,480

384,242

4,729,418

403,609

E. Net loss not covered by equity

4,188,175

357,419

0

0

75,191,754 6,416,864 89,285,289 7,619,607
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LI ABI LI TI ES

December 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

March 31,
Euro
INR'000

A. Equity
I.

Share capital

5,000,000

II. Additional paid in capital

426,700

5,000,000

426,700

16,000,000 1,365,440

9,000,000

768,060

III. Other profit reserves
1. Statutory reserves
2. Other profit reserves
IV. Balance Sheet Loss

500,000

42,670

500,000

42,670

4,240,982

361,925

4,240,982

361,925

-29,929,157 -2,554,154 -15,396,815 -1,313,964

V. Net loss not covered by equity

4,188,175

357,419

0

0

0

0

3,344,167

285,391

1. Tax provisions

276,431

23,591

383,000

32,685

2. Other provisions

731,221

62,402

160,238

13,675

1,007,653

85,993

543,238

46,360

B. Provisions

C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks

57,777,778 4,930,756 77,444,444 6,609,109

- thereof due within one year EUR
45.222.222,20; Rs. 3,859,264k
(PY EUR 57.222.222,24; Rs. 4883,344k)
2. Trade creditors

52,560

3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies

4,485

124,641

10,637

15,896,065 1,356,570

6,721,638

573,625

1,107,160

94,485

- thereof due within one year EUR 5.896.065,01;
Rs. 503,170k
(PY EUR 1.721.637,84; Rs. 146,925k)
4. Other liabilities

457,699

39,060

- thereof due within one year EUR 457.698,89;
Rs. 39,060k
(PY EUR 1.107.160,38; Rs. 94,485k)
- thereof from taxes EUR 398.812,82; Rs.
34,035k

74,184,101 6,330,871 85,397,884 7,287,855

(PY EUR 496.954,98; Rs. 42,410k)
75,191,754 6,416,864 89,285,289 7,619,607
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Profit and loss account for the short business year
from April 01, 2013 to December 31, 2013
85 Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees

1.

2.

April 01, 2013
to December 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000
1,687,571
144,017

Other operating income

Staff costs
a) Wages and salaries
b) Statutory welfare contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support

April 01, 2012
to March 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000
2,285,322
195,029

1,687,571

144,017

2,285,322

195,029

-881,841

-75,256

-553,372

-47,225

-10,591
-892,432

-904
-76,160

-14,236
-567,608

-1,215
-48,440

-104,913

-8,953

-164,779

-14,062

3.

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

4.

Other operating expenses

-1,575,698

-134,470

-2,184,146

-186,395

5.

Transfer of profit from subsidiaries
- thereof from affiliated companies
EUR 12.300.000,00; Rs. 1,049,682k (PY EUR 0,00)

12,300,000

1,049,682

0

0

6.

Income from loans of financial assets
- thereof from affiliated companies

89,625

7,649

118,956

10,152

904,567

77,196

2,169,256

185,124

-22,664,827

-1,934,216

-4,052,185

-345,813

-4,034,188

-344,278

-4,809,755

-410,465

-14,290,295

-1,219,534

-7,204,938

-614,869

-241,462

-20,606

-200,026

-17,070

-585

-50

-542

-46

13. Net result of the year

-14,532,342

-1,240,190

-7,405,507

-631,986

14. Transfer of net profit / loss of the year

-15,396,815

-1,313,964

-7,991,308

-681,978

15. Balance Sheet Loss

-29,929,157

-2,554,154

-15,396,815

-1,313,964

EUR 89.624,75; Rs. 7,649k (PY EUR 118.956,48,
10,152k)
7.

Other interest and similar income
- thereof from affiliated companies
EUR 904.566,54; Rs. 77,196k (PY EUR 2.169.256,12;
Rs. 185,124k)

8.

Transfer of losses from subsidiaries

9.

Interest and similar expenses
- thereof from affiliated companies EUR 340.291,85; Rs.
29,041k
(PY EUR 690.060,98; Rs. 58,890k)

10. Income from operations
11. Taxes on profits and income
- thereof resulting from deferred taxes
EUR 226.983,00; Rs. 19,371k (PY EUR 33.084,00;
Rs. 2,823k)
12. Other taxes
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Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen
Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as per December 31, 2013
85.34

Historical Costs
April 1,
2013
Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
Tangible Fixed Assets
Other assets and office equipment
Investments
Shares in affiliated companies
Loans to affiliated companies

Euro

Amortisation / Depreciation

Euro

Euro

Euro

Investments
Shares in affiliated companies
Loans to affiliated companies

Euro

Euro

Euro

Euro

Euro

15,680

0

969,103 815,985

90,730

0

906,715

62,387

137,438

150,621

0

0

150,621

97,331

14,182

0

111,513

39,108

53,290

0 39,421,625

0

0

0

0 39,421,625 39,421,625

0 1,736,591
0
0 41,158,216
0
0 42,277,940 913,316

0
0
104,913

0
0
0

0 1,736,591 1,736,591
0 41,158,216 41,158,216
1,018,229 41,259,712 41,348,944

39,421,625

0

1,736,591
41,158,216
42,262,260

0
0
15,680

Historical Costs

Tangible Fixed Assets
Other assets and office equipment

Euro

953,423

April 1,
2013
Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights

Book Value

December April 1,
December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
2013
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013

INR'000

Amortisation / Depreciation

Book Value

December April 1,
December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
2013
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013
INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

81,365

1,338

0

82,703

69,636

7,743

0

77,379

5,324

11,729

12,854

0

0

12,854

8,306

1,210

0

9,517

3,337

4,548

3,364,242

0

0

3,364,242

0

0

0

0

3,364,242

3,364,242

148,201
3,512,442
3,606,661

0
0
1,338

0
0
0

148,201
3,512,442
3,607,999

0
0
77,942

0
0
8,953

0
0
0

0
0
86,896

148,201
3,512,442
3,521,104

148,201
3,512,442
3,528,719
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- For translation purposes only Notes for the annual financial statements
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen

I.

Accounting principles and general information

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter
“PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the majority of
shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to
adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a
short business year of nine months has been established for the period from 1 April 2013 to
31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial register Ulm was made under HRB
501382 on 12 December 2013. The previous year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012
to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft (“company” or “MFE AG“) for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 have been prepared in Euros in accordance with the accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch
[German Commercial Code] and the supplementary provisions laid down in the AktG [Stock
Corporation Act].
The total cost method was used for presentation of the profit and loss account.
The company is classified as a small company in accordance with section 267 HGB. The
hedge clause of section 286 par. 4 HGB has been used.

II.

Accounting and valuation principles, currency conversion

Intangible fixed assets acquired for remuneration are measured at cost less scheduled
straight-line amortization. They are based on a useful life of normally three to five years.
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Tangible assets are recognised at acquisition or production costs less scheduled straightline depreciation. The useful life for other installations and equipment is between 3 and 5
years.
For low value items purchased until 31 December 2009 the company applies the German
tax law regulations section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act] as applicable until then.
Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs of up to EUR 150; INR 13 k during the
year of acquisition are directly deductible operating expenses. Low value items with acquisition costs of more than EUR 150; INR 13 k and up to EUR 1,000; INR 85k are added to a
compound item each year which is depreciated over five years and a disposal after five
years presumed.
For low value items purchased after 31 December 2009 the company applies the German
tax law regulations section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act] in its latest version.
Therefore, low value items with acquisition costs of up to EUR 410; INR 35k are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Furthermore, their direct disposal is assumed for the year of
their purchase. The change of valuation principles regarding the treatment of low value
items had no material impact on the assets, financial position and results of operation.

Financial assets are recognised at cost by considering the lower of cost or market principle.
As far as the value of fixed assets determined in accordance with the mentioned principles
is higher than the value they have on the balance sheet date, an unscheduled amortization
is made. If the reasons for amortizations made in previous years no longer exist, an appreciation in value is made.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets that are recognized at their nominal value, all
identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts.
Capitalized discounts and other expenses that are expenses after the balance sheet date
are disclosed as prepaid expenses. Capitalized discounts are dissolved over the loan duration.

Tax and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and uncertain obligations as per the
balance sheet date. They are recognised with the amount which is necessary according to
reasonable commercial assessment and cover the repayment values. For provisions with a
maturity of more than one year a discounting is made with the time congruent average market interest rate determined by Deutsche Bundesbank.
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Liabilities are stated at their repayment values.
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the day
of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate changes up to
the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange rate changes are only
considered with a maturity of a year or less.
For the partly hedging of a variable interest-bearing annuity loan amounting to EUR 28 million; INR 2,390 million a time congruent interest swap to the amount of EUR 20 million; INR
1,707 million was concluded with contract from 30 November 2010. The loan that values
with EUR 7,778 k; INR 663,775k as per the balance sheet date as well as the interest swap
that amounts to EUR 6,250 k; INR 533,375k as per the balance sheet date have a duration
up to 24 March 2015. The amount hedged with the interest swap was reduced congruently
to the loan redemption. As actually no interest risk results from the respectively hedged
amount over the whole duration of the contracts, both transactions were combined to a
valuation unit; it is a micro-hedge according to section 254 HGB. By concluding an interest
swap variable interests (6 months EURIBOR) from the borrowing are changed into fixed
loan interests in order to hedge possible interest rate change risks. Over the whole financing
duration up to the year 2015 the risks resulting from increasing interest obligations from the
loan are hedged with higher variable payments from the interest swap and vice versa. Thus,
there is a hedged risk amounting to EUR -108 k; INR 9,217k as per the balance sheet date
(PY EUR -283 k; INR -24,151k) which is reflected in the negative market value of the interest swap.
III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and to the profit and loss
account

(1)

Fixed assets

Movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets, as well as in investments, amortization
and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement schedule.
(2)

Share property

Name

Location

Shares in Equity

Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung

Aalen

100 %

EUR

19.612 k TEUR 0

*)

Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft
mit beschränkter Haftung

Gevelsberg

100 %

EUR

6.371 k TEUR 0

*)

109

Equity
31.12.2013

Result of Financial Year

Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH

Schalksmühle

100 %

EUR

2.349 k TEUR 0

*)

Schöneweiss & CO GmbH

Hagen

100 %

EUR

8.222 k TEUR 14.204 **)

*) There is a respective profit transfer agreement between the subsidiary (profit transferring company) and MFE AG.
**) There is a control contract between the subsidary as the dominated company and MFE.

There are loans to affiliated companies with a maturity of more than one year amounting to
EUR 1,737 k; INR 148,236k (PY EUR 1,737 k; INR 148,236k).
(3)

Receivables and other assets

Receivables due by group companies amount to EUR 9,524 k; INR 812,778k (PY EUR
37,706 k; INR 3,217,830k) and have a maturity of less than one year.
As in the previous year other assets have a maturity of less than one year. Prepaid expenses disclosed under assets include differences from discounts amounting to EUR 290 k;
INR 24,749k (PY EUR 457 k; INR 39,000k) and other miscellaneous items amounting to
EUR 48 k; INR 4,096k in total (EUR 47 k; INR 4,011k).
(4)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are based on the difference between the balance sheet approach according to commercial law and according to tax law for the following assets and liabilities
and it is based on tax losses carried forward.
2013
EUR k

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carried forward
Tangible fixed assets
Pension provisions
Other provisions

3,474

412
533
83
4,502

2013
INR k

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carried forward
Tangible fixed assets
Pension provisions
Other provisions

296,471

35,160
45,486
7,083
384,201

2012/2013
EUR k
3,477
528
500
224
4,729

2012/2013
INR k
296,727
45,060
42,670
19,116
403,573

Deferred taxes on other provisions originated mainly from provisions for partial retirement
and anniversaries.
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The valuation of deferred taxes is based on a corporate tax rate of 15.83% and a trade tax
rate of 13.94% (PY 13.97%). Deferred tax assets are made for group losses carried forward
existing as per the balance sheet date if a loss off-setting is expected within five years.
(5)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 5,000,000.00; INR 427 Million and is enrolled in the register of commerce at the district court of Ulm, register No. HRB 501382.
As per 31 March 2013 the share capital of EUR 5,000,000.00; INR 427 Million consists of
5,000,000 individual share certificates without nominal value (unchanged as per 31 March
2013). The shares are registered and grant the same rights.
The reconciliation from the annual profit to the balance sheet loss according to section 158
(1) AktG is as follows:

Annual loss
Loss carried forward from the previous year
Balance sheet loss

2013
EUR
-14,532,341.69
-15,396,815.01
-29,929,156.70

2012/2013
EUR
-7,405,507.27
-7,991,307.74
-15,396,815.01

Annual loss
Loss carried forward from the previous year
Balance sheet loss

2013
INR k
-1,240,190
-1,313,964
-2,554,154

2012/2013
INR k
-631,986
-681,978
-1,313,964

By agreement dated 27 July 2010, the company concluded a control agreement with
SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH. The obligation for MFE – being the controlling company – to
assume losses resulting from section 302 AktG has not been applied to the financial years
2010/2011, 2011/2012 and 2012/2013. Due to the existing shareholder structure, this error
does not have any other material consequences and so a correction was made on current
account in the reporting period. After this correction, the company’s equity is constituted as
follows:

Subscribed Capital as per 31 March 2013
Capital reserve as per 31 March 2013
Statutory and other reserves as per 31 March 2013
Retained earnings as per 31 March 2013
Equity as per 31 March 2013

+
+
+
+

EUR k
5,000
9,000
4,741
15,397
3,344

+
+
+
+

INR k
426,700
768,060
404,597
1,313,980
285,377

Transfer of net losses of SCGMBH for the
prior periods 2010/2011 to 2012/2013
- Net loss of the business year 2010/2011

-

1,572

-

134,154
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- Net loss of the business year 2011/2012
- Net loss of the business year 2012/2013
Equity after correction
Payments in capital reserves from shareholders
Up-front dividend paid by SCGMBH
Transfer of net losses of the operating subsidiaries
for the 9 month period ending 31 December 2013
Net Operating loss of the company for the 9 month
period ending 31 December 2013
Equity as per 31 December 2013 (including correction)

-

868
11,764
14,204
10,860

-

74,075
1,003,940
1,212,169
926,792

+
+

7,000
12,300

+
+

597,380
1,049,682

-

8,461

-

722,062

-

4,167
4,188

-

355,612
357,404




As at balance sheet date 31 December 2013 the company is over-indebted and discloses a
negative equity amounting to EUR 4,188 k; INR 357,404k. The cash position at b/s date
amounts to EUR 15,291 k; INR 1,304,934k. To avoid insolvency of the company and the
legal proceedings in the meaning of German Insolvency Act the parent company Autometal
S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, issued an unlimited letter of comfort to MFE by letter dated 21 January 2014. If necessary this letter of comfort ensures the ongoing financing of the company
and ensures that MFE is able fulfil its payment obligations towards its creditors whenever
such payments become due and thereby eliminates an imminent illiquidity of the company
including the group. Based on this management prepared the financial statements on the
assumption of going concern.
The company operates the cash management for all of the subsidiaries. In addition, profit
and loss transfer agreements exist with Gesenkschmiede Schneider Geselschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung,
Gevelsberg, as well as Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle. There is a control
contract with SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH. In the financial year, expenses from the transfer of losses amounted in total to EUR 22,665 k; INR 1,934,231k (PY EUR 4,052 k; INR
345,798k).
The financing of MFE is achieved from the company’s own operating mainly by factoring
facilities of subsidiaries, loans from banks and intercompany loans. As at 31.03.2013, the
short-term facilities due to banks amount to EUR 57,778 k; INR 4,930,775k (PY EUR
77,444 k; INR 6,609,071k); thereof loans amounting to EUR 45,222 k; INR 3,859,245k (PY
EUR 57,222 k; INR 4,883,325k) have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR 20
million; INR 1,707 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the
receivables by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI. By the first
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factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI amounting
to EUR 19,7 million; INR 1,681 million which have been paid out to the companies in July
2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold varied. The difference between the sold
receivables and the payments by ICICI have not been settled with ICICI. As per 31 December 2013 a volume of receivables amounting to EUR 14,144 k; INR 1,207,049k within the
group has been sold to ICICI. As per 31 December 2013 within the group trade receivables
net of the contractual deposit amounting to EUR 14.144 k; INR 1,207,049k were sold to
ICICI. The cash generated through factoring by the participating group companies is included in the group wide cash-management and transferred to MFE on a daily basis.
The changes of equity during 2013 and 2012/2013 are as follows:

As per 31 March 2012

Share capital

Capital reserves

Legal reserves

EUR
5,000,000.00

EUR
9,000,000.00

EUR
500,000.00

Other retained earnings
EUR
4,240,982.00

Annual loss
As per 31 March 2013

Balance sheet
profit/loss
EUR
-7,991,307.74
-7,405,507.27

5,000,000.00

9,000,000.00

500,000.00

4,240,982.00

-15,396,815.01

Payments in Capital reserve
7,000,000.00

Annual loss

-14,532,341.69

As per 31 December 2013

As per 31 March 2012
Annual loss
As per 31 March 2013
Payments in Capital reserve

5,000,000.00

16,000,000.0
0

500,000.00

4,240,982.00

-29,929,156.70

Share capital

Capital reserves

Legal reserves

Balance sheet
profit/loss

INR k

INR k

INR k

Other retained earnings
INR k

426,700

768,060

42,670

361,925

INR k
(681,978)
(631,986)

426,700

768,060

42,670

361,925

(1,313,964)

597,380

Annual loss

(1,240,190)

As per 31 December 2013
426,700

1,365,440
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42,670

361,925

(2,554,154)

Mahindra Forgings International Ltd., Mauritius, informed Mahindra Forgings Europe AG
that it holds the majority of votes in the company.
(6)

Amounts subject to distribution restrictions

The total amount of the distribution restriction in accordance with section 268 (8) HGB only
results from the capitalization of a backlog of deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 4,502
k, INR 384,201k (PY EUR 4,729 k; INR 403,573k).
(7)

Tax provisions

Tax provisions concern trade tax and corporate tax for the assessment period 2012.
(8)

Other provisions

Other provisions mainly refer to costs for termination payments and outstanding incoming
invoices.
(9)

Liabilities

Maturity

Total amount

Thereof
hedged with
liens and
similar rights

up to one year

1 to 5 years

31-Dec-13

EUR

EUR

EUR

EUR

Liabilities due to banks

45,222,222

12,555,556

57,777,778

57,777,778

Previous Year figures in '000

57,222

20,222

77,444

77,444

Trade liabilities

52,560

0

52,560

Previous Year figures in '000

125

0

125

Liabilities due to affiliated companies

5,896,065

10,000,000

15,896,065

Previous Year figures in '000

1,722

5,000

6,722

Other liabilities

457,699

0

457,699

Previous Year figures in '000

1,107

0

1,107

51,628,546

22,555,555

74,184,102

60,176

25,222

114

85,398

Kind and nature
of hedge

see below

usual retention of
titles

Maturity

Total amount

Thereof
hedged with
liens and
similar rights

up to one year

1 to 5 years

31-Dec-13

INR k

INR k

INR k

INR k

Liabilities due to banks

3,859,264

1,071,491

4,930,756

4,930,756

Previous Year figures

4,883,325

1,725,745

6,609,071

6,609,071

Trade liabilities

4,485

0

4,485

Previous Year figures

10,668

0

10,668

Liabilities due to affiliated companies

503,170

853,400

1,356,570

Previous Year figures

146,955

426,700

573,655

Other liabilities

39,060

0

39,060

Previous Year figures

94,471

0

94,471

4,405,980

1,924,891

6,330,871

5,135,420

2,152,445

7,287,865

Kind and nature
of hedge

see below
usual retention of
titles

The liabilities due to affiliated companies include a loan of EUR 10,000 k; INR 853,400k of
PIA, Bilbao/Spain. This loan has to be amortized till 15 December 2015.
There are no liabilities with duration of more than 5 years.
Within the loan agreement of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, with
ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010 the subsidiaries Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, Jeco-Jellinghaus Gesellschaft mit beschränkter
Haftung, Gevelsberg, Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, and Schöneweiss &
CO GmbH, Hagen, have granted intangible assets (intellectual property), tangible assets
(equipment), trade receivables and inventories as loan securities. Furthermore, the immovable property of the subsidiaries is charged with liens in this context. Additionally, there are
pledges of bank accounts and transfers of insurance claims to the mentioned banks. The
shares of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft are pledged and their intangible
assets (intellectual property) are granted as loan security.
(10)

Other operating income

Other operating income mainly includes income from the cost transfer to affiliated companies.
(11)

Depreciation, amortization

Scheduled amortization has been conducted on intangible fixed assets amounting to
EUR 91 k; INR 7,766k (PY EUR 139 k; INR 11,862k) and scheduled depreciation on tangi115



ble fixed assets amounts to EUR 14 k; INR 1,195k (PY EUR 26 k; INR 2,219k). There were
no unscheduled amortizations/depreciations during the financial year.
(12)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly include legal and consulting costs, bank fees, rental and
leasing expenses, IT costs, travel costs and allocations of affiliated companies.
(13)

Financial result

The financial result includes the transfer of profit or loss of subsidiaries within the existing
profit transfer agreements and control contract (EUR -22,665 k; INR 1,934,231k; PY EUR
4,052 k; INR 345,798k) as well as the interest result (EUR -3,040 k; INR 259,434k; PY EUR
-2,522 k; INR -215,227k). The transfer of losses contains the transfer of losses of
SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH for prior periods of 2010/2011 to 2012/2013 amounting to
EUR 14,204 k (see chapter III. (5) Equity). Income from loans of financial assets includes
dividends paid by SCHÖNEWEISS & CO amounting to EUR 12,300 k; INR 1,049,682k.

(14)

Taxes on profits and income

Taxes from profits and income of the financial year result from deferred taxes with EUR 227
k; INR 19,372k (PY EUR 33 k; INR 2,816k) and from income tax for previous years with
EUR 15 k; INR 1,280k (PY EUR 167 k; INR 14,252k).

IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

The company is jointly and severally liable for the rental obligations of Gesenkschmiede
Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, towards Scholz AG, Essingen.
The rental agreement has a duration up to 2031; the current annual rent amounts to EUR
862 k; INR 73,563k.
Within the scope of the loan agreements of SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen, with IKB
AG, Düsseldorf, from 26 July / 07 August 2006 including the last supplementary agreement
dated 04 September 2013, the company has given a directly enforceable guarantee limited.
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The liabilities of SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH due to banks amount to EUR 2,188 k; INR
186,724k.
The risk of availment from these contingencies is regarded as improbable in upcoming
years due to the planned continuance of the business of all affiliated companies.
(2)

Off balance sheet items

Leasing businesses are concluded to the usual extent. There are no further material off balance sheet items.
(3)

Other financial liabilities
31 December 2013 31 March 2013
EUR k
EUR k

Rental and leasing costs (software, other
assets and office equipment)

461

642

31 December
2013

31 March
2013

INR k

INR k

39,342

54,788

Rental and leasing costs (software, other
assets and office equipment)

(4)

Average number of staff

During the reporting period the company did not employ any own employees besides the
board of directors.
(5)

Board of directors and supervisory board

During the reporting year members of the board of directors were:
- Mr. Thomas Körner, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Schwelm (until 31 December 2013)
- Mr. Burkard Rausch, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Warendorf
- Mr. Edmundo Fernandes, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Director of CIE Automotive S.A.
(located in Bilbao/Spain) Vitoria/Spain (as of 07 November 2013)
During the reporting period member of the supervisory board were:
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- Mr. Hemant Luthra, Member of the Group Executive Board of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd.
(located in Mumbai/India), Mumbai/India, chairman, (until 04 October 2013)
- Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera Barandiaran, CEO of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain),
Antizapan der Zaragoza/México, chairman, (as of 05 October 2013)
- Mr. Oliver Scholz, director of Scholz AG (located in Essingen), Aalen, vice-chairman, (until 04 October 2013)
- Mr. Zhooben Bhiwandiwala, Vice President Corporate Affairs of Mahindra & Mahindra
Ltd. (located in Mumbai/Indien), Mumbai/Indien (until 04 October 2013)
- Mr. Sanjay Joglekar, Chief Financial Officer of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd.; Systech Sector
(located in Mumbai/Indien), Mumbai/Indien
- Mr. Rajeev Dubey, Member of the Board of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. (located in Mumbai/Indien), Mumbai/Indien, (until 04 October 2013)
- Mr. Krishnan Ramaswami, Chief Executive Officer of Mahindra Forgings Limited (located
in Pune/Indien, Pune/Indien
- Mr. Antonio Maria Pradera Jáuregui, Chairman of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain), Getxo/Spain, (as of 05 October 2013)
- Mr. Ignacio Artazcoz Barrena, Chief Financial Officer of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain), Getxo/Spain, (as of 05 October 2013)
- Mr. Pedro Echegaray Larrea, Representative of CIE Automotive (located in Bilbao/Spain), Sao Paulo/Brasil, (as of 05 October 2013)
The supervisory board abandoned all past and future payments in 2010.
(6)

Final declaration of the controlled company report

With regard to the legal transactions and measures disclosed in the report on relations to
affiliated companies our company has received an appropriate compensation for each legal
transaction according to the circumstances which were known to us at the time the legal
transactions were made or the measures were taken and it was not disadvantaged by the
measures taken or omitted.
(7)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the smallest
group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil as well
as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain, for the
largest group of companies.
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Due to section 325 (3) HGB the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings
Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated financial
statements of CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil,
are published at their respective locations.
Aalen, 24 Januar 2014
Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft
Board of directors
Edmundo Fernandez

Burkard Rausch

Member of the board of directors

Member of the board of directors
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The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes
only:
Auditor’s opinion:
We have audited the financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss
account and notes – together with the bookkeeping system of Gesenkschmiede
Schneider

Gesellschaft

mit

beschränkter

Haftung,

Aalen,

for

the

short financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The maintenance of
the books and records and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with German commercial law are the responsibility of the company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, together with
the bookkeeping system based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317
HGB [German Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the
audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit such that misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in accordance with German principles of proper
accounting are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the company and expectations as to
possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the
evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records, the financial statements
are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the financial statements of Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, for the short
financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 comply with legal require-
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ments and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the company in accordance with German principles of proper accounting.
Up to date of the finalization of our audit, we could not asses if the requirements to
make use of the ease of section 264 paragraph 3 HGB were fulfilled, due to the fact
that the requirements of section 264 paragraph 3 no. 3 und no. 4a can only be fulfilled at a later date. With inclusion of the company in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as per

31 December 2013, a

note in the consolidated notes that the company makes use of the easement and publication of the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as
per 31 December 2013 in the federal gazette these conditions are fulfilled.

Düsseldorf, 24 January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

Gohlke
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including
translations into other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer hereby in particular to section 328 HGB.

121

Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2013
Convienence Translation Euro 1 = INR 85.34
ASSETS

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1. Purchased licences, industrial property rights
1. and licenses on those rights

132,649.56

11,320.31

159,480.53

13,610.07

II. Tangible fixed assets
910,130.64 10,888,801.94

929,250.36

2. Technical equipment and machines

1. Land and buildings

10,664,760.31
7,292,535.87

622,345.01

5,551,160.88

473,736.07

3. Other assets and office equipment

2,253,338.35

192,299.89

2,416,431.00

206,218.22

773,584.31

66,017.69

383,025.68

32,687.41

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

20,984,218.84 1,790,793.24 19,239,419.50 1,641,892.06
III. Investments
1. Shares

41,017.96

3,500.47
0.00

41,017.96

3,500.47

21,157,886.36 1,805,614.02 19,439,917.99 1,659,002.60

B. Current assets
I.

Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies

2,997,247.66

255,785.12

3,553,516.70

303,257.12

2. Work in progress

8,518,525.04

726,970.93

8,620,065.60

735,636.40

3,810,668.28

325,202.43

3,143,652.30

268,279.29

3. Finished goods and merchandise

15,326,440.98 1,307,958.47 15,317,234.60 1,307,172.80
II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade debtors

1,364,402.73

2. Receivables due from affiliated companies

2,069,109.76

116,438.13 12,147,944.72 1,036,705.60
176,577.83

116,192.49

9,915.87

3. Other assets

1,539,340.20

131,367.29

836,931.82

71,423.76

4,972,852.69

424,383.25 13,101,069.03 1,118,045.23

- thereof due more than one year EUR 127.537,72; Rs. 10,884k
(PY EUR 138.975,74; Rs. 11,860k)
0
III. Cash on hand and at banks

3,243.25

276.78
0.00

3,237.02

276.25
0.00

20,302,536.92 1,732,618.50 28,421,540.65 2,425,494.28
C. Prepaid expenses

49,425.00

4,217.93
38,426.00
3,279.27
0.00
41,509,848.28 3,542,450.45 47,899,884.64 4,087,776.16
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LI ABI LI TI ES

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

A. Equity
I.

12,271,005.15

1,047,207.58

12,271,005.15

II. Other profit reserves

Share capital

1,027,608.14

87,696.08

1,027,608.14

1,047,207.58
87,696.08

III. Retained earnings

6,313,483.90

538,792.72

6,313,483.90

538,792.72

19,612,097.19

1,673,696.37

19,612,097.19

1,673,696.37

1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

7,228,340.00

616,866.54

6,973,909.00

595,153.39

2. Other provisions

6,085,080.00

519,300.73

5,417,834.82

462,358.02

13,313,420.00

1,136,167.26

12,391,743.82

1,057,511.42

1,866,189.68

159,260.63

0.00

0.00

6,396,009.35

545,835.44

6,740,770.80

575,257.38

0.00

0.00

8,805,125.74

751,429.43

321,982.06

27,477.95

342,122.09

29,196.70

8,584,181.09

732,574.01

15,888,018.63

1,355,883.51

150.00

12.80

8,025.00

684.85

41,509,848.28

3,542,450.45

47,899,884.64

4,087,776.16

B. Provisions

C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks
- thereof due within one year EUR 1.866.189,68; Rs. 159,261k
(PY EUR 0,00)
2. Trade creditors
- thereof due within one year EUR 6.396.009,35; Rs. 545,835k
(PY EUR 6.740.770,80; Rs. 575,257k)
3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due within one year
EUR 0,00 (PY EUR 8.805.125,74; Rs.751,429k)
4. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 279.186,06; Rs. 23,826k
(PY EUR 251.793,37; Rs. 21,488k)
- thereof for social security EUR 41.912,35; Rs. 3,577k
(PY EUR 47.159,06; Rs. 4,025k)
- thereof due within one year EUR 302.424,12; Rs. 25,809k
(PY EUR 322.741,21; Rs. 27,543k)

D. Deferred Income
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Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Profit and loss account for the period April 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013
Convienence Translation Euro 1 = INR 85.34
April 1 - December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000
1.

Sales

2.

Euro

31-Mar-13

Rs'000

72,954,825.53

6,225,964.81

95,721,862.22

8,168,903.72

Change in unfinshed and finished goods

631,455.61

53,888.42

-2,590,364.46

-221,061.70

3.

Other own work capitalized

606,220.00

51,734.81

875,090.00

74,680.18

4.

Other operating income
- income from currency conversion
- others

0.00
528,411.11
528,411.11

0.00
45,094.60
45,094.60

821.66
709,242.37
710,064.03

70.12
60,526.74
60,596.86

5.

Cost of materials
a) Cost of raw materials and supplies
b) Expenses for received services

75,249,323.36

6,421,777.26

94,716,651.79

8,083,119.06

-35,309,342.20
-6,037,691.34
-41,347,033.54

-3,013,299.26
-515,256.58
-3,528,555.84

-46,208,263.55
-6,296,813.15
-52,505,076.70

-3,943,413.21
-537,370.03
-4,480,783.25

6.

Personnel costs
a) Wages and salaries
b) Statutory social contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support
- thereof expenses for optional support
EUR 367.138,25; Rs. 31,332k (PY EUR
260.058,37; Rs. 22,193k)

-17,693,261.77

-21,982,510.99

-1,875,987.49

-3,821,368.04

-1,509,942.96
0.00
-326,115.55

-4,874,995.34

-416,032.10

-21,514,629.81

-1,836,058.51

-26,857,506.33

-2,292,019.59

-2,230,257.99

-190,330.22

-3,156,988.28

-269,417.38

0.00
-11,093,977.31
-11,093,977.31

0.00
-946,760.02
-946,760.02

-4,778.59
-12,539,741.38
-12,544,519.97

-407.80
-1,070,141.53
-1,070,549.33

432.00

36.87

1,030.43

87.94

0.00
594.59
594.59

0.00
50.74
50.74

1,762.74
2,698.32
4,461.06

150.43
230.27
380.71

-307,836.07
-336,825.47
-644,661.54
-643,634.95

-26,270.73
-28,744.69
-55,015.42
-54,927.81

-417,656.81
-376,269.59
-793,926.40
-788,434.91

-35,642.83
-32,110.85
-67,753.68
-67,285.04

-1,580,210.24

-134,855.14

-1,135,874.40

-96,935.52

-35,749.10

-3,050.83

-48,053.44

-4,100.88

2,144,370.45

183,000.57

1,183,927.84

101,036.40

528,411.11

45,094.60

0.00

0.00

7.

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

8.

Other operating expenses
- expenses from currency conversion
- others

9.

Profits from companies wherein investments are held

10. Other interest and similar income
- income from discounting
- others

11. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof from affiliated companies EUR 251.885,89; Rs.
21,496k
(PY EUR 374.142,21; Rs. 31,929k)
- expenses from discounting
- others

12. Income from operations
13. Other taxes
14. Transfer of net profit / loss of the year
15. Net result of the year
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Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as at 31 December 2013
Historical Costs
March 31,
2013
I. Intangible Assets
Purchased licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights

Euro

Amortisation / Depreciation

Reclassific
Disposals
Additions
ation
Euro

Euro

Euro

December
31,
2013

March 31,
2013

Additions

Euro

Euro

Euro

Book Value

Disposals

December
31,
2013

December
31,
2013

March 31,
2013

Euro

Euro

Euro

Euro

900,971

29,850

0

0

930,821

741,490

56,681

0

798,171

132,650

159,481

1. Land and buildings

17,574,473

0

0

0 17,574,473

6,685,671

224,042

0

6,909,713

10,664,760

10,888,802

2. Technical equipment and machines

63,171,476

2,592,058

190,007

91,630 65,861,911

3. Other assets and office equipment

6,681,729

740,576

5,177

383,026
87,810,704

585,742
3,918,376

65,429
88,777,104

0
3,948,226

II. Tangible Fixed Assets

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

III. Investments
Shares

I. Intangible Assets
Purchased licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
II. Tangible Fixed Assets
1. Land and buildings
2. Technical equipment and machines
3. Other assets and office equipment
4. Prepayments and assets under construction

III. Investments
Shares

March 31,
2013
Rs'000

76,889

57,620,315

1,040,690

91,630

58,569,375

7,292,536

5,551,161

7,069,982

4,265,298

908,846

357,500

4,816,643

2,253,338

2,416,431

-195,184
0

0
773,584
449,130 91,279,950

0
68,571,284

0
2,173,577

0
449,130

0
70,295,731

773,584
20,984,219

383,026
19,239,420

0
0

0
65,429
449,130 92,276,200

24,411
69,337,186

0
2,230,258

0
449,130

24,411
71,118,314

41,018
21,157,886

41,018
19,439,918

357,500

Historical Costs
Reclassific
December
Disposals
ation
31,
Rs'000
Rs'000
Rs'000
Rs'000

Additions

2,547

0

0

79,436

March 31,
2013
Rs'000

Amortisation / Depreciation
Additions

Disposals

Rs'000

Rs'000

63,279

4,837

0

December
31,
Rs'000

Book Value
December
March 31,
31,
2013
Rs'000
Rs'000

68,116

11,320

13,610

1,499,806

0

0

0

1,499,806

570,555

19,120

0

589,675

910,131

929,250

5,391,054

221,206

16,215

7,820

5,620,655

4,917,318

88,812

7,820

4,998,310

622,345

473,736

570,219

63,201

442

30,509

603,352

364,001

77,561

30,509

411,052

192,300

206,218

32,687
7,493,765

49,987
334,394

-16,657
0

0
38,329

66,018
7,789,831

0
5,851,873

0
185,493

0
38,329

0
5,999,038

66,018
1,790,793

32,687
1,641,892

5,584
7,576,238

0
336,942

0
0

0
38,329

5,584
7,874,851

2,083
5,917,235

0
190,330

0
38,329

2,083
6,069,237

3,500
1,805,614

3,500
1,659,003
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Appendix 4.3
- For translation purposes only Notes
to the financial statements for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen

I.

Accounting principles and general information about the financial statements

1.

General information

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the
majority of shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of
the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of nine months has been established
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial
register Ulm was made under HRB 500098 on 18 November 2013. The previous
year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are
therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements of Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung, Aalen ("the company" or "GSA"), for the reporting period from 1
April 2013 to 31 December 2013 have been prepared in EUR in accordance with the
accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch [German Commercial Code] and the
supplementary provisions laid down in the GmbHG [German Act on Limited Liability
Companies].
As regards disclosures of remuneration paid to current members of the management
board pursuant to section 285 (9a) German Commercial Code, our company has applied the safeguard clause in accordance with section 286 (4) German Commercial
Code, as it would be possible to identify the remuneration paid to each person, given
the limited number of individuals involved in our company. The company uses the
easements of section 264 (3) HGB and does not prepare a management report.
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The total cost method was used for presentation of the profit and loss account.
The company is classified as a large-sized company in accordance with section 267
German Commercial Code.
II.

Balance sheet and valuation principles

Purchased intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost, after deducting straight line
method amortisation. Generally a useful life of 3 to 5 years is applied for intangible assets.
Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition or production costs, after deducting
straight line method depreciation. Capitalized production costs include direct material
costs and direct labor costs plus an appropriate allocation of overhead costs and depreciation. In general, a useful life of 25 to 50 years is applied to buildings, a useful life
of 4 to 15 years is applied to technical equipment and machines and a useful life of 3
to 14 years is applied to other assets and office equipment.
For low value items which were purchased until December 31, 2009 the company applies the German tax law regulations section 6 (2) and section 6 (2a) EStG [German
Income Tax Act] valid until December 31, 2009. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs up to EUR 150 are fully depreciated and disposed in the year of acquisition. Low value items with acquisition costs of EUR 150 to EUR 1000 are added to a
compound item which is depreciated over a period of 5 years and then disposed.
For low value items purchased after December 31, 2009 the company applies the
German tax law regulations section 6 (2) EStG [German Income Tax Act] valid as of
January 1, 2010. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs up to EUR 410
are fully depreciated and disposed in the year of acquisition. The change of the valuation method regarding the low value items had no substantial influence on the income,
financial and earnings situation.
Investments are valued at acquisition costs or at the lower values to be attributed.
If the book value of fixed assets determined by the above principles is higher than the
value that is ascribed to them at the balance sheet date, fixed assets are impaired. As
far as the reasons for prior year’s impairments no longer exist the original values are
reinstated.
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Raw materials and supplies are valued at the average costs or the lower market price.
Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts of overhead costs as well as depreciation are considered in addition to directly attributable direct material costs, direct labor costs and special direct costs. According to the principles of valuation the lower of the value of production costs or the
sales prices less expenses to be accrued until completion has been recognized.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets that are recognized at their nominal value,
all identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit
risk is appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables about 1 %
(PY 1 %). Non-interest-bearing and low-interest-bearing receivables with maturities of
more than one year are discounted.
Expenditures that are expenses after the balance sheet date are accounted for as
prepaid expenses.
The option to recognize deferred tax assets for expected recovery of taxes is not applicable because of fiscal unity. The deferred tax rate would be 28.4 % (PY 28.4 %).
For valuation of Provisions for Pensions see disclosures regarding the balance sheet.
Provisions for taxation and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and undetermined obligations at balance sheet date. They are recognized at the amount being
necessary according to reasonable commercial assessment covering the repayment
amount of the identifiable obligations. Anticipated inflation rates and changes in costs
are recognized. Provisions with a maturity of more than one year are discounted at the
average market rate determined by Deutsche Bundesbank.
Liabilities are stated at the repayment values.
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the
day of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate
changes up to the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange
rate changes are only considered with a maturity of one year or less.

128

III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and the profit and loss
account

(1)

Fixed Assets

Movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets, as well as in investments, amortization and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement schedule.
The company’s land and buildings are collateralized with land charges to provide securities for loan commitments of the shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen. Furthermore, fixed assets have been assigned by way of
collateral to provide securities for these loan commitments.
Additions to historic costs of other assets and office equipment contain additions of
self-produced tools (forging dies) with a total value of EUR 606 k; Rs. 51,716 k
(PY EUR 908 k; Rs. 77,489 k).
Investments comprise shares in Wohnungsbau Aalen GmbH, Aalen, and Aalener
Thermal-Mineralbad GmbH & Co. KG, Aalen.
(2)

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies amounting to EUR 2,997 k; Rs.255,764
k (PY EUR 3,554 k; Rs. 303,298k), work in progress amounting to EUR 8,519 k; Rs.
727,011 k (PY EUR 8,620 k; Rs. 735,631 k), finished products and merchandise
amounting to EUR 3,811 k; Rs. 325,231 (PY EUR 3,144 k; Rs. 268,309 k).
(3)

Receivables and other assets

There are trade debtors amounting to EUR 1,364 k; Rs. 116,404 k (PY EUR 12,148
k; Rs. 1,036,710 k). They have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the receivables
by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI. By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI amounting
to EUR 19.7 million; Rs. 1,681 million which have been paid out to the companies in
July 2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied. The difference to
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receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with ICICI. As
per 31 December 2013 the company sold trade receivables to ICICI amounting to
EUR 5,969 k; Rs. 509,394 k. The difference between received cash from ICICI and
receivables sold by the company as per 31 December 2013 amounts to EUR 1,862 k;
Rs. 158,903 k and has been disclosed as liabilities to banks.
Receivables due from affiliated companies consists of other assets amounting to EUR
1,933; Rs. 164,962 (PY EUR – k; Rs. 0 k) and trade debtors amounting to EUR 136 k;
Rs. 11,606 k (PY EUR 116 k; Rs. 9,899 k). Receivables from affiliated companies include receivables from shareholders amounting to EUR 1,933 k; Rs. 164,962 k (PY
EUR – k; Rs. 0 k).
Other assets with a maturity of more than one year amount to EUR 128 k; Rs. 10,924
k (PY EUR 139 k; Rs. 11,862 k).
(4)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 12,271,005.15; Rs. 1,047,208 k It is enrolled in the
commercial register at the district court of Ulm, register No. HRB 500098. Since the financial year 2007/2008 a profit and loss transfer agreement between GSA and the
sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is effective.
Since the financial year 2010/2011 a domination agreement between GSA and Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is effective.
The disclosed retained earnings arose due to the first-time application of BilMoG in the
financial year 2010/2011.
(5)

Provisions for pensions

The provisions for pensions are determined according to the projected unit credit
method. The mortality tables of Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck “2005 G” have been considered for the calculation of pension provisions. The calculation is based on the following
assumptions:
31 December 2013
Discount rate
(according to section 253 (2) p. 2 HGB)

4.90 %

Wages and salary increase

2.70 %

Pension increase
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(for pensions that are linked to tariff development
as of 1. May 2014)

2.20 %

(for pensions that are linked to tariff development
as of 2015)

2.00 %

Pension increase (other)

1.00 %

During the financial year 2012/2013 following amounts have been allocated to pension
provisions:
Personnel costs amounting to EUR 362 k; Rs. 30,893 k (PY EUR 240 k; Rs. 20,482 k)
and interest income amounting to EUR 263 k; Rs. 22,444 k (PY EUR 347 k; Rs.
29,613 k). An amount of EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k (PY EUR 63 k; Rs. 5,376 k) has been
released.
(6)

Tax provisions

The company did not set up a tax provisions concern because of the existent profit
and loss agreement with Mahindra Forgins Europe AG.
(7)

Other provisions

Provisions for early retirement and jubilee payments are as well calculated on the basis of the mortality tables „2005 G“ based on actuarial valuation.

Provisions for early retirement were accounted for on the basis of a discount rate of
3.41 % with an average duration of one year.
Provisions for jubilee obligations were accounted for according to the projected unit
credit method on the basis of a discount rate of 4.90 % for an overall maturity of 15
years among the projected unit credit method.
Other provisions mainly refer to provisions for early retirement (EUR 920 k; Rs. 78,513
k; PY EUR 1,030 k; Rs. 87,900 k), for outstanding vacation (EUR 919; Rs. 78,427 k;
PY EUR 763 k; Rs. 65,114 k), for flexi-time entitlements (EUR 1,334 k; Rs. 113,844 k;
PY EUR 707 k; Rs. 60,335 k), for other personnel provisions and accruals (EUR 940
k; Rs. 80,220 k; PY EUR 1,615 k; Rs. 137,824 k), for warranties and for contract
losses (EUR 649 k; Rs. 55,386 k; PY EUR 761 k; Rs.64,944 k), as well as for outstanding invoices (EUR 559 k; Rs. 47,705 k; PY EUR 98 k; Rs. 8,363 k).
In the balance sheet the provision for early retirement obligations is disclosed net of
the early retirement asset:
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31 December 2013
EUR k
Early retirement obligation (DBO)

920

claim for refund German Federal Labour Market Authority

6

Net early retirement provision

920
31-Dec-13
Rs k

Early retirement obligation (DBO)

78,513

claim for refund German Federal Labour Market Authority

512

Net early retirement provision

(8)

78,513

Liabilities

Information about liabilities arises out of the following chart:

Maturity

Liabilities due to
banks
Trade creditors

Liabilities due to
affiliated companies
hereof due to
shareholders
Other liabilities

Total amount

up to 1 year

more than 5
years

31 December 2013

EUR

EUR

EUR

1,866,189.68
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k )

1,866,189.68
(PY EUR - k)

6,396,009.35
(PY EUR 6,741 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

6,396,009.35
(PY EUR 6,741 k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

302,424.12
(PY EUR 323 k)

5,469.65
(PY EUR 5 k)

321,982.06
(PY EUR 342 k)

8,564,623.15
(PY EUR 15,869 k)

5,469.65
(PY EUR 5 k)

8,584,181.09
(PY EUR 15,888 k)
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Secured
by liens
and
similar
rights

Nature
and form
of the
security

kEUR
1,862

land
charges
Usual
title
retentions

Maturity

Total amount

up to 1 year

more than 5 years

31-Dec-13

Rs. K

Rs. K

Rs. K

Secured
by liens
and similar rights

Nature
and form
of the
security

Rs. K

Liabilities due to banks
Trade creditors

-

159,261
(PY Rs - k)

Liabilities due to affiliated
companies
- thereof due to shareholders
Other liabilities

(PY Rs - k)
0

159,261
(PY Rs - k)

545,835
(PYRs. 575,277 k)

(PY Rs - k)

545,835
(PYRs. 575,277 k)

0

0

0

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

(PY Rs - k)

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

0

0

0

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

(PY Rs - k)

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

467

26,275.65

(PY Rs. 427 k)

(PY Rs 29,186 k)

467

731,371.72

25,809
(PY Rs. 27,565 k)
730,905
(PY Rs. 1,354,260
k)

(PYRs. 467 k)

158,903
land
charges

Usual title
retentions

(PY Rs. 1,355,882
k)

Liabilities due to affiliated companies include other liabilities amounting to EUR 0 k;
Rs. 0 k (PY EUR 8,805 k; Rs. 751,419 k).
(9)

Sales
2013
EUR k

2012/2013
EUR k

Forging parts

36,122

50,089

Manufacturing

33,470

40,471

305

743

3,477

5,019

-419

-600

72,955

95,722

67,041

87,944

6,333

8,378

-419

-600

72,955

95,722

Segmentation according to business operations:

Forging dies and tools
Other products/other sales
Sales discounts
Segmentation by region:
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
Sales discounts
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2013
Rs k

2012/2013
Rs k

Segmentation according to business operations:
Forging parts
Manufacturing
Forging dies and tools
Other products/other sales
Sales discounts

Segmentation by region:
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
Sales discounts

3,082,651
2,856,330
26,029
296,727

4,274,595
3,453,795
63,408
428,321

(35,757)
6,225,980

(51,204)
8,168,915

5,721,279
540,458

7,505,141
714,979

(35,757)
6,225,980

(51,204)
8,168,915

(10) Other operating income
Other operating income includes income from other financial years at an amount of
EUR 112 k; Rs. 9,558 k (PY EUR 310 k; Rs. 26,455 k). Those are related to the release of other provisions (EUR 97 k; Rs. 8,278 k; PY EUR 247 k; Rs. 21,079 k), the
release of pension provisions (EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k; PY EUR 63 k; Rs. 5,376 k).
Other operating income also includes intercompany cross-charging revenues
(EUR 241 k; Rs. 20,567 k; PY EUR 325 k; Rs. 27,736 k).
(11) Depreciation, amortization
Scheduled amortisation and depreciation have been conducted on intangible assets
amounting to EUR 57 k; Rs. 4.864 k (PY EUR 77 k; Rs. 6,571 k) and on tangible fixed
assets amounting to EUR 2,173 k; Rs. 185,444 k (PY EUR 3,080 k; Rs. 262,847 k).
During the financial year no extraordinary depreciation has been accounted for.
(12) Other operating expenses
There are no other operating expenses related to other periods. Expenses related to
other periods in the previous year include losses from disposal of assets (EUR 5 k;
Rs. 427 k).
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(13) Financial result
Income from investments consists of dividends from Thermal-Mineralbad GmbH & Co.
KG, Aalen. Interest and similar expenses mainly include interest on liabilities due to
the sole shareholder, Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen (EUR 252
k; Rs. 21,506 k; PY EUR 374 k; Rs. 31,917 k) and expenses from discounting longterm provisions and liabilities (EUR 308 k; Rs. 26,285 k; PY EUR 418 k; Rs. 35,672 k)
and interest expenses relating to the factoring (EUR 85 k; Rs. 7,254 k; PY EUR – k;
Rs. -k).
IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

Within the scope of the loan agreements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, with ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010 including supplementary
agreements, the company has granted intangible assets (intellectual property),
equipment, trade receivables and inventory as loan securities. Furthermore, there are
bank account pledges as well as transfers of insurance claims to the mentioned
banks. The company’s real estate is encumbered with land charges in the same context. The liabilities of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, due to
banks amount to EUR 57.8 million as per the balance sheet date (PY EUR 77.4 million; Rs. 6,605 million).
The risk of availment from these contingencies for liabilities of Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is regarded as improbable in upcoming years due to
going concern of all affiliated companies.

(2)

Off Balance Sheet items

During the financial year 2010/2011 a supplementary collective agreement was concluded, according to which holiday and Christmas bonuses to employees were suspended for the year 2010 for cost cutting purposes. As a compensation the agreement
includes the commitment of the company to pay a special bonus to the employees depending on predefined positive financial results from the beginning of the financial
year 2012/2013. By an agreement the special bonus due in January 2014 is explained
to be settled by a bonus paid in July 2012. Regarding the factoring agreement concluded with ICICI Bank during the short business year, please see section III. (3).
There are no further material off balance sheet items.
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(3)

Other financial liabilities
31 December
2013
EUR k

Rental and leasing costs (buildings, machinery,
other assets and office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at reporting
date

31 March
2013
EUR k

27,465

31,619

381

564

27,846

32,183

31-Dec-13
Rs k

31-Mar-13
Rs k

Rental and leasing costs (buildings, machinery,
other assets and office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at reporting
date

(4)

2,343,863

2,698,365

32,515

48,132

2,376,378

2,746,497

Average number of staff
2013

Employees
Factory workers
thereof part-time staff

(5)

2012/2013

70

69

345

342

416

411

12

10

Management Board

During the reporting period, the Management Board comprised:
-

Mr. Thomas Körner, Chairman of the management board, Chief Executive Officer
of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft (Aalen), Schwelm, (until 3 December 2013)

-

Mr. Ernst-Peter Schmitz, Managing Director Technology, Abtsgmünd
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-

Burkard Rausch (Finance, member of the board of Mahindra Forgings Europe
AG), Warendorf, (as of 3 December 2013)

-

Edmundo Fernandez (CEO, member of the board of MFE AG, Engineer), Vitoria /
Spain (as of 3 December 2013)

Only one member of the board of management received a salary from the company,
therefore the easement of section 286 (4) HGB is applied.

(6)

Payments to former members of the Management Board

Pension payment to former members of the management board and their surviving
dependants amounts to EUR 62 k; Rs. 5,291 k (PY EUR 88 k; Rs. 7,510 k) in 2013.
Pension provisions for those persons amount to EUR 955 k; Rs. 81,500 k (PY EUR
420 k; Rs. 35,843 k).

(7)

Auditors' fees

The disclosure of the auditors' fees is included in the consolidated financial statements
as of 31 December 2013 of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen.
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(8)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the
smallest group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, as well as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A.,
Bilbao/Spain, for the largest group of companies.
Due to section 325 (3) HGB the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotiv S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil, are published at their respective locations.

Aalen, 24 January 2014
Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Management board

Edmundo Fernandez
Managing Director

Ernst-Peter Schmitz
Managing Director

138

Burkhard Rausch
Managing Director

The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes
only:
Auditor’s opinion:
We have audited the financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss
account and notes – together with the bookkeeping system of Gesenkschmiede
Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, for the
short financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The maintenance of
the books and records and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with German commercial law are the responsibility of the company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, together with
the bookkeeping system based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317
HGB [German Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the
audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit such that misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in accordance with German principles of proper
accounting are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the company and expectations as to
possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the
evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records, the financial statements
are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the financial statements of Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen, for the short
financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 comply with legal require-
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ments and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the company in accordance with German principles of proper accounting.
Up to date of the finalization of our audit, we could not asses if the requirements to
make use of the ease of section 264 paragraph 3 HGB were fulfilled, due to the fact
that the requirements of section 264 paragraph 3 no. 3 und no. 4a can only be fulfilled at a later date. With inclusion of the company in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as per
31 December 2013, a
note in the consolidated notes that the company makes use of the easement and publication of the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as
per 31 December 2013 in the federal gazette these conditions are fulfilled.

Düsseldorf, 24 January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

Gohlke
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including
translations into other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer hereby in particular to section 328 HGB.
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Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2013
Convienence Translation Euro 1 = INR 85.34
ASSETS

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1. Purchased licences, industrial property rights
1. and licenses on those rights

132,649.56

11,320.31

159,480.53

13,610.07

II. Tangible fixed assets
910,130.64 10,888,801.94

929,250.36

2. Technical equipment and machines

1. Land and buildings

10,664,760.31
7,292,535.87

622,345.01

5,551,160.88

473,736.07

3. Other assets and office equipment

2,253,338.35

192,299.89

2,416,431.00

206,218.22

773,584.31

66,017.69

383,025.68

32,687.41

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

20,984,218.84 1,790,793.24 19,239,419.50 1,641,892.06
III. Investments
1. Shares

41,017.96

3,500.47
0.00

41,017.96

3,500.47

21,157,886.36 1,805,614.02 19,439,917.99 1,659,002.60

B. Current assets
I.

Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies

2,997,247.66

255,785.12

3,553,516.70

303,257.12

2. Work in progress

8,518,525.04

726,970.93

8,620,065.60

735,636.40

3. Finished goods and merchandise

3,810,668.28

325,202.43

3,143,652.30

268,279.29

15,326,440.98 1,307,958.47 15,317,234.60 1,307,172.80
II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade debtors

1,364,402.73

2. Receivables due from affiliated companies

2,069,109.76

116,438.13 12,147,944.72 1,036,705.60
176,577.83

116,192.49

9,915.87

3. Other assets

1,539,340.20

131,367.29

836,931.82

71,423.76

4,972,852.69

424,383.25 13,101,069.03 1,118,045.23

- thereof due more than one year EUR 127.537,72; Rs. 10,884k
(PY EUR 138.975,74; Rs. 11,860k)
0
III. Cash on hand and at banks

3,243.25

276.78
0.00

3,237.02

276.25
0.00

20,302,536.92 1,732,618.50 28,421,540.65 2,425,494.28
C. Prepaid expenses

49,425.00
4,217.93
38,426.00
3,279.27
0.00
41,509,848.28 3,542,450.45 47,899,884.64 4,087,776.16
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LI ABI LI TI ES

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000

A. Equity
I.

12,271,005.15

1,047,207.58

12,271,005.15

II. Other profit reserves

Share capital

1,027,608.14

87,696.08

1,027,608.14

1,047,207.58
87,696.08

III. Retained earnings

6,313,483.90

538,792.72

6,313,483.90

538,792.72

19,612,097.19

1,673,696.37

19,612,097.19

1,673,696.37

1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

7,228,340.00

616,866.54

6,973,909.00

595,153.39

2. Other provisions

6,085,080.00

519,300.73

5,417,834.82

462,358.02

13,313,420.00

1,136,167.26

12,391,743.82

1,057,511.42

1,866,189.68

159,260.63

0.00

0.00

6,396,009.35

545,835.44

6,740,770.80

575,257.38

0.00

0.00

8,805,125.74

751,429.43

321,982.06

27,477.95

342,122.09

29,196.70

8,584,181.09

732,574.01

15,888,018.63

1,355,883.51

150.00

12.80

8,025.00

684.85

41,509,848.28

3,542,450.45

47,899,884.64

4,087,776.16

B. Provisions

C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks
- thereof due within one year EUR 1.866.189,68; Rs. 159,261k
(PY EUR 0,00)
2. Trade creditors
- thereof due within one year EUR 6.396.009,35; Rs. 545,835k
(PY EUR 6.740.770,80; Rs. 575,257k)
3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due within one year
EUR 0,00 (PY EUR 8.805.125,74; Rs.751,429k)
4. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 279.186,06; Rs. 23,826k
(PY EUR 251.793,37; Rs. 21,488k)
- thereof for social security EUR 41.912,35; Rs. 3,577k
(PY EUR 47.159,06; Rs. 4,025k)
- thereof due within one year EUR 302.424,12; Rs. 25,809k
(PY EUR 322.741,21; Rs. 27,543k)

D. Deferred Income
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Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Profit and loss account for the period April 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013
Convienence Translation Euro 1 = INR 85.34
April 1 - December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs'000
1.

Sales

2.

Euro

31-Mar-13

Rs'000

72,954,825.53

6,225,964.81

95,721,862.22

8,168,903.72

Change in unfinshed and finished goods

631,455.61

53,888.42

-2,590,364.46

-221,061.70

3.

Other own work capitalized

606,220.00

51,734.81

875,090.00

74,680.18

4.

Other operating income
- income from currency conversion
- others

0.00
528,411.11
528,411.11

0.00
45,094.60
45,094.60

821.66
709,242.37
710,064.03

70.12
60,526.74
60,596.86

5.

Cost of materials
a) Cost of raw materials and supplies
b) Expenses for received services

75,249,323.36

6,421,777.26

94,716,651.79

8,083,119.06

-35,309,342.20
-6,037,691.34
-41,347,033.54

-3,013,299.26
-515,256.58
-3,528,555.84

-46,208,263.55
-6,296,813.15
-52,505,076.70

-3,943,413.21
-537,370.03
-4,480,783.25

6.

Personnel costs
a) Wages and salaries
b) Statutory social contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support
- thereof expenses for optional support
EUR 367.138,25; Rs. 31,332k (PY EUR
260.058,37; Rs. 22,193k)

-17,693,261.77

-21,982,510.99

-1,875,987.49

-3,821,368.04

-1,509,942.96
0.00
-326,115.55

-4,874,995.34

-416,032.10

-21,514,629.81

-1,836,058.51

-26,857,506.33

-2,292,019.59

-2,230,257.99

-190,330.22

-3,156,988.28

-269,417.38

0.00
-11,093,977.31
-11,093,977.31

0.00
-946,760.02
-946,760.02

-4,778.59
-12,539,741.38
-12,544,519.97

-407.80
-1,070,141.53
-1,070,549.33

432.00

36.87

1,030.43

87.94

0.00
594.59
594.59

0.00
50.74
50.74

1,762.74
2,698.32
4,461.06

150.43
230.27
380.71

-307,836.07
-336,825.47
-644,661.54
-643,634.95

-26,270.73
-28,744.69
-55,015.42
-54,927.81

-417,656.81
-376,269.59
-793,926.40
-788,434.91

-35,642.83
-32,110.85
-67,753.68
-67,285.04

-1,580,210.24

-134,855.14

-1,135,874.40

-96,935.52

-35,749.10

-3,050.83

-48,053.44

-4,100.88

2,144,370.45

183,000.57

1,183,927.84

101,036.40

528,411.11

45,094.60

0.00

0.00

7.

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

8.

Other operating expenses
- expenses from currency conversion
- others

9.

Profits from companies wherein investments are held

10. Other interest and similar income
- income from discounting
- others

11. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof from affiliated companies EUR 251.885,89; Rs.
21,496k
(PY EUR 374.142,21; Rs. 31,929k)
- expenses from discounting
- others

12. Income from operations
13. Other taxes
14. Transfer of net profit / loss of the year
15. Net result of the year
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Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as at 31 December 2013
Historical Costs
March 31,
2013
I. Intangible Assets
Purchased licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights

Euro

Amortisation / Depreciation

Reclassific
Disposals
Additions
ation
Euro

Euro

December
31,
2013

March 31,
2013

Additions

Euro

Euro

Euro

Euro

Book Value

Disposals

December
31,
2013

December
31,
2013

March 31,
2013

Euro

Euro

Euro

Euro

900,971

29,850

0

0

930,821

741,490

56,681

0

798,171

132,650

159,481

1. Land and buildings

17,574,473

0

0

0 17,574,473

6,685,671

224,042

0

6,909,713

10,664,760

10,888,802

2. Technical equipment and machines

63,171,476

2,592,058

190,007

91,630 65,861,911

3. Other assets and office equipment

6,681,729

740,576

5,177

383,026
87,810,704

585,742
3,918,376

65,429
88,777,104

0
3,948,226

II. Tangible Fixed Assets

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

III. Investments
Shares

I. Intangible Assets
Purchased licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
II. Tangible Fixed Assets
1. Land and buildings
2. Technical equipment and machines
3. Other assets and office equipment
4. Prepayments and assets under construction

III. Investments
Shares

March 31,
2013
Rs'000

57,620,315

1,040,690

91,630

58,569,375

7,292,536

5,551,161

7,069,982

4,265,298

908,846

357,500

4,816,643

2,253,338

2,416,431

-195,184
0

0
773,584
449,130 91,279,950

0
68,571,284

0
2,173,577

0
449,130

0
70,295,731

773,584
20,984,219

383,026
19,239,420

0
0

0
65,429
449,130 92,276,200

24,411
69,337,186

0
2,230,258

0
449,130

24,411
71,118,314

41,018
21,157,886

41,018
19,439,918

357,500

Historical Costs
Reclassific
December
Disposals
ation
31,
Rs'000
Rs'000
Rs'000
Rs'000

Additions

March 31,
2013
Rs'000

Amortisation / Depreciation
Additions

Disposals

Rs'000

Rs'000

December
31,
Rs'000

Book Value
December
March 31,
31,
2013
Rs'000
Rs'000

76,889

2,547

0

0

79,436

63,279

4,837

0

68,116

11,320

13,610

1,499,806

0

0

0

1,499,806

570,555

19,120

0

589,675

910,131

929,250

5,391,054

221,206

16,215

7,820

5,620,655

4,917,318

88,812

7,820

4,998,310

622,345

473,736

570,219

63,201

442

30,509

603,352

364,001

77,561

30,509

411,052

192,300

206,218

32,687
7,493,765

49,987
334,394

-16,657
0

0
38,329

66,018
7,789,831

0
5,851,873

0
185,493

0
38,329

0
5,999,038

66,018
1,790,793

32,687
1,641,892

5,584
7,576,238

0
336,942

0
0

0
38,329

5,584
7,874,851

2,083
5,917,235

0
190,330

0
38,329

2,083
6,069,237

3,500
1,805,614

3,500
1,659,003
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Appendix 4.3
- For translation purposes only Notes
to the financial statements for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen

I.

Accounting principles and general information about the financial statements

1.

General information

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the
majority of shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of
the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of nine months has been established
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial
register Ulm was made under HRB 500098 on 18 November 2013. The previous
year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are
therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements of Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung, Aalen ("the company" or "GSA"), for the reporting period from 1
April 2013 to 31 December 2013 have been prepared in EUR in accordance with the
accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch [German Commercial Code] and the
supplementary provisions laid down in the GmbHG [German Act on Limited Liability
Companies].
As regards disclosures of remuneration paid to current members of the management
board pursuant to section 285 (9a) German Commercial Code, our company has applied the safeguard clause in accordance with section 286 (4) German Commercial
Code, as it would be possible to identify the remuneration paid to each person, given
the limited number of individuals involved in our company. The company uses the
easements of section 264 (3) HGB and does not prepare a management report.
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The total cost method was used for presentation of the profit and loss account.
The company is classified as a large-sized company in accordance with section 267
German Commercial Code.
II.

Balance sheet and valuation principles

Purchased intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost, after deducting straight line
method amortisation. Generally a useful life of 3 to 5 years is applied for intangible assets.
Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition or production costs, after deducting
straight line method depreciation. Capitalized production costs include direct material
costs and direct labor costs plus an appropriate allocation of overhead costs and depreciation. In general, a useful life of 25 to 50 years is applied to buildings, a useful life
of 4 to 15 years is applied to technical equipment and machines and a useful life of 3
to 14 years is applied to other assets and office equipment.
For low value items which were purchased until December 31, 2009 the company applies the German tax law regulations section 6 (2) and section 6 (2a) EStG [German
Income Tax Act] valid until December 31, 2009. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs up to EUR 150 are fully depreciated and disposed in the year of acquisition. Low value items with acquisition costs of EUR 150 to EUR 1000 are added to a
compound item which is depreciated over a period of 5 years and then disposed.
For low value items purchased after December 31, 2009 the company applies the
German tax law regulations section 6 (2) EStG [German Income Tax Act] valid as of
January 1, 2010. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs up to EUR 410
are fully depreciated and disposed in the year of acquisition. The change of the valuation method regarding the low value items had no substantial influence on the income,
financial and earnings situation.
Investments are valued at acquisition costs or at the lower values to be attributed.
If the book value of fixed assets determined by the above principles is higher than the
value that is ascribed to them at the balance sheet date, fixed assets are impaired. As
far as the reasons for prior year’s impairments no longer exist the original values are
reinstated.
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Raw materials and supplies are valued at the average costs or the lower market price.
Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts of overhead costs as well as depreciation are considered in addition to directly attributable direct material costs, direct labor costs and special direct costs. According to the principles of valuation the lower of the value of production costs or the
sales prices less expenses to be accrued until completion has been recognized.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets that are recognized at their nominal value,
all identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit
risk is appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables about 1 %
(PY 1 %). Non-interest-bearing and low-interest-bearing receivables with maturities of
more than one year are discounted.
Expenditures that are expenses after the balance sheet date are accounted for as
prepaid expenses.
The option to recognize deferred tax assets for expected recovery of taxes is not applicable because of fiscal unity. The deferred tax rate would be 28.4 % (PY 28.4 %).
For valuation of Provisions for Pensions see disclosures regarding the balance sheet.
Provisions for taxation and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and undetermined obligations at balance sheet date. They are recognized at the amount being
necessary according to reasonable commercial assessment covering the repayment
amount of the identifiable obligations. Anticipated inflation rates and changes in costs
are recognized. Provisions with a maturity of more than one year are discounted at the
average market rate determined by Deutsche Bundesbank.
Liabilities are stated at the repayment values.
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the
day of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate
changes up to the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange
rate changes are only considered with a maturity of one year or less.
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III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and the profit and loss
account

(1)

Fixed Assets

Movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets, as well as in investments, amortization and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement schedule.
The company’s land and buildings are collateralized with land charges to provide securities for loan commitments of the shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe
Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen. Furthermore, fixed assets have been assigned by way of
collateral to provide securities for these loan commitments.
Additions to historic costs of other assets and office equipment contain additions of
self-produced tools (forging dies) with a total value of EUR 606 k; Rs. 51,716 k
(PY EUR 908 k; Rs. 77,489 k).
Investments comprise shares in Wohnungsbau Aalen GmbH, Aalen, and Aalener
Thermal-Mineralbad GmbH & Co. KG, Aalen.
(2)

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies amounting to EUR 2,997 k; Rs.255,764
k (PY EUR 3,554 k; Rs. 303,298k), work in progress amounting to EUR 8,519 k; Rs.
727,011 k (PY EUR 8,620 k; Rs. 735,631 k), finished products and merchandise
amounting to EUR 3,811 k; Rs. 325,231 (PY EUR 3,144 k; Rs. 268,309 k).
(3)

Receivables and other assets

There are trade debtors amounting to EUR 1,364 k; Rs. 116,404 k (PY EUR 12,148
k; Rs. 1,036,710 k). They have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the receivables
by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI. By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI amounting
to EUR 19.7 million; Rs. 1,681 million which have been paid out to the companies in
July 2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied. The difference to
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receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with ICICI. As
per 31 December 2013 the company sold trade receivables to ICICI amounting to
EUR 5,969 k; Rs. 509,394 k. The difference between received cash from ICICI and
receivables sold by the company as per 31 December 2013 amounts to EUR 1,862 k;
Rs. 158,903 k and has been disclosed as liabilities to banks.
Receivables due from affiliated companies consists of other assets amounting to EUR
1,933; Rs. 164,962 (PY EUR – k; Rs. 0 k) and trade debtors amounting to EUR 136 k;
Rs. 11,606 k (PY EUR 116 k; Rs. 9,899 k). Receivables from affiliated companies include receivables from shareholders amounting to EUR 1,933 k; Rs. 164,962 k (PY
EUR – k; Rs. 0 k).
Other assets with a maturity of more than one year amount to EUR 128 k; Rs. 10,924
k (PY EUR 139 k; Rs. 11,862 k).
(4)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 12,271,005.15; Rs. 1,047,208 k It is enrolled in the
commercial register at the district court of Ulm, register No. HRB 500098. Since the financial year 2007/2008 a profit and loss transfer agreement between GSA and the
sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is effective.
Since the financial year 2010/2011 a domination agreement between GSA and Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is effective.
The disclosed retained earnings arose due to the first-time application of BilMoG in the
financial year 2010/2011.
(5)

Provisions for pensions

The provisions for pensions are determined according to the projected unit credit
method. The mortality tables of Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck “2005 G” have been considered for the calculation of pension provisions. The calculation is based on the following
assumptions:
31 December 2013
Discount rate
(according to section 253 (2) p. 2 HGB)

4.90 %

Wages and salary increase

2.70 %

Pension increase
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(for pensions that are linked to tariff development
as of 1. May 2014)

2.20 %

(for pensions that are linked to tariff development
as of 2015)

2.00 %

Pension increase (other)

1.00 %

During the financial year 2012/2013 following amounts have been allocated to pension
provisions:
Personnel costs amounting to EUR 362 k; Rs. 30,893 k (PY EUR 240 k; Rs. 20,482 k)
and interest income amounting to EUR 263 k; Rs. 22,444 k (PY EUR 347 k; Rs.
29,613 k). An amount of EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k (PY EUR 63 k; Rs. 5,376 k) has been
released.
(6)

Tax provisions

The company did not set up a tax provisions concern because of the existent profit
and loss agreement with Mahindra Forgins Europe AG.
(7)

Other provisions

Provisions for early retirement and jubilee payments are as well calculated on the basis of the mortality tables „2005 G“ based on actuarial valuation.

Provisions for early retirement were accounted for on the basis of a discount rate of
3.41 % with an average duration of one year.
Provisions for jubilee obligations were accounted for according to the projected unit
credit method on the basis of a discount rate of 4.90 % for an overall maturity of 15
years among the projected unit credit method.
Other provisions mainly refer to provisions for early retirement (EUR 920 k; Rs. 78,513
k; PY EUR 1,030 k; Rs. 87,900 k), for outstanding vacation (EUR 919; Rs. 78,427 k;
PY EUR 763 k; Rs. 65,114 k), for flexi-time entitlements (EUR 1,334 k; Rs. 113,844 k;
PY EUR 707 k; Rs. 60,335 k), for other personnel provisions and accruals (EUR 940
k; Rs. 80,220 k; PY EUR 1,615 k; Rs. 137,824 k), for warranties and for contract
losses (EUR 649 k; Rs. 55,386 k; PY EUR 761 k; Rs.64,944 k), as well as for outstanding invoices (EUR 559 k; Rs. 47,705 k; PY EUR 98 k; Rs. 8,363 k).
In the balance sheet the provision for early retirement obligations is disclosed net of
the early retirement asset:
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31 December 2013
EUR k
Early retirement obligation (DBO)

920

claim for refund German Federal Labour Market Authority

6

Net early retirement provision

920
31-Dec-13
Rs k

Early retirement obligation (DBO)

78,513

claim for refund German Federal Labour Market Authority
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Net early retirement provision

(8)

78,513

Liabilities

Information about liabilities arises out of the following chart:

Maturity

Liabilities due to
banks
Trade creditors

Liabilities due to
affiliated companies
hereof due to
shareholders
Other liabilities

Total amount

up to 1 year

more than 5
years

31 December 2013

EUR

EUR

EUR

1,866,189.68
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k )

1,866,189.68
(PY EUR - k)

6,396,009.35
(PY EUR 6,741 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

6,396,009.35
(PY EUR 6,741 k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

0.00
(PY EUR - k)

0.00
(PY EUR 8,805 k)

302,424.12
(PY EUR 323 k)

5,469.65
(PY EUR 5 k)

321,982.06
(PY EUR 342 k)

8,564,623.15
(PY EUR 15,869 k)

5,469.65
(PY EUR 5 k)

8,584,181.09
(PY EUR 15,888 k)
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Secured
by liens
and
similar
rights

Nature
and form
of the
security

kEUR
1,862

land
charges
Usual
title
retentions

Maturity

Total amount

up to 1 year

more than 5 years

31-Dec-13

Rs. K

Rs. K

Rs. K

Secured
by liens
and similar rights

Nature
and form
of the
security

Rs. K

Liabilities due to banks
Trade creditors

-

159,261
(PY Rs - k)

Liabilities due to affiliated
companies
- thereof due to shareholders
Other liabilities

(PY Rs - k)
0

159,261
(PY Rs - k)

545,835
(PYRs. 575,277 k)

(PY Rs - k)

545,835
(PYRs. 575,277 k)

0

0

0

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

(PY Rs - k)

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

0

0

0

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

(PY Rs - k)

(PY Rs. 751,419 k)

467

26,275.65

(PY Rs. 427 k)

(PY Rs 29,186 k)

467

731,371.72

25,809
(PY Rs. 27,565 k)
730,905
(PY Rs. 1,354,260
k)

(PYRs. 467 k)

158,903
land
charges

Usual title
retentions

(PY Rs. 1,355,882
k)

Liabilities due to affiliated companies include other liabilities amounting to EUR 0 k;
Rs. 0 k (PY EUR 8,805 k; Rs. 751,419 k).
(9)

Sales
2013
EUR k

2012/2013
EUR k

Forging parts

36,122

50,089

Manufacturing

33,470

40,471

305

743

3,477

5,019

-419

-600

72,955

95,722

67,041

87,944

6,333

8,378

-419

-600

72,955

95,722

Segmentation according to business operations:

Forging dies and tools
Other products/other sales
Sales discounts
Segmentation by region:
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
Sales discounts
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2013
Rs k

2012/2013
Rs k

Segmentation according to business operations:
Forging parts
Manufacturing
Forging dies and tools
Other products/other sales
Sales discounts

Segmentation by region:
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
Sales discounts

3,082,651
2,856,330
26,029
296,727

4,274,595
3,453,795
63,408
428,321

(35,757)
6,225,980

(51,204)
8,168,915

5,721,279
540,458

7,505,141
714,979

(35,757)
6,225,980

(51,204)
8,168,915

(10) Other operating income
Other operating income includes income from other financial years at an amount of
EUR 112 k; Rs. 9,558 k (PY EUR 310 k; Rs. 26,455 k). Those are related to the release of other provisions (EUR 97 k; Rs. 8,278 k; PY EUR 247 k; Rs. 21,079 k), the
release of pension provisions (EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k; PY EUR 63 k; Rs. 5,376 k).
Other operating income also includes intercompany cross-charging revenues
(EUR 241 k; Rs. 20,567 k; PY EUR 325 k; Rs. 27,736 k).
(11) Depreciation, amortization
Scheduled amortisation and depreciation have been conducted on intangible assets
amounting to EUR 57 k; Rs. 4.864 k (PY EUR 77 k; Rs. 6,571 k) and on tangible fixed
assets amounting to EUR 2,173 k; Rs. 185,444 k (PY EUR 3,080 k; Rs. 262,847 k).
During the financial year no extraordinary depreciation has been accounted for.
(12) Other operating expenses
There are no other operating expenses related to other periods. Expenses related to
other periods in the previous year include losses from disposal of assets (EUR 5 k;
Rs. 427 k).
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(13) Financial result
Income from investments consists of dividends from Thermal-Mineralbad GmbH & Co.
KG, Aalen. Interest and similar expenses mainly include interest on liabilities due to
the sole shareholder, Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen (EUR 252
k; Rs. 21,506 k; PY EUR 374 k; Rs. 31,917 k) and expenses from discounting longterm provisions and liabilities (EUR 308 k; Rs. 26,285 k; PY EUR 418 k; Rs. 35,672 k)
and interest expenses relating to the factoring (EUR 85 k; Rs. 7,254 k; PY EUR – k;
Rs. -k).
IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

Within the scope of the loan agreements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, with ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010 including supplementary
agreements, the company has granted intangible assets (intellectual property),
equipment, trade receivables and inventory as loan securities. Furthermore, there are
bank account pledges as well as transfers of insurance claims to the mentioned
banks. The company’s real estate is encumbered with land charges in the same context. The liabilities of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, due to
banks amount to EUR 57.8 million as per the balance sheet date (PY EUR 77.4 million; Rs. 6,605 million).
The risk of availment from these contingencies for liabilities of Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is regarded as improbable in upcoming years due to
going concern of all affiliated companies.

(2)

Off Balance Sheet items

During the financial year 2010/2011 a supplementary collective agreement was concluded, according to which holiday and Christmas bonuses to employees were suspended for the year 2010 for cost cutting purposes. As a compensation the agreement
includes the commitment of the company to pay a special bonus to the employees depending on predefined positive financial results from the beginning of the financial
year 2012/2013. By an agreement the special bonus due in January 2014 is explained
to be settled by a bonus paid in July 2012. Regarding the factoring agreement concluded with ICICI Bank during the short business year, please see section III. (3).
There are no further material off balance sheet items.
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(3)

Other financial liabilities
31 December
2013
EUR k

Rental and leasing costs (buildings, machinery,
other assets and office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at reporting
date

31 March
2013
EUR k

27,465

31,619

381

564

27,846

32,183

31-Dec-13
Rs k

31-Mar-13
Rs k

Rental and leasing costs (buildings, machinery,
other assets and office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at reporting
date

(4)

2,343,863

2,698,365

32,515

48,132

2,376,378

2,746,497

Average number of staff
2013

Employees
Factory workers
thereof part-time staff

(5)

2012/2013

70

69

345

342

416

411

12

10

Management Board

During the reporting period, the Management Board comprised:
-

Mr. Thomas Körner, Chairman of the management board, Chief Executive Officer
of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft (Aalen), Schwelm, (until 3 December 2013)

-

Mr. Ernst-Peter Schmitz, Managing Director Technology, Abtsgmünd
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-

Burkard Rausch (Finance, member of the board of Mahindra Forgings Europe
AG), Warendorf, (as of 3 December 2013)

-

Edmundo Fernandez (CEO, member of the board of MFE AG, Engineer), Vitoria /
Spain (as of 3 December 2013)

Only one member of the board of management received a salary from the company,
therefore the easement of section 286 (4) HGB is applied.

(6)

Payments to former members of the Management Board

Pension payment to former members of the management board and their surviving
dependants amounts to EUR 62 k; Rs. 5,291 k (PY EUR 88 k; Rs. 7,510 k) in 2013.
Pension provisions for those persons amount to EUR 955 k; Rs. 81,500 k (PY EUR
420 k; Rs. 35,843 k).

(7)

Auditors' fees

The disclosure of the auditors' fees is included in the consolidated financial statements
as of 31 December 2013 of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen.

156

(8)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the
smallest group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, as well as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A.,
Bilbao/Spain, for the largest group of companies.
Due to section 325 (3) HGB the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotiv S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil, are published at their respective locations.

Aalen, 24 January 2014
Gesenkschmiede Schneider Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Aalen
Management board

Edmundo Fernandez
Managing Director

Ernst-Peter Schmitz
Managing Director
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Burkhard Rausch
Managing Director



The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes
only:
Auditor’s opinion:
We have audited the annual financial statements – comprising the balance sheet, the profit
and loss account and the notes to the annual financial statements– together with the
bookkeeping system of Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH, Gevelsberg, for the short financial year
from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The maintenance of the books and records and
the preparation of the annual financial statements in accordance with German commercial
law are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements, together with the bookkeeping system based on our
audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB
[German Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public
Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
such that misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, materially affecting the presentation
of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in
accordance with German principles of proper accounting are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of
the company and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the
determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records and the
financial statements are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
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In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the financial statements of JecoJellinghaus GmbH, Gevelsberg, for the short financial year from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 comply with legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets,
financial position and results of operations in accordance with German principles of proper
accounting.
Up to date of the finalization of our audit, we could not asses if the requirements to make
use of the ease of section 264 paragraph 3 HGB were fulfilled, due to the fact that the requirements of section 264 paragraph 3 Nr. 3 und Nr. 4a can only be fulfilled at a later date.
With inclusion of the company in the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as per 31 December 2013, a note in the consolidated notes that the company makes use of the easement and publication of the consolidated financial statements of
Mahindra Forgings Europe AG in the federal gazette these conditions are fulfilled.
Düsseldorf, 24 January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer

Carstens
Wirtschaftsprüfer

[German Public Auditor]

[German Public Auditor]

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including
translations into other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer hereby in particular to section 328 HGB.
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Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH, Gevelsberg
Balance Sheet as per December 31, 2013

85
Convienence Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
ASSETS

Euro

Dec 31, 2013
INR'000

Euro

Mar 31, 2013
INR'000

A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1. Acquired licences, industrial property rights and
1. licences on those rights

17,921.17

1,529.39

34,508.27

2,944.94

1. Land and buildings

209,081.08

17,842.98

236,046.49

20,144.21

2. Technical equipment and machines

738,845.92

63,053.11

1,068,736.58

91,205.98

2,002,407.16

170,885.43

2,196,466.31

187,446.43

121,103.02

10,334.93

86,931.28

7,418.72

3,071,437.18

262,116.45

3,588,180.66

306,215.34

3,089,358.35

263,645.84

3,622,688.93

309,160.27

II. Tangible fixed assets

3. Other assets and office equipment
4. Prepayments and assets under construction

B. Current assets
I.

Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies

651,186.42

55,572.25

952,859.82

81,317.06

2. Work in progress

2,919,589.48

249,157.77

2,771,369.73

236,508.69

3. Finished goods and merchandise

1,239,929.47

105,815.58

1,210,662.11

103,317.90

4,810,705.37

410,545.60

4,934,891.66

421,143.65

370,506.60

II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade debtors

1,004,994.68

85,766.25

4,341,535.06

2. Receivables due from affiliated companies

3,382,475.78

288,660.48

38,895.92

3,319.38

939,422.75

80,170.34

291,880.97

24,909.12

5,326,893.21

454,597.07

4,672,311.95

398,735.10

530,099.38

45,238.68

30,790.58

2,627.67

10,667,697.96

910,381.34

9,637,994.19

822,506.42

12,374.89

1,056.07

22,877.79

1,952.39

13,769,431.20

1,175,083.26

13,283,560.91

1,133,619.09

3. Other assets
- thereof due more than one year EUR 16.741,90; Rs.
1,429k
(PY EUR 15.864,30; Rs. 1,354k)

III. Cash on hand and at banks

C. Prepaid expenses
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LI ABI LI TI ES

Dec 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

Mar 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

A. Equity
I.

Share capital

II. Other profit reserves
III. Revenue reserve

5,130,000.00

437,794.20

5,130,000.00

41,962.20

3,581.05

41,962.20

437,794.20
3,581.05

1,199,006.26

102,323.19

1,199,006.26

102,323.19

6,370,968.46

543,698.45

6,370,968.46

543,698.45

2,151,175.00

183,581.27

2,160,335.00

184,362.99

201,000.00

17,153.34

201,000.00

17,153.34

1,482,903.00

126,550.94

1,812,608.00

154,687.97

3,835,078.00

327,285.56

4,173,943.00

356,204.30

1,151,485.85

98,267.80

0.00

0.00

2,060,580.54

175,849.94

1,545,744.79

131,913.86

203,283.11

17,348.18

1,076,363.61

91,856.87

148,035.24

12,633.33

116,541.05

9,945.61

3,563,384.74

304,099.25

2,738,649.45

233,716.34

13,769,431.20

1,175,083.26

13,283,560.91

1,133,619.09

B. Provisions
1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations
2. Tax provisions
3. Other provisions

C. Liabilities
1. Bank liabilities
- thereof due within one year EUR 1.151.485,85; Rs. 98,268k
(PY EUR 0,00)
2. Trade creditors
- thereof due within one year EUR 2.060.580,54; Rs. 175,850k
(PY EUR 1.545.744,79; Rs 131,914k)
3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due within one year EUR 203.283,11; Rs. 17,348k
(PY EUR 1.076.363,61; Rs. 91,857k)
4. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 112.727,72; Rs. 9,620k
(PY EUR 81.865,35; Rs. 6,986k)
- thereof due within one year EUR 148.035,24; Rs. 12,633k
(PY EUR 116.541,05); Rs. 9,945k
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Profit and loss account for the short business year from April 01, 2013
to December 31, 2013
85
Convienence Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees

1.

Sales

2.

Apr 01, 2013
to
Dec 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

Apr 01, 2012
to
Mar 31, 2013
Euro
INR'000

27,746,371.95

2,367,875.38

33,025,554.09

2,818,400.79

Change in unfinshed and finished goods

177,636.23

15,159.48

-822,033.53

-70,152.34

3.

Other own work capitalized

299,219.78

25,535.42

811,182.43

69,226.31

4.

Other operating income
- thereof income from currency conversion
EUR 319,90; Rs. 2,730k (PY EUR 213,04; Rs. 1,818k)

278,447.19

23,762.68

369,571.34

31,539.22

5.

Cost of materials
a) Cost of raw materials and supplies
b) Expenses for received services

28,501,675.15

2,432,332.96

33,384,274.33

2,849,013.97

6.

Staff costs
a) Wages and salaries
b) Statutory welfare contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support
- thereof expenses for optional support
EUR 64.585,56; Rs. 5,512k (PY EUR 116.789,69; Rs.
9,967k )

-10,182,310.38
-868,958.37
-5,873,212.59
-501,219.96
-16,055,522.97 -1,370,178.33

-11,401,894.43
-973,037.67
-6,721,443.24
-573,607.97
-18,123,337.67 -1,546,645.64

-6,571,620.25

-560,822.07

-8,421,049.58

-718,652.37

-1,355,819.05

-115,705.60

-1,819,706.83

-155,293.78

-7,927,439.30

-676,527.67

-10,240,756.41

-873,946.15

-1,012,534.40

-86,409.69

-1,433,535.66

-122,337.93

-4,135,807.33

-352,949.80

-4,474,428.54

-381,847.73

0.00

0.00

275.00

23.47

36,651.21

3,127.81

0.00

0.00

11. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof due to affiliated companies EUR 0,00
(PY EUR 122.072,98; Rs. 10,418k)
- thereof resulting from discount of
accruals EUR 95.099,00; rs. 8,116k (PY EUR 140.917,00;
rs. 12,026k)

-151,074.59

-12,892.71

-263,144.09

-22,456.72

12. Income from operations

-744,052.23

-63,497.42

-1,150,653.04

-98,196.73

0.00

0.00

-5,255.97

-448.54

14. Other taxes

-21,485.03

-1,833.53

-27,666.95

-2,361.10

15. Transfer of net loss of the year

765,537.26

65,330.95

1,183,575.96

101,006.37

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7.

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

8.

Other operating expenses
- thereof expenses from currency conversion
EUR 102,01; Rs. 9k(PY EUR 991,52; Rs. 85k)

9.

Profits from companies wherein investments are held

10. Other interest and similar income
- thereof from affiliated companies EUR 36.651,21; Rs. 3,128k
(PY EUR 0,00)

13. Taxes on profits and income

16. Net result of the year
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Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as per December 31, 2013

Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
Tangible assets
Land and buildings

4/1/2013

Additions

Euro

Euro

Historical Costs
Reclassifica
Disposals
tion
Euro
Euro

Amortisation / Depreciation
12/31/2013

4/1/2013

Euro

Euro

Additions Disposals
Euro

Euro

Book Value
12/31/2013

12/31/2013

3/31/2013

Euro

Euro

Euro

440,026

0

0

0

440,026

405,518

16,587

0

422,105

17,921

34,508

7,434,802

0

0

0

7,434,802

7,198,756

26,965

0

7,225,721

209,081

236,046

Technical equipment and machines

18,585,542

20,950

10,322

236,846

18,379,968

17,516,805

361,163

236,846

17,641,122

738,846

1,068,737

Other assets and office equipment

14,179,274

371,844

63,578

198,543

14,416,152

11,982,808

607,819

176,881

12,413,745

2,002,407

2,196,466

Prepayments and assets under construction

86,931
40,286,549

113,130
505,924

-73,900
0

5,058
440,447

121,103
40,352,026

0
36,698,368

0
995,947

0
413,727

0
37,280,588

121,103
3,071,437

86,931
3,588,181

40,726,575

505,924

0

440,447

40,792,052

37,103,886

1,012,534

413,727

37,702,693

3,089,358

3,622,689

0.00

0.00

0.00

1/0/1900
Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
Tangible assets
Land and buildings

INR'000

37,552

Historical Costs
Reclassifica
Disposals
tion
INR'000
INR'000
INR'000

Amortisation / Depreciation

Additions

0

0

0

1/0/1900

1/0/1900

INR'000

INR'000

37,552

34,607

Additions Disposals
INR'000

1,416

INR'000

0

Book Value
1/0/1900

1/0/1900

1/0/1900

INR'000

INR'000

INR'000

36,022

1,529

2,945

634,486

0

0

0

634,486

614,342

2,301

0

616,643

17,843

20,144

Technical equipment and machines

1,586,090

1,788

881

20,212

1,568,546

1,494,884

30,822

20,212

1,505,493

63,053

91,206

Other assets and office equipment

1,210,059

31,733

5,426

16,944

1,230,274

1,022,613

51,871

15,095

1,059,389

170,885

187,446

Prepayments and assets under construction

7,419
3,438,054

9,654
43,176

-6,307
0

432
37,588

10,335
3,443,642

0
3,131,839

0
84,994

0
35,307

0
3,181,525

10,335
262,116

7,419
306,215

3,475,606

43,176

0

37,588

3,481,194

3,166,446

86,410

35,307

3,217,548

263,646

309,160
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- For translation purposes only for the short business
year for the 9 months period ending 31 December 2013
Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH, Gevelsberg
I.

Accounting principles and general information about the financial statements

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the
majority of shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of
the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of nine months has been established
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial
register Hagen was made under HRB 5606 on 12 December 2013. The previous
year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements of Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH („company“ or „JECO“) for
the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 have been prepared in Euros in accordance with the accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch [German Commercial Code] and the supplementary provisions laid down in the GmbHG [German Act on
Limited Liability Companies].
As regards disclosures of remuneration paid to directors pursuant to section 285 No 9a
HGB, our company has applied the safeguard clause in accordance with section 286
(4) HGB because only one director receives a remuneration from the company. Because the company is a medium-sized company in the meaning of section 267 HGB,
the disclosure as required in section 285 No. 17 HGB has been omitted according to
section 288 (2) HGB. Furthermore, the company uses the easement as laid down in
section 264 (3) HGB regarding the disclosure. In addition, the company does not prepare a management report (section 264 (3) HGB).
The total cost method was used for the presentation of the profit and loss account.
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The company is classified as a medium-sized company in accordance with section 267
HGB.

II.

Accounting and valuation principles, currency conversion

Intangible fixed assets acquired by remuneration are recognized at cost less scheduled amortization. They are based on a useful life of normally 3 to 10 years.
Tangible assets are recognised at acquisition or production costs less scheduled
straight-line depreciation. Production costs for self-produced tools include direct costs
and proportionate indirect costs and depreciations. The useful life for buildings is between 25 and 33 years, for technical installations and machines it is between 5 and 15
years; other installations and equipment have a useful life between 3 and 21 years.
Self-produced tools (forging dies) are consistently depreciated with the straight-line
method over a useful life of 5 years. During the reporting period EUR 285 k, INR
24,322 k in total (PY EUR 777 k, INR 66,309 k) for tools have been capitalized. Depreciations for self-produced tools amount to EUR 461 k, INR 39,342 k (PY EUR 570 k,
INR 48,644 k).

For low value items purchased after 1 January 2008 the company applies the German
tax law regulations of section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act]. Accordingly, low
value items with acquisition costs of up to EUR 150 INR 12,801k during the year of
acquisition are directly deductible operating expenses. Low value items with acquisition costs of more than EUR 150 INR 12,801k and up to EUR 1,000 INR 85,340k are
added to a compound item each year which is depreciated over five years, and a disposal after five years is presumed.
If the book value of fixed assets determined by the above principles is higher than the
recoverable amount at the balance sheet date, this is considered by unscheduled depreciations. As far as the reasons for prior year’s depreciations no longer exist, the
original values are reinstated.
Raw materials and supplies and goods are valued at the average cost or the lower
market price.
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Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts of overhead costs as well as depreciation are considered in addition to directly attributable direct material costs, direct labour costs and special direct costs. According to the principles of valuation the lower value of production costs and sales
prices less expenses to be accrued until completion has been recognized.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets recognized at their nominal value, all identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit risk is appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables.
Expenditures that are expenses after the balance sheet date are accounted for as prepaid expenses.
For pension provisions please see the explanations for the respective balance sheet
item. Provisions for taxation and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and undetermined obligations at the balance sheet date. They are recognized at the amount
necessary according to reasonable commercial assessment. Provisions with a maturity
of more than one year are discounted with the average market rate determined by
Deutsche Bundesbank.
Liabilities are stated at their repayment values.
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the
day of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate
changes up to the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange
rate changes are only considered with a maturity of one year or less.

III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and to the profit and loss account

(1)

Fixed assets

Movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets as well as in investments, amortization and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement schedule.
The company’s land and buildings are collateralized with land charges to provide securities for loan commitments of the sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe Akti-
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engesellschaft, Aalen. Furthermore, fixed assets have been assigned by way of collateral to provide securities for these loan commitments.

(2)

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies amounting to EUR 651 k INR 55,556k
(PY EUR 953k, INR 81,329k ), work in progress amounting to EUR 2,920 k, INR
249,193k (PY EUR 2,771 k, INR 236,477k) and finished goods amounting to
EUR 1,240 k, INR 105,822k (PY EUR 1,211 k, INR 103,347k).
(3)

Trade debtors

There are trade debtors amounting to EUR 1,005 k, INR 85,767k (PY EUR 4,342 k,
INR 370,546k). They have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the receivables
by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI. By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI amounting
to EUR 19.7 million (INR 1,681 million) which have been paid out to the companies in
July 2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied. The difference to receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with ICICI. As per
31 December 2013 the company sold trade receivables to ICICI amounting to
EUR 3,143 k, INR 268,224k. The difference between received cash from ICICI and receivables sold by the company as per 31 December 2013 amounts to EUR 1,151 k,
INR 98,226k and has been disclosed as liabilities to banks.
(4)

Receivables due by group companies

Receivables due by group companies amount to EUR 17 k, INR 1,451k (PY EUR 39 k,
INR 3,328k) due by SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH and EUR 3,365 k, INR 287,169k
(PY liability in the amount of EUR 869 k, INR 74,160k) due by the parent company
Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen. They have a maturity of less than one year.
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(5)

Other assets

Elements of this balance sheet item include a limited bank balance at ICICI in connection with the factoring contract (EUR 472 k INR 40,280k, PY EUR 0 k INR 0k), tax advance payments amounting to EUR 222 k, INR 18,945k (PY EUR 222 k, INR 18,945k),
the electricity tax refund from the main customs office amounting to EUR 184 k, INR
15,703k (PY EUR 51 k, INR 4,352k) as well as EUR 61 k, INR 5,206k in total (PY EUR
19 k, INR 1,621k) for several other items.
(6)

Prepaid expenses

The expenses listed under this balance sheet item are dissolved as scheduled.
(7)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 5,130,000; Rs. 437,794k and is enrolled in the register of commerce at the district court of Hagen, register No. HRB 5606. Due to the
profit and loss transfer agreement with Mahindra Forgings Europe AG (MFE AG) the
annual loss amounting to EUR 766 k, INR 65,370k (PY loss of EUR 1,184 k, INR
101,043k) was transferred to MFE AG during the reporting year.
(8)

Provisions for pensions

Provisions for pensions are determined according to the actuarial calculation method
of the projected unit credit method. The mortality tables of Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck
“2005 G” have been considered for the calculation of pension provisions.
According to the pension scheme the persons entitled to a pension receive a fixed
amount for each applicable year of service. Wage payments are not considered. The
expected pension increase is based on this retirement annuity.
The calculation is based on the following assumptions:
31 December 2013
Interest rate
(according to the first-year convention
section 253 (2) p. 2 HGB)

4,90 % (PY 5.03 %)

Expected salary increase

1,00 % (PY 1.00 %)

Expected pension increase (individual commitments)

2,70 % (PY 3.00 %)

Expected pension increase (other)

1,00 % (PY 1.00 %)
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With regard to pension provisions EUR 141 k, 12,033k have been added for the financial year 2013 (PY EUR 223 k, INR 19,031k).
(9)

Tax provisions

Tax provisions concern previous years.
(10) Other provisions
The provision for partial retirement is as well calculated on the basis of the mortality
tables “2005 G” according to actuarial principles. Provisions for partial retirement were
accounted for on the basis of an actuarial interest rate of 3.41 % with a medium duration of one year and on the basis of a salary trend of 2.20 % per annum as per 1 May
2014 and 2.70 % from 2015 onwards as well as an increase of the contribution assessment basis by 2.70 %.
Other provisions include provisions for personnel expenses amounting to EUR 911 k,
INR 77,745k (PY EUR 1,376 k, INR 117,428k), for warranties amounting to EUR 169
k, INR 14,422k (PY EUR 152 k, INR 12,972k) as well as further provisions in connection with operating activities amounting to EUR 403 k, INR 34,392k (PY EUR 285 k,
INR 24,322k). Provisions for personnel expenses include provisions for partial retirement obligations amounting to EUR 481 k, INR 41,049k (PY EUR 688 k, INR 58,714k).
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(11) Liabilities
85.34

31-Dec-13
Maturity up to 1
year

Maturity

Maturity

1-5 years

More than 5 years

Total

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

Trade liabilities
PY
Liabilities due to affiliated companies

1,151
0
2,061
1,546
203
1,076

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

1,151
0
2,061
1,546
203
1,076

PY
Other liabilities
PY

148
117
3,563

0
0
0

0
0
0

148
117
3,563

2,739

0

0

2,739

1-5 years
INR k

More than 5 years
INR k

Total
INR k

98,226

0

0

98,226

0
175,886
131,936
17,324
91,826
12,630

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
175,886
131,936
17,324
91,826
12,630

9,985
304,066
233,746

0
0
0

0
0
0

9,985
304,066
233,746

Liabilities due to banks

PY

31-Dec-13
Maturity up to 1 year
INR k

Liabilities due to banks

PY

Trade liabilities
PY
Liabilities due to affiliated companies
PY
Other liabilities
PY

Mat

Liabilities due to affiliated companies include EUR 53 k, INR 4,523k (PY EUR 38 k,
INR 3,243k) due to Gesenkschmiede Schneider and EUR 149 k, INR 12,716k (PY
EUR 103 k, INR 8,790k) due to Falkenroth Umformtechnik.
There are usual retentions of title from the deliveries of raw materials and supplies
and goods. The liabilities are unsecured.
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(12) Sales

April 13 to December 2013
EUR k

Segmentation according to business operations:
Processing
Forging Parts

April 12 to
March 13
EUR k

20,009
6,034

23,116
7,108

Other sales
Tools and forging dies

892
460

1,065
1,026

Inter-company sales
Sales deductions and rebates

381
-30

749
-38

27,746

33,026

17,637
10,109

22,532
10,494

27,746

33,026

Geographical breakdown
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas

April 13 to December 2013
INR k
Segmentation according to business operations:
Processing
Forging Parts
Other sales
Tools and forging dies
Inter-company sales
Sales deductions and rebates
Geographical breakdown
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas

-

1,707,568
514,942
76,123
39,256
32,515
2,560
2,367,844
1,505,142
862,702
2,367,844

April 12 to
March 13
INR k

-

1,972,719
606,597
90,887
87,559
63,920
3,243
2,818,439
1,922,881
895,558
2,818,439

(13) Other operating income
Other operating income mainly includes income resulting from an administration fee
amounting to EUR 130 k, INR 11,094k (PY EUR 174 k, INR 14,849k), income from affiliated companies amounting to EUR 79 k, INR 6,742k (PY EUR 98 k, INR 8,363k), income from the dissolution of provisions amounting to EUR 1 k, INR 85k (PY EUR 23 k,
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INR 1,963k), income from the dissolution of the general allowance amounting to EUR
32 k, INR 2,731k (PY EUR 0 k) as well as EUR 36 k, INR 3,072k

in total (PY EUR

74 k, INR 6,315k) for further miscellaneous items.
(14) Depreciation, amortization
Scheduled amortization has been conducted on intangible assets amounting to
EUR 17 k, INR 1,451k (PY EUR 27 k, INR 2,304k), and scheduled depreciation on
tangible fixed assets amounts to EUR 996 k, INR 84,999k (PY EUR 1,407 k, INR
120,073k). There were no unscheduled amortizations/depreciations during the financial year.

(15)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses contain the following items:

Wages for temporary workers
Repair and maintenance
Freight and packaging
Group charge
Rental and leasing costs
Office and administration costs
Commissions
Insurance costs
Losses from the disposal of fixed assets
Advertising costs, travel expenses
Other expenses

Wages for temporary workers
Repair and maintenance
Freight and packaging
Group charge
Rental and leasing costs
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April 13 to
December 13
EUR k
1,524
835

April 12 to
March 13
EUR k
1,156
1,575

473
236
202
120
90
85

317
281
98
141
121
88

27
11

42
26

533

629

4,136

4,474

April 13 to
December 13
INR k
130,058
71,259
40,366
20,140
17,239

April 12 to
March 13
INR k
98,653
134,411
27,053
23,981
8,363

Office and administration costs
Commissions
Insurance costs
Losses from the disposal of fixed assets
Advertising costs, travel expenses
Other expenses

10,241
7,681
7,254
2,304
939
45,486
352,966

12,033
10,326
7,510
3,584
2,219
53,679
381,811

(16) Financial result
Interest expense includes interest expense from the discounting of provisions amounting to EUR 95 k, INR 8,107k (PY EUR 141 k, INR 12,033k), interest expense in connection with the factoring amounting to EUR 45 k, INR 3,840k (PY EUR 0 k) as well as
interest expense for current account amounting to EUR 10 k, INR 853k (PY EUR 0 k).
In the previous year, interests due to affiliated companies amounted to EUR 122 k,
INR 10,411k.
The interest income includes interest against affiliated companies of EUR 37 k, INR
3,158k (PY EUR 0 k).
IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

Within the loan agreements of the sole shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, signed with ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010, the company
has granted intangible assets (intellectual property), equipment, trade receivables and
inventory as loan securities. Furthermore, there are bank account pledges as well as
transfers of insurance claims to the mentioned banks. The company’s real estate is
encumbered with a land charge in the same context. The liabilities of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, to banks amount to EUR 57.8 million as at the
balance sheet date (PY EUR 77.4 million).
The risk that the company will be liable for liabilities of MFE is deemed to be unlikely in
the upcoming years due to going concern of all group members.
(2)

Off balance sheet items

During the financial year 2009/2010 a supplementary collective agreement was concluded according to which holiday and Christmas bonuses to employees were sus173



pended for the year 2010 for cost cutting purposes. This led to a positive profit effect in
the financial year 2010/2011 amounting to EUR 0.6 million. As a compensation, the
agreement includes the commitment of the company to pay a special bonus to its employees depending on predefined positive financial results from the beginning of the financial year 2011/2012 up to 2013/2014.
Leasing businesses are concluded to the usual extent.
Regarding the factoring agreement concluded with ICICI Bank during the short business year, please see section III. (3).
(3)

Other financial liabilities

Rental and leasing costs (buildings,
machinery, office equipment)

31-Dec-13
EUR k
1,834

31-Mar-13
EUR k
2,743

2

83

31-Dec-13
INR k
156,514

31-Mar-13
INR k
234,088
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7,083

Investment purchase commitments at
reporting date

Rental and leasing costs (buildings,
machinery, office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at
reporting date

(4)

Average number of staff
2013

Employees (white-collar)
Workers (blue-collar)
Thereof part-time staff
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2012/2013

36

37

149

152

185

189

4

4

(5)

Board of Management

During the reporting period, the Board of Management comprised:
- Thomas Körner (Sales and Purchasing, member of the board of directors of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen), Schwelm (until 3 December 2013)
- Burkard Rausch (Finance, chairman of the Board, member of the board of directors
of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen), Warendorf
- Rolf Wirfler (Technology), Gelsenkirchen
- Edmundo Fernandez (CEO, member of the board of MFE AG, Plant director of CIE
Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain), Vitoria / Spain (as of 3 December 2013)
(6)

Remuneration to prior members of the Board of Management

Remuneration of prior members of the Board of Management including those of their
bereaved amounts EUR 75 k, INR 6,401k in total (PY EUR 97 k, INR 8,278k). The
provision for pensions and similar obligations for these persons amount to EUR 659 k,
INR 56,239k (PY EUR 670 k, INR 57,178k).
(7)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the
smallest group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, as well as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A.,
Bilbao/Spain, for the largest group of companies.
Due to section 325 (3) HGB, the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotiv S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil, are published at their respective locations.
Gevelsberg, 24 January 2014
Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH
Management Board
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The following reperition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation
purposes only:
Auditor’s opinion:
We have audited the financial statements – comprising the balance sheet, the profit and loss
account and the notes – together with the bookkeeping system of Falkenroth
Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, for the financial short year from 01 April 2013 to
31 December 2013. The maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the
annual financial statements in accordance with German commercial law by making use of
the ease in respect to section 264 paragraph 3 HGB are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, together with the bookkeeping system based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB
[German Commercial Code] and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public
Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
such that misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, materially affecting the presentation
of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in
accordance with German principles of proper accounting are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of
the company and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the
determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records and the
financial statements are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the financial statements of Falkenroth
Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle, for the financial short year from 1 April 2013 to 31
December 2013 comply with legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in accordance with German principles of
proper accounting.
Up to date of the finalization of our audit, we could not asses if the requirements to make
use of the ease of section 264 paragraph 3 HGB were fulfilled, due to the fact that the requirements of section 264 paragraph 3 Nr. 3 und Nr. 4a can only be fulfilled at a later date.
With inclusion of the company in the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as per 31 December 2013, a note in the consolidated notes that the company makes use of the easement and publication of the consolidated financial statements of
Mahindra Forgings Europe AG as per 31 December 2013 in the federal gazette these conditions are fulfilled.
Düsseldorf, 23. January 2014
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schulze Osthoff
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

Carstens
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including
translations into other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer hereby in particular to section 328 HGB.
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Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle
Balance Sheet as per December 31, 2013

Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85
ASSETS

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs in '000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs in '000

A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1.Acquired licences, industrial property rights and
1 licences on those rights

1459

125

2,328

199

299040

25,520

341,224

29,120

2. Technical equipment and machines

2367228

202,019

2,796,596

238,662

3. Other assets and office equipment

1644793

140,367

1,778,276

151,758

II. Tangible fixed assets
1. Land and buildings

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

315066

26,888

298,127

25,442

4626128

394,794

5,214,224

444,982

4627587

394,919

5,216,552

445,181

429088

36,618

769,392

65,660

2. Work in progress

1765759

150,690

1,854,357

158,251

3. Finished goods and merchandise

1329961

113,499

1,139,798

97,270

3524808

300,807

3,763,547

321,181

1. Trade debtors

495261

42,266

4,189,613

357,542

2. Receivables due from affiliated companies

343676

29,329

102,632

8,759

3. Other assets

651877

55,631

82,670

7,055

1490814

127,226

4,374,914

373,356

1993

170

2,585

221

5017615

428,203

8,141,046

694,758

0

0

14,528

1,240

823,122 13,372,126

1,141,179

B. Current assets
I.

Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies

II. Receivables and other assets

III. Cash on hand and at banks

C. Prepaid expenses

9645202
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LI ABI LI TI ES

December 31, 2013
Rupees in '000
Euro

March 31, 2012
Euro
Rupees in '000

A. Equity
I.

Share capital

II. Capital reserves
III. Reveue reserve

1,025,000.00

87,474

1,025,000.00

87,474

168,943.55

14,418

168,943.55

14,418

1,154,968.61

98,565

1,154,968.61

98,565

2,348,912.16

200,457

2,348,912.16

200,457

B. Provisions
1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations
2. Other provisions

31,876.00

2,720

30,227.00

2,580

682,420.00

58,238

893,650.00

76,264

714,296.00

60,958

923,877.00

78,844

2,236,154.98

190,833

1,865,911.28

159,237

4,260,854.50

363,622

8,159,515.40

696,332

84,983.99

7,253

73,909.72

6,307

6,581,993.47

561,708

10,099,336.40

861,876

9,645,201.63

823,122

13,372,125.56

1,141,179

C. Liabilities
1. Trade creditors
- thereof due within one year EUR 1.865.911,28;
Rs. 15,923,686k
(PY EUR 2.734.117,54; Rs 233,330 k)
2. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due within one year EUR 8.159.515,40; Rs. 696,333k
(PY EUR 9.482.746,71; Rs. 809,257k)
3. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 70.654,18; Rs. 6,030k
(PY EUR 69.207,33; Rs. 5,906 k)
- thereof for social security EUR 0,00
(PY EUR 0,00)
- thereof due within one year EUR 73.909,72; Rs. 6,307k
(PY EUR 104.470,16; Rs. 8,915k)

179

Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle
Profit and loss account 2012 / 2013
Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85

1.

Sales

2.

31, December 2013
Euro
Rupees in '000

31 March, 2013
Euro
Rupees in '000

24,277,130.36

2,071,810

34,927,018.78

2,980,672

Change in unfinshed and finished goods

125,121.31

10,678

-1,056,393.88

-90,153

3.

Other own work capitalized

397,754.44

33,944

679,843.93

58,018

4.

Other operating income

233,462.67

19,924

186,567.00

15,922

25,033,468.78

2,136,356

34,737,035.83

2,964,459

-12,063,296.39
-3,890,821.09
-15,954,117.48

-1,029,482
-332,043
-1,361,524

-17,252,523.37
-4,703,618.15
-21,956,141.52

-1,472,330
-401,407
-1,873,737

-386,848

-6,330,726.11

-540,264

-71,102

-1,299,197.43

-110,874

-457,950

-7,629,923.54

-651,138

5.

Cost of materials
a) Cost of raw materials and supplies
b) Expenses for received services

6.

Staff costs
a) Wages and salaries
-4,533,019.98
b) Statutory welfare contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support
-833,157.59
- thereof expenses for optional support
EUR 4.758,20; Rs. 406k (PY EUR 6.303,38; Rs. 538k)
-5,366,177.57

7.

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

-1,011,467.29

-86,319

-1,398,339.73

-119,335

8.

Other operating expenses

-4,280,695.85

-365,315

-4,855,980.49

-414,409

9.

Interest and similar expenses
-394,976.58
- thereof from affiliated companies EUR 547.293,42; Rs. 46,706k
(PY TEUR 498.919,31; Rs. 42,578k)
- thereof resulting from the discount of provisions
EUR 1.698,00; Rs. 145k (PY EUR 1.226,00; Rs. 104k)

-33,707

-556,054.89

-47,454

-1,973,965.99

-168,459

-1,659,404.34

-141,614

0.00

0

-9,443.40

-806

-12,130.57

-1,035

-15,833.60

-1,351

1,986,096.56

169,494

1,684,681.34

143,771

0.00

0

0.00

0

10. Income from operations
11. Taxes on profits and income
12. Other taxes
13. Transfer of loss / net profit of the year
14. Net result of the year
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Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle
Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as per December 31, 2013
Historical Costs
April 31,
2013
Euro

Intangible Assets
Licences, industrial property rights and
licences on those rights
Tangible assets
Land and buildings

92627

Additions
Euro

Amortisation / Depreciation

December
Disposals
31, 2013
Euro

54

Euro

0

92682

April 31,
2013
Euro

90300

Book Value

December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013
Euro

923

Euro

Euro

0

91223

Euro

Euro

1459

2328

665957

0

0

665957

324733

42184

0

366917

299040

341224

Technical equipment and machines

4611790

7725

3450

4616065

1815194

434865

1222

2248837

2367228

2796596

Other assets and office equipment

6749727

403451

36233

7116945

4971451

533496

32794

5472152

1644793

1778276

298127
12325602

16939
428115

0
39683

315066
12714034

0
7111378

0
1010544

0
34016

0
8087906

315066
4626128

298127
5214224

12418229

428169

39683

12806715

7201677

1011467

34016

8179128

4627587

5216552

Prepayments and assets under construction

Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85.34
Historical Costs
April 31,
Additions
2013

Intangible Assets
Licences, industrial property rights and
licences on those rights
Tangible assets
Land and buildings

Amortisation / Depreciation

December
Disposals
31, 2013
Rs in '000 Rs in '000

April 31,
2013

Book Value

December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013

Rs in '000

Rs in '000

Rs in '000 Rs in '000 Rs in '000 Rs in '000

7905

5

0

7909

7706

79

-1

56833

0

0

56833

27713

3599

0

Rs in '000

Rs in '000

7785

125

199

31313

25520

29120

Technical equipment and machines

393570

659

294

393935

154909

37111

104

191916

202019

238662

Other assets and office equipment

576022

34431

3092

607360

424264

45529

2799

466993

140367

151758

25442
1051867

1446
36536

0
3386

26888
1085016

0
606886

0
86239

0
2903

0
690222

26888
394794

25442
444982

1059772

36541

3386

1092925

614592

86318

2902

698007

394919

445181

Prepayments and assets under construction
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- For translation purposes only –
for the short business
year for the 9 months period ending 31 December 2013
Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH, Schalksmühle

I.

Accounting principles and general information about the financial statements

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the
majority of shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of
the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of nine months has been established
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial
register Iserlohn was made under HRB 5731 on 12 December 2013. The previous
year’s figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are therefore only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements of Falkenroth Umformtechnik Gesellschaft mit
beschränkter Haftung („company“ or „FUS“) for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 have been prepared in Euros in accordance with the accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch [German Commercial Code] and the supplementary
provisions laid down in the GmbHG [German Act on Limited Liability Companies].
As regards disclosures of remuneration paid to active directors pursuant to section 285
No. 9a HGB, our company has applied the safeguard clause in accordance with section 286 (4) HGB because only one director receives remuneration from the company.
As the company is a medium-sized limited liability company in terms of section 267
HGB, the disclosure as required in section 285 No. 17 HGB has been omitted according to section 288 HGB. Furthermore, the company uses the easements as laid down
in section 264 (3) HGB and does not publish their financial statements. Furthermore
the company does not prepare a management report (section 264 (3) HGB).
The total cost method was used for the presentation of the profit and loss account. The
company is classified as a medium-sized company in accordance with section 267
HGB.
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II.

Accounting and valuation principles, currency conversion

Intangible fixed assets acquired by remuneration are recognized at cost less scheduled straight-line amortization. They are based on a useful life of normally 3 to 10
years.
Tangible fixed assets are recognized at acquisition or production cost less scheduled
straight-line depreciation. Self-produced tools include direct costs and proportionate
indirect costs and depreciations. The useful life of buildings is between 25 and 33
years, for technical equipment and machines it is between 5 and 15 years; other installations and office equipment have a useful life between 3 and 21 years.
Self-produced tools (forging dies) are consistently depreciated over a useful life of 5
years using the straight-line method. During the reporting period tools at production
costs of EUR 398 k; Rs. 33,965 k (PY EUR 663 k; Rs. 56,580 k) have been capitalized. Depreciations on self-produced tools amount to EUR 476 k; Rs. 40,622 k (PY
EUR 607 k; Rs. 51,801 k).
For low value assets purchased after 1 January 2008 the company applies the German tax law regulations section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act]. Accordingly,
low value items with acquisition costs of up to EUR 150; Rs. 12,801 during the year of
acquisition are directly deductible operating expenses. Low value assets with acquisition costs of more than EUR 150; Rs. 12,801 and up to EUR 1,000; Rs. 85,340 are
added to a compound item each year which is depreciated over five years, and a disposal after five years is presumed.
If the book value of fixed assets determined with the principles above is higher than
the recoverable amount at the balance sheet date, this is considered by unscheduled
depreciations. As far as the reasons for prior years’ depreciations no longer exist the
original values are reinstated.
Raw materials and supplies are valued at the average cost or the lower market price.
Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts of overhead costs as well as depreciation are considered in addition to directly attributable direct material costs, direct labour costs and special direct costs. Ac-
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cording to the principles of valuation, the lower value of production costs and sales
prices less expenses to be accrued until completion has been recognized.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets recognized at their nominal value, all identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit risk is appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables.
Expenditures that are expenses after the balance sheet date are accounted for as prepaid expenses.
For the valuation of pension provisions please see the explanations for the respective
balance sheet item. Provisions for taxation and other provisions consider all identifiable risks and undetermined obligations at the balance sheet date. They are recognized
at the amount necessary according to reasonable commercial assessment. Provisions
with a maturity of more than one year are discounted with the average market rate determined by Deutsche Bundesbank.
Liabilities are stated at their repayment values.

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate at the
day of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate changes up to the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange rate
changes are only considered with a maturity of one year or less.

III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and the profit and loss account

(1)

Fixed assets

The itemization and movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets as well as in investments, amortization and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets
movement schedule.
The company’s land and buildings are collateralized with land charges to provide securities for loan commitments of the shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen. Furthermore, fixed assets have been assigned by way of collateral to
provide securities for these loan commitments.
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(2)

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies amounting to EUR 429 k; Rs. 36,611 k
(PY EUR 769 k; Rs. 65,626 k), work in progress amounting to EUR 1,766 k; Rs.
150,710 k (PY EUR 1,854 k; Rs. 158,220 k) and finished goods and merchandise
amounting to EUR 1,330 k; Rs. 113,502 k (PY EUR 1,140 k; Rs. 97,288 k).
(3)

Trade debtors

Trade debtors amount to EUR 495 k; Rs. 42,243 k (PY EUR 4,190 k; Rs. 357,575 k).
They have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase of the receivables
by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI. By the first factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI amounting
to EUR 19.7 million; Rs. 1,681 Mn. which have been paid out to the companies in July
2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied. The difference to receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with ICICI. As per 31
December 2013 the company sold trade receivables to ICICI amounting to EUR 2,033
k; Rs. 173,496 k. The difference between received cash from ICICI and receivables
sold by the company as per 31 December 2013 amounts to EUR 133 k; Rs. 11,350 k
and has been disclosed as other assets.
(4)

Receivables due by group companies

Receivables due by group companies amount to EUR 150 k; Rs. 12,801 k (PY EUR
103 k; Rs. 8,790 k) due by Jeco-Jellinghaus GmbH and EUR 194; Rs. 16,556 k (PY
EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k) due by Schöneweiss & Co. GmbH. They have a maturity of less than
one year.
(5)

Other assets

Other assets include a limited bank balance at ICICI in connection with the factoring
contract with EUR 305 k; Rs. 26,209 k (PY EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k), the electricity tax refund
2013 from the main customs office amounting to EUR 112 k; Rs. 9,558 k (PY EUR 76
k; Rs. 6,486 k), EUR 133 k; Rs. 11350 k (PY EUR 0 k; Rs 0 k) for the difference between the balance of the sold receivables as per the balance sheet date and the
amount paid out by ICICI Bank as well as EUR 101 k; Rs. 8,619 k in total (PY EUR 7
k; Rs. 597 k) for several other items. Other assets have a maturity of less than one
year.
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(6)

Prepaid expenses

The expenses listed under this balance sheet item are dissolved as scheduled.
(7)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 1,025,000; Rs. 87,473,500 and is enrolled in the
register of commerce at the district court of Iserlohn, register no. HRB 5731. Due to the
profit and loss transfer agreement with Mahindra Forgings Europe AG (MFE AG), the
annual loss amounting to EUR 1,986 k; Rs. 169,485 k (PY EUR 1,685 k; Rs. 143,798
k) was transferred to MFE AG during the reporting year.
(8)

Provisions for pensions

The provisions for pensions are determined according to the actuarial calculation
method of the projected unit credit method. The mortality tables of Prof. Dr. Klaus
Heubeck “2005 G” have been considered for the calculation of pension provisions.
According to the pension scheme the persons entitled to a pension receive a fixed
amount for each applicable year of service. Wage payments are not considered. The
expected pension increase is based on this retirement annuity.
The calculation is based on the following assumptions:
31 December 2013
Interest rate
(according to the easement of section 253 (2) p. 2 HGB)

4.90 % (PY 5.03%)

Expected pension increase

1.00 % (PY 1.00 %)

With regard to pension provisions EUR 2 k; Rs. 171 k (PY EUR 5 k; Rs. 427k) have
been added during the short financial year 2013.
(9)

Other provisions

Other provisions include personnel expenses amounting to EUR 261 k; Rs. 22,274 k
(PY EUR 504 k; Rs. 43,011 k), warranty costs in the amount of EUR 141 k; Rs. 12,033
k (PY EUR 153 k; Rs. 13,057 k) and miscellaneous provisions resulting from operating
activities with EUR 281 k; Rs. 23,981 k (PY EUR 237 k; Rs. 20,226 k).

(10) Liabilities
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31 December 2013

Trade liabilities

Liabilities due to affiliated
companies
Other liabilities

Maturity up to
1 year

Maturity
1-5 years

Maturity more
than 5 years

Total

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

2,236

0

0

2,236

(PY 1,866)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY 1,866)

4,261

0

0

4,261

(PY 8,159)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY 8,159)

85

0

0

85

(PY 74)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY 74)

6,582

0

0

6,582

(PY 10,099)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY 10,099)

Maturity up
to 1 year

Maturity

Maturity
more

1-5 years

than 5
years

Total

Rs k

Rs k

Rs k

Rs k
Trade liabilities

Liabilities due to affiliated companies
Other liabilities

190,820

0

0

190,820

(PY 159,244)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY
159,244)

363,634

0

0

363,634

(PY 696,289)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY696,289)

7,254

0

0

7,254

(PY 6,315)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY 6,315)

561,708

0

0

561,708

(PY 861,849)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

(PY861,849)

Liabilities due to affiliated companies amount to EUR 4,261 k; Rs. 363,634 k due to
the shareholder Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen (PY EUR 8,098 k; Rs. 691,083
k), EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k due to Gesenkschmiede Schneider (PY EUR 53 k; Rs. 4,523 k)
an EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k (PY EUR 9 k) to SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH.
There are the usual retentions of title from the deliveries of raw materials and supplies
and goods. The liabilities are unsecured.
(11)

Sales
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04-12 / 2013 2012 / 2013
EUR k
EUR k
Segmentation according to business operations:
Forging parts

13,595

20,542

Processing

5,739

9,181

Inter-company sales

3,400

2,916

Other sales

1,476

2,280

244

277

-177

-269

24,277

34,927

17,774

25,051

6,503

9,876

24,277

34,927

Tools and forging dies
Sales deductions and rebates
Geographical breakdown
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas

4/12/2013
Segmentation according to business operations:
Forging parts
Processing
Inter-company sales
Other sales
Tools and forging dies
Sales deductions and rebates

Geographical breakdown
Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas
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Rs k

2012 /
2013
Rs k

1,160,197

1,753,054

489,766

783,507

290,156

248,851

125,962

194,575

20,823

23,639

(15,105)

(22,956)

2,071,799

2,980,670

1,516,833

2,137,852

554,966

842,818

2,071,799

2,980,670

(12) Other operating income
Other operating income mainly includes income from affiliated companies amounting
to EUR 163 k; Rs. 13,910 k (PY EUR 119 k; Rs. 10,155 k), income from the dissolution
of provisions amounting to EUR 1 k; Rs. 85 k (PY EUR 34 k; Rs. 2,902 k), income resulting from the disposal of assets amounting to EUR 2 k; Rs. 171 k (PY EUR 4 k; Rs,
341 k), income from the dissolution of the general allowance amounting to EUR 36 k;
Rs. 3,072 k (PY EUR 0; Rs. 0) as well as EUR 31 k; Rs. 2,646 k in total (PY EUR 29 k;
Rs. 2,475 k) for further miscellaneous items.
(13) Depreciation, amortization
Scheduled amortization has been conducted on intangible assets amounting to EUR 1
k; Rs. 85 k (PY EUR 2 k; Rs. 171 k) and scheduled depreciation on tangible fixed assets amounts to EUR 1,010 k; Rs. 86,193 k (PY EUR 1,396 k; Rs. 119135 k). There
were no unscheduled amortizations/depreciations during the financial year.

(14)

Other operating expenses

Other expenses contain the following items:
04-12/2013
EUR k

2012/2013
EUR k

Wages for foreign workers

1,609

1,966

Repair and maintenance

1,191

944

Freight and packaging

481

573

Group charge

208

299

Rental and leasing costs

132
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1

22

659

856

4,281

4,856

Losses from the disposal of fixed assets
Other expenses

Wages for foreign workers
Repair and maintenance
Freight and packaging
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4/12/2013
Rs k

2012/2013
Rs k

137,312

167,778

101,640

80,561

Group charge
Rental and leasing costs
Losses from the disposal of fixed assets
Other expenses

41,049

48,900

17,751

25,517

11,265

16,727

85

1,877

56,239

73,051

365,341

414,411

(15) Financial result
Interest expense mainly includes interest to affiliated companies amounting to EUR
375 k; Rs. 32,003 k (PY EUR 547 k; Rs. 46,681 k), interest expense from the discounting of provisions amounting to EUR 1 k; Rs. 85 k (PY EUR 2 k; Rs. 171 k) as well as
interest expense in connection with the factoring amounting to EUR 18 k; Rs. 1,536 k
(PY EUR 0; Rs. 0).

IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

Within the loan agreements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen,
signed with ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010, the company has granted intangible
assets (intellectual property), equipment, trade receivables and inventory as loan securities. Furthermore, there are bank account pledges as well as transfers of insurance
claims to the mentioned bank. The company’s real estate is encumbered with a land
charge in the same context. The liabilities of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, to banks amount to EUR 57.8 million; Rs. 4933 million as at the balance
sheet date (PY EUR 77.4 million; Rs. 6,605 million).
The risk that the company will be liable for liabilities of MFE is deemed to be unlikely
due to going concern of all group members.
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(2)

Off balance sheet items

During the financial year 2009/2010 a supplementary collective agreement was concluded according to which holiday and Christmas bonuses to employees were suspended for the year 2010 for cost cutting purposes. This led to a positive profit effect in
the financial year 2010/2011 amounting to EUR 0.5 million; Rs. 43 million As a compensation, the agreement includes the commitment of the company to pay a special
bonus to its employees depending on predefined positive financial results from the beginning of the financial year 2011/2012 up to 2013/2014.
Leasing businesses are concluded to the usual extent. Regarding the factoring agreement concluded with ICICI Bank during the short business year please see section III.
(3).
(3)

Other financial liabilities
31
December
2013
EUR k

Rental and leasing costs (machinery,
forklifts and office equipment)

515

567

14

0

Investment purchase commitments at reporting date

31-Dec-13
EUR k
Rental and leasing costs (machinery,
forklifts and office equipment)
Investment purchase commitments at
reporting date

(4)

31 March
2013
EUR k

43,950

31-Mar-13
EUR k
48,388

1,195

0

Average number of staff
04-12/2013

Employees (white-collar)
Workers (blue-collar)
Thereof part-time staff
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2012/2013

21

22

104

110

125

132

0

0

(5)

Board of Management

During the reporting period, the Board of Management comprised:
- Thomas Körner (Sales and Purchasing, management spokesman, member of
the board of directors of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen), Schwelm (un
til 3 December 2013)
- Burkard Rausch (Finance, member of the board of directors of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen), Warendorf
- Rolf Wirfler (Technology), Gelsenkirchen
- Edmundo Fernandez (CEO, member of the board of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, Plant director of CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain), Vitoria /
Spain (as of 3 December 2013)
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(6)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the
smallest group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, as well as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A.,
Bilbao/Spain, for the largest group of companies.
Due to section 325 (3) HGB, the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil, are published at their respective locations.

Schalksmühle, 24 January 2014
Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH
Management Board

193

The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes only:

The following repetition of the auditor’s opinion in English language is for translation purposes
only:

Auditor’s opinion:

Auditor’s opinion:

We have audited the financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss account and notes – together with the bookkeeping
system and the management report of SCHOENEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen, for the short financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31
We have audited the financial statements – comprising balance sheet, profit and loss account and
December 2013. The maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the financial statements and management report
notes with
– German
together
with law
theare bookkeeping
system
and management.
the management
report is to
ofexpress an
in accordance
commercial
the responsibility of
the company’s
Our responsibility
opinionSCHOENEWEISS
on the financial statements,
together
withHagen,
the bookkeeping
systemfinancial
and the management
based
on our
& CO
GmbH,
for the short
year from report
01 April
2013
to audit.
31
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB [German Commercial Code] and German
December 2013. The maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the financial
generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of
statements
and management
report
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German
commercial
law that
are the
respon- whether
Public Auditors
in Germany]
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audit ofprimarily
the financial
accordance
with
HGB
[Geraccounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
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financial statements and management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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tion of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and
the disclosures in the books and records, the financial statements and
the management report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit.
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
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management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements and manSchulze Osthoff
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agement report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Düsseldorf,
January, supporting
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the 24
evidence

[German Public Auditor]

Wirtschaftsprüfer

[German Public Auditor]

Wirtschaftsprüfer

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

On publication or further submission of the financial statements in a form other than that certified by us (including translations into
other languages), a further statement will be required from us if our audit opinion is cited or reference is made to our audit. We refer
hereby in
to section 328
HGB on the findings of our audit, the financial statements of
Inparticular
our opinion,
based

SCHOENEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen, for the short financial year from 01 April 2013 to 31
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SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen
Balance Sheet for the financial reporting period from April 01, 2013 to December 31, 2013
Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85
ASSETS
December 31, 2013
March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs in '000
Euro
Rs in '000
A. Fixed Assets
I.

Intangible Assets
1. Acquired licences, industrial property rights and
1. licences on those rights

123,837

10,568

163,802

13,979

1,735,797

148,133

1,853,186

158,151

14,362,178 1,225,668 13,615,626

1,161,958

II. Tangible fixed assets
1. Land and buildings
2. Technical equipment and machines
3. Other assets and office equipment

4,695,989

400,756

4,838,471

412,915

4. Prepayments and assets under construction

1,906,815

162,728

5,058,762

431,715

22,700,779 1,937,285 25,366,044

2,164,739

22,824,616 1,947,853 25,529,846

2,178,718

B. Current assets
I.

Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies

1,670,396

142,552

2,305,571

196,757

2. Work in progress

5,353,477

456,866

6,593,431

562,683

3. Finished goods and merchandise

1,759,076

150,120

1,568,419

133,849

0

4. Prepayments received

0

0

8,782,949

0

749,538 10,467,422

893,289

1,363,030

116,321

9,677,808

825,904

9,167

782

II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade debtors
- thereof due more than one year EUR 0,00
(PY EUR 0,00)
2. Other assets
3. Other assets

3,374,844

288,009

605,857

51,704

4,737,875

404,330 10,292,832

878,390

- thereof due more than one year EUR 0,00
(PY EUR 0,00)

IV. Cash on hand and at banks

414,385

C. Prepaid expenses

35,364

26,301

2,245

13,935,209 1,189,232 20,786,555

1,773,924

53,586

4,573

54,566

4,657

2,361,200

201,505

2,370,921

202,334

39,174,611 3,343,163 48,741,888

4,159,633

thereof disagio EUR 39.445,00; Rs. 3,366k (PY EUR
61.931,00; Rs. 5,285k)
D. Deferred tax asset
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LI ABI LI TI ES

December 31, 2013
Euro
Rs in '000

March 31, 2013
Euro
Rs in '000

A. Equity
I.

Share capital

5,000,000

426,700

3,674,100

313,548

./. own shares

-1,325,900

-113,152

Issued capital

3,674,100

313,548

4,504,368

384,403 10,804,368

922,045

4,504,368

384,403 10,804,368

922,045

II. Profit reserves
Other reserves
III. Reveue reserve

0

IV. Net profit

43,603

0

3,603,634

307,534

3,721 -11,764,349 -1,003,970

8,222,071

701,672

6,317,753

539,157

1. Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

9,469,506

808,128

9,579,476

817,512

2. Other provisions

3,458,793

295,173

3,326,965

283,923

B. Provisions

0 12,906,441 1,101,435
12,928,299 1,103,301
C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks

5,140,617

438,700

3,500,000

298,690

7,251,546

618,847

5,864,991

500,518

5,151,142

439,598 19,644,513 1,676,463

- thereof due within one year EUR
1.312.500,00; Rs. 112,,009k
(PY EUR 1.000.000,00; rs. 85,340k)
2. Trade creditors
- thereof due within one year EUR
5.864.990,57; rs. 500,518k
(PY EUR 12.270.302,51; Rs. 1,047,148k)
3. Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due within one year EUR 19.635.346,27
(PY EUR 10.187.572,99; Rs. 869,407k)
4. Other liabilities
- thereof from taxes EUR 203.109,91; Rs. 17,33

480,936

41,043

508,190

43,369

(PY EUR 225.586,25; Rs. 19,252k)
- thereof for social security EUR 0,00
(PY EUR 0,0)
- thereof due within one year EUR 508.190,22;
Rs. 43,369k
(PY EUR 497.243,66; Rs. 42,435k)
18,024,242 1,538,188 29,517,694 2,519,040
39,174,611 3,343,161 48,741,888 4,159,632
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SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen
Profit and loss account for the financial reporting period
from April 01, 2012 to March 31, 2013
Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85

1.

Sales

2.

Change in unfinshed and finished goods

3.

April 01, 2013
to December 31, 2013
Rs in '000
Euro

April 01, 2012
to March 31, 2013
Rs in '000
Euro

5,653,970

66,252,285

6,590,374

77,224,909

-89,547

-1,049,297

-315,013

-3,691,274

Other own work capitalized

43,804

513,293

117,231

1,373,691

4.

Other operating income
- thereof income from currency conversion
EUR 5.538,31; Rs. 473k (PY EUR
47.601,55; Rs. 4,062k)

35,788

419,357

67,717

793,497

5.

Cost of materials
a) Cost of raw materials and supplies
b) Expenses for received services

-2,913,895
-404,647
-3,318,542

-34,144,535
-4,741,585
-38,886,120

-3,449,508
-466,839
-3,916,347

-40,420,761
-5,470,344
-45,891,105

6.

Staff costs
a) Wages and salaries
b) Statutory welfare contributions, expenses
for pensions and optional support
- thereof expenses for optional support

-1,066,278

-12,494,470

-1,586,031

-18,584,845

-215,915

-2,530,057

-349,254

-4,092,496

-1,282,193

-15,024,528

-1,935,285

-22,677,341

-332,944

-3,901,381

-393,445

-4,610,323

-847,626

-9,932,341

-945,492

-11,079,136

-96,139

-1,126,546

-155,332

-1,820,155

-209,572

-2,455,729

-885,592

-10,377,235

-903

-10,578

-112,570

-1,319,082

-6,033

-70,688

-5,806

-68,032

-304,196

-3,564,505

-1,003,967

-11,764,349

EUR 823.243,65; Rs. 70,256k (PY EUR
2.064,44; Rs. 176k)

7.

Amortization of intangible and depreciation
of tangible fixed assets

8.

Other operating expenses
- thereof expenses from currency conversion
EUR 3.021,27; Rs. 258k (PY EUR 0,00)

9.

Interest and similar expenses
- thereof resulting from discount of accruals
EUR 279.328,98; Rs. 23,838k (PY EUR 0,00)

10. Income from operations
11. Taxes on profits and income
- thereof resulting from deferred taxes
EUR 1.304.746,00; rs. 111,347k (PY EUR
361.050,00; rs. 30,812k)
12. Other taxes
13. Net profit
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SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen
Fixed Assets Movement Schedule as per December 31, 2013
Historical Costs
April 1,
2013
Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights

Euro

1,451,350

Euro

Euro

5,264

Tangible Assets
Land and buildings

11,419,966

0

Technical equipment and machines

76,882,526

104,045

Other assets and office equipment

29,002,886

644,437

5,058,762

443,403

Prepayments and assets under construction

Amortization / Depreciation

Reclassificatio
December
Additions
Disposals
n
31, 2013
Euro

0

Euro

Euro

Euro

45,229

Euro

Euro

48,570

1,408,044

1,287,548

0

0

11,419,966

9,566,780

117,388

0

2,770,232

12,513

79,744,291 63,266,900

2,127,725

12,513

365,118

192,336

29,820,104 24,164,415

-3,135,350

0

2,366,815

Book Value

December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013

April 1,
2013

48,570

Euro

Euro

1,284,207

123,837

163,802

9,684,169

1,735,797

1,853,186

65,382,112 14,362,178 13,615,626

1,151,039

191,339

25,124,115

4,695,989

4,838,471

0

460,000

0

460,000

1,906,815

5,058,762

122,364,140

1,191,885

0

204,850 123,351,176 96,998,096

3,856,152

203,852 100,650,396 22,700,779 25,366,044

123,815,490

1,197,149

0

253,420 124,759,219 98,285,644

3,901,381

252,422 101,934,603 22,824,616 25,529,846

Convenience Translation 1 Euro = 85.34 Rupees
85.34
Historical Costs
April 1,
2013
Intangible Assets
Acquired licences, industrial property rights
and licences on those rights
Tangible Assets
Land and buildings

Rs in '000

123,858

Amortization / Depreciation

Reclassificatio
December
Disposals
Additions
n
31, 2013
Rs in '000

449

Rs in '000

Rs in '000

0

Rs in '000

4,145

120,162

April 1,
2013

Rs in '000 Rs in '000 Rs in '000

109,879

Book Value

December December March 31,
Additions Disposals
31, 2013
31, 2013
2013

3,860

4,145

Rs in '000

109,594

Rs in '000 Rs in '000

10,567

13,979

974,580

0

0

0

974,580

816,429

10,018

0

826,447

148,132

158,151

Technical equipment and machines

6,561,155

8,879

236,412

1,068

6,805,378

5,399,197

181,580

1,068

5,579,709

1,225,668

1,161,958

Other assets and office equipment

2,475,106

54,996

31,159

16,414

2,544,848

2,062,191

98,230

16,329

2,144,091

400,756

412,915

431,715
10,442,556

37,840
101,715

-267,571
0

0
17,482

201,983
10,526,789

0
8,277,817

39,256
329,084

0
17,397

39,256
8,589,503

162,727
1,937,283

431,715
2,164,739

10,566,414

102,164

0

21,627

10,646,951

8,387,696

332,944

21,542

8,699,097

1,947,850

2,178,718

Prepayments and assets under construction
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- For translation purposes only Notes
for the short business
year for the 9 months period ending 31 December 2013
SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH, Hagen

I.

Accounting principles and general information

As per 4 October 2013, Participaciones Internacionales Autometal DOS, S.L. (hereinafter “PIA”), Bilbao, Spain, a company of CIE Automotive Group, Spain, acquired the
majority of shares of the Indian parent company Mahindra Forgings Ltd., Mumbai, India. In order to adjust to the changed shareholder structure and the financial year of
the new group shareholder “PIA”, the company changed its financial year to 31 December. For this purpose, a short business year of nine months has been established
for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The entry into the commercial
register Hagen was made under HRB 74 on 22 November 2013. The previous year’s
figures for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 (12 months) are therefore
only comparable to a limited extent.
The annual financial statements for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013
have been prepared in Euros in accordance with the accounting principles of the Handelsgesetzbuch [German Commercial Code] and the supplementary provisions laid
down in the GmbHG [German Act on Limited Liability Companies].
The company uses the easements of section 264 (3) HGB and does not prepare a
management report.
The total cost method was used for the presentation of the profit and loss account.
The company is classified as a large company in accordance with section 267 HGB.
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II.

Accounting and valuation principles, currency conversion

Intangible assets and tangible assets are recognised at cost less scheduled depreciation/amortization. All assets are depreciated/amortized only according to the straightline method. For low value items purchased after 1 January 2008 the company applies
the German tax law regulations section 6 (2a) EStG [German Income Tax Act]. Accordingly, low value items with acquisition costs of up to EUR 150; Rs. 13k during the
year of acquisition are directly deductible operating expenses. Low value items with
acquisition costs of more than EUR 150; Rs. 13k and up to EUR 1,000; Rs. 85k are
added to a compound item each year which is depreciated over five years, and a disposal after five years is presumed.
Besides direct costs the production costs of self-produced tools include as well proportional overhead expenses. The capitalized self-produced tools have been depreciated
over a useful life of 2 to 4 years from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2009 and since 1 April
2009 over a useful life of 5 years.
For fixed assets mostly the following useful lives apply:
- Intangible assets

3 - 10 years

- Buildings

25 - 33 years

- Technical installations and machines

5 - 15 years

- Other installations, equipment

3 - 21 years

Raw materials and supplies are valued at the average cost or the lower market price.
Work in progress and finished goods are valued at production costs in which appropriate parts of manufacturing and indirect material costs, depreciations and appropriate
parts of general administration costs are considered in addition to directly attributable
direct material costs, direct labour costs and special direct costs. According to the
principles of lossless valuation the lower value of production costs and sales prices
less expenses to be accrued until completion has been recognized.
Regarding trade debtors and other assets that are recognized at their nominal value,
all identifiable risks are considered by allowances for bad debts. The general credit
risk is appropriately allowed for by a lump-sum allowance on receivables.
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Capitalized discounts and other expenses that occurred after the balance sheet date
are accounted for as prepaid expenses.
For the valuation of pension provisions and similar obligations please see the explanations for the respective balance sheet item. Other provisions consider all identifiable
risks and expected future cost and price increase and undetermined obligations at the
balance sheet date. They are recognized at the amount necessary according to reasonable commercial assessment. Provisions with a maturity of more than one year are
discounted with the time congruent average market rate determined by Deutsche
Bundesbank. Provisions for warranties are allowed for by a lump-sum provision
amounting to 0.5 % based on sales of the last 12 months.
Liabilities are stated at their repayment values.
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency are valued with the exchange rate on the
day of origin together with the valuation of additions. Losses on exchange rate
changes up to the balance sheet date are always considered, profits from exchange
rate changes are only considered with a maturity of one year or less.

III.

Disclosures regarding the balance sheet and the profit and loss account

(1)

Fixed assets

The itemization and movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets as well as in
amortization and depreciation are shown in the attached fixed assets movement
schedule.
The company’s land and buildings are collateralized with land charges to provide securities for loan commitments of the company as well as of the shareholder Mahindra
Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen. Furthermore, fixed assets have been assigned by way of collateral to provide securities for these loan commitments.
Additions to acquisition costs of other installations and office equipment contain additions of self-produced tools (forging dies) with a total value of EUR 513 k; Rs. 43,779 k
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(PY EUR 1,374 k; Rs. 117,257 k). Depreciations on self-produced tools amount to
EUR 847 k; Rs, 72,283 k (PY EUR 1,124 k; Rs. 95,922 k).
(2)

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies amounting to EUR 1,670 k; Rs.
142,518 k (PY EUR 2,306 k; Rs. 196,794 k), work in progress amounting to
EUR 5,354 k; Rs. 456,910 k (PY EUR 6,593 k; Rs. 562,647 k) and finished goods
amounting to EUR 1,759 k; Rs. 150,113 k (PY EUR 1,568 k; Rs. 133,813 k).

(3)

Trade debtors

There are trade debtors amounting to EUR 1,363 k; Rs. 116,318 (PY EUR 9,678 k;
Rs. 825,921 k). They have a maturity of less than one year.
As per 26 June 2013 MFE implemented a group wide factoring facility limited to EUR
20 million; Rs. 1707 million with ICICI Bank UK PLC, Frankfurt (ICICI). The purchase
of the receivables by ICICI is without recourse and the bad debt risk remains at ICICI.
The factoring contract is entered for financing purposes of the company. By the first
factoring transaction in July 2013 the group companies sold receivables to ICICI
amounting to EUR 19.7 million; Rs. 1681 million which have been paid out to the companies in July 2013. Since then, the amount of receivables sold has varied. The difference to receivables sold and paid out in previous months has not been settled with
ICICI. As per 31 December 2013 the company sold trade receivables to ICICI amounting to EUR 5,492 k; Rs. 468,687 k. The difference between received cash from ICICI
and receivables sold by the company as per 31 December 2013 amounts to EUR
2,953 k; Rs. 252,009 k and has been disclosed as liabilities to banks.

(4)

Other assets

Elements of this balance sheet item as per 31 December 2013 mainly include prepayments for major repairs (EUR 1,982 k; Rs. 169,144 k; PY EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k), a limited bank balance at ICICI in connection with the factoring contract (EUR 824 k; Rs.
70,320 k; PY EUR 0; Rs. 0 k), claims for petroleum and electricity tax amounting to
EUR 234 k; Rs. 19,970 k (PY EUR 349 k; Rs. 29,784 k) towards the main customs office, EUR 103 k; Rs. 8,790 k; (PY EUR 103 k; Rs. 8,790 k) business tax refunds as
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well as EUR 232; Rs. 19,799 k (PY EUR 154 k; Rs. 13,142 k) in total for several items.
Other assets have a maturity of less than one year.
(5)

Cash on hand and at banks

Cash on hand and at banks amount to EUR 414 k; Rs. 35,331 k as per the balance
sheet date. Within the scope of the execution of the social compensation plan (See
Chapter III. (17)), time deposits in the amount of EUR 405 k; Rs. 34,563 k were
pledged to the transfer company, therefore this credit cannot be disposed of freely.
(6)

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses mainly include discounts EUR 26 k; Rs. 2,219 k (PY EUR 39 k; Rs.
3,328 k) and insurance premiums paid in advance. Discounts are dissolved according
to schedule in compliance with section 250 (3) HGB.
(7)

Deferred tax assets

The disclosed deferred tax assets are based on the difference between the balance
sheet approach according to commercial law and according to tax law for the following
assets and liabilities as well as on tax losses and interests carried forward.
31 December 2013

31 March 2013

Deferred tax assets

EUR k

EUR k

Tax losses carried forward
Pension provisions
Other provisions

1,987
444
- 70

1,968
395
8

Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward
Pension provisions
Other provisions

31 December 2013
Rs k

31 March 2013
Rs k

169,571
37,891
(5,974)

167,949
33,709
683
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The valuation of deferred taxes is based on a corporate tax rate of 15.83 % and a trade tax
rate of 17.46 % (PY 17.15 %). Deferred tax assets are made for losses carried forward existing as per the balance sheet date if a loss off-setting is expected within five years. Based
on this, deferred taxes in the amount mentioned above were made for tax losses carried
forward of EUR 5,968 k; Rs. 509,309 k (PY EUR 5,968 k; Rs. 509,309 k).
(8)

Equity

The share capital amounts to EUR 5,000,000.00; Rs. 427 million and is enrolled in the
register of commerce at the district court of Hagen, register no. HRB 74. By shareholders’ resolution dated 9 December 2013, the sole shareholder resolved upon an
advance dividend in the amount of EUR 12,300 k; Rs. 1,050 million, which was paid in
December.
By agreement dated 27 July 2010, the company concluded a control agreement with
the sole shareholder. The obligation for MFE – being the controlling company – to assume losses resulting from section 302 AktG has not been applied to the financial
years 2010/2011, 2011/2012 and 2012/2013. Due to the existing shareholder structure, this error does not have any other material consequences and so a correction
was made on current account in the reporting period. Due to the correction, the company’s equity was re-established before the control agreement was concluded. It is
constituted as follows:
EUR k
Share Capital

+

5.000

Own Shares

-

1.326

Issued capital as per 31 March 2013

+

3.674

Other reserves as per 31 March 2013

+

10.804

Retained earnings as per 31 March 2013

+

6.044

-

14.204

Equity as per 31 March 2013

+

6.318

Tranfer of net losses for the prior periods
2010/2011 to 2012/2013 to MFE

+

14.204

Equity after correction

+

20.522

Up-front dividend paid to the shareholder MFE

-

12.300

Loss for the 9 month period ending 31 December 2013

-

3.564

Transfer of the net loss for the 9 month period
ending 31 December 2013 to MFE
Equity as per 31 December 2013 (including correction)

+
+

3.564
8.222

Net profit of the business year 2010/2011

-

1.572

Net profit of the business year 2011/2012

-

868

Net profit of the business year 2012/2013

-

11.764
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The company is included in the cash management of the sole shareholder Mahindra
Forgings Europe. The financing of the company is made – besides its own cash flow,
a factoring agreement and minor bank financing (EUR 2,188 k; Rs. 186,274 k; PY
EUR 3,500 k; Rs. 298,690 k) – mainly through intercompany financing by way of cash
management of the parent company. In order to ensure that the parent company is
able to meet its obligations in future as well and such the company disposes of funds
in a timely manner in order to meet payment obligations, the group company
Autometal S.A., Sao Paulo/Brazil, issued a letter of intent dated 21 January 2014 visà-vis Mahindra Forgings Europe AG which is valid until 31 December 2015. The preparation of the annual financial statements of SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH for the
short business year 2013 was made by assuming going concern.

(9)

Amounts subject to distribution restrictions

The total amount of the distribution restriction in accordance with section 268 (8) HGB
amounts to EUR 2,361 k; Rs. 201,488 k (PY EUR 2,371 k; Rs. 202,341 k).
(10) Pension provisions
Provisions for pensions are determined according to the actuarial calculation method
of the projected unit credit method. The mortality tables of Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck
“2005 G” have been considered for the calculation of pension provisions.
The calculation is based on the following assumptions:
Interest rate
(according to the easement of section 253 (2) p. 2 HGB)

4.90 % (PY 5.03 %)

Expected increases of wages and salaries

0.00 % (PY 3.00 %)

Expected pension increases
(individual commitments with adjustment clause)

2.00 % (PY 2.00 %)

Expected pension increases (other)

1.00 % (PY 1.00 %)

With regard to pension provisions EUR 382 k; Rs. 32,600 k (PY EUR 735 k; Rs.
62,725 k) have been added during the short financial year 2013.
(11) Other provisions
Other provisions include provisions for personnel expenses (EUR 1,696 k; Rs.
144,737 k; PY EUR 2,055 k; Rs. 175,374 k), for guarantees (EUR 400 k; Rs. 34,136 k;
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PY EUR 359 k; Rs. 30,637 k) as well as further provisions in connection with operating
activities (EUR 1,362 k; Rs. 116,233 k; PY EUR 913 k; Rs. 77,915 k ).
Provisions for jubilee obligations were accounted for according to the projected unit
credit method on the basis of a discount rate of 4.90 % for an overall maturity of 15
years according to the actuarial calculation method of the projected unit credit method
and on the basis of a salary trend of 2.20 % as per 1 May 2014 and 2.70 % from 2015
onwards. The increase of the assessment ceilings has been considered with 2.70 %
per annum.
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(12) Liabilities
31 December 2013
Maturity up to
1 year

Maturity
1-5 years

Maturity
more than
5 years

Total

31 March
2013

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

EUR k

4,703
(PY 1,313)

438
(PY 2,187)

0
(PY 0)

5,141

3,500

7,251
(PY 5,865)

0
(PY 0)

0
(PY 0)

7,251

5,865

5,151
(PY 19,645)

0
(PY 0)

0
(PY 0)

5,151

19,645

4,857
(PY 19,580)

0
(PY 0)

0
(PY 0)

4,857

19,580

481
(PY 508)

0
(PY 0)

0
(PY 0)

481

508

17,586
(PY 27,331)

438
(PY 2,187)

0
(PY 0)

18,024

29,518

Liabilities due to
banks
Trade liabilities

Liabilities due to affiliated companies
- thereof due to
shareholders
Other liabilities

31-Dec-13
Maturity up to 1
year
Rs. K

Maturity

Maturity

1-5 years

more than
5 years

Total

31-Mar-13

Rs. K

Rs. K

Rs. K

Rs. K

738,733

298,690

618,800

500,519

439,586

1,676,504

414,496

1,670,957

41,049

43,533

1,538,168

2,519,066

Liabilities due to banks

Trade liabilities
Liabilities due to affiliated companies

- thereof due to shareholders
Other liabilities

401,354

37,379

0

(PY 112,051)

(PY 186,639)

(PY 0)

618,800

0

0

(PY 500,519)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

439,586

0

0

(PY1,676,504)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

414,496

0

0

(PY 1,670,957)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

41,049

0

0

(PY 43,533)

(PY 0)

(PY 0)

1,500,789
(PY 2,332,428)
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37,379
(PY 186,639)

0
(PY 0)

Liabilities due to affiliated companies exist vis-à-vis Mahindra Forgings Europe AG,
Aalen, Gesenkschmiede Schneider GmbH, Aalen, Falkenroth Umformtechnik GmbH,
Schalksmühle, and Jeco Jellinghaus GmbH, Gevelsberg, and have a maturity of less
than one year.
Liabilities due to banks amounting to EUR 2,188 k; Rs. 186,724 k are collateralized
with charges on property (land charges). Furthermore, a machine (screw press including peripheral devices) was assigned by way of a collateral. Additionally, there is the
usual retention of title from deliveries of raw materials and supplies and goods.
(13) Sales revenues

2013
EUR k

2012/2013
EUR k

Segmentation according to business operations:
Processing

40,860

47,336

Forging parts

20,777

24,364

3,526

4,321

Tools and forging dies

634

895

Inter-company sales

458

313

-3

-4

66,252

77,225

Germany

53,625

62,662

Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas

12,627

14,563

66,252

77,225

2013
Rs k

2012/2013
Rs k

Other sales revenues

Sales deductions and rebates
Geographical breakdown

Segmentation according to business operations:
Processing
Forging parts
Other sales revenues
Tools and forging dies
Inter-company sales
Sales deductions and rebates

Geographical breakdown
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3,486,992
1,773,109
300,909
54,106
39,086
(256)

4,039,654
2,079,224
368,754
76,379
26,711

5,653,946

6,590,382

-

-

(341)

Germany
Europe (excluding Germany) and overseas

4,576,358
1,077,588

5,347,575
1,242,806

5,653,946

6,590,382

(14) Other operating income
Other operating income includes intercompany income with EUR 105 k; Rs. 8,961 k
(PY EUR 191 k; Rs. 16,300 k), income from the release of provisions amounting to
EUR 28 k; Rs. 2,390 k (PY EUR 175 k; Rs. 14,935 k), income from the disposal of
fixed assets with EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k (PY EUR 53 k; Rs. 4,523 k), income from currency conversion amounting to EUR 1 k; Rs. 85 k (PY EUR 18 k; Rs. 1,536 k) as well
as rental income with EUR 97 k; Rs. 8,278 (PY EUR 157 k; Rs. 13,398 k) and EUR
173 k; Rs. 14,764 k in total (PY EUR 199 k; Rs. 16,983 k) for further miscellaneous
items.
(15) Depreciation/amortization
Scheduled amortization has been conducted on intangible assets amounting to
EUR 45 k; Rs. 3,840 k (PY EUR 58 k; Rs. 4,950 k) and scheduled depreciation on
tangible fixed assets amounts to EUR 3,396 k; Rs. 289,815 k (PY EUR 4,552 k; Rs.
388,468 k). Depreciations are related to self-produced tools/forging dies with EUR 847
k; Rs. 72,283 k (PY EUR 1,124 k; Rs. 95,922 k). There were unscheduled depreciations amounting to EUR 460 k; Rs. 39,256 k on assets in construction during the financial year.
(16) Financial result
The financial result includes interest expenses due to affiliated companies amounting
to EUR 555 k; Rs. 47,364 k (PY EUR 1,126 k; Rs. 96,093 k), bank interest amounting
to EUR 108 k; Rs. 9,217 k (PY EUR 183 k; Rs. 15,617 k), interest regarding to factoring (EUR 93 k; Rs. 7,937 k; PY EUR 0 k; Rs. 0 k) and interest from the discounting of
provisions amounting to EUR 356 k; Rs. 30,381 k (PY EUR 497 k; Rs. 42,414 k). In
this financial year additional financing charges amounting to EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k
(PY EUR 15 k; Rs. 1,280 k) were included. The interest income includes interest
against affiliated companies of EUR 279 k; Rs. 23,810 k.
(17) Extraordinary income
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In May 2013 the company agreed a social plan with the workers council to terminate a
certain number of employment contracts with employees. Based on this agreement
the company recorded a provision for expected compensation payments on the basis
of the proposed social compensation plan as well as payments to the personnel transfer company for the execution of qualification measures for the employees who agreed
to being replaced to the transfer company. As per December 2013 the provision
amounts to EUR 636 k; Rs. 54,276 k. The total expenses for these personnel restructuring measures amount to EUR 1,027 k; Rs. 87,644 k during the short business year
and are disclosed as extraordinary expenses.
(18) Taxes on income and profits
Taxes on income and profits of the financial year result from deferred taxes with expenses amounting to EUR 10 k; Rs. 853 k (PY EUR 1,305 k; Rs. 111,369). Taxes on
income and profits from income tax for previous years did not accrue during the reporting year (PY EUR 14 k; Rs. 1,195 k).

IV.

Other disclosures

(1)

Contingencies

Within the scope of the loan agreements of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, with ICICI Bank UK Plc from June 2010 including supplementary
agreements, the company has granted intangible assets (intellectual property),
equipment, trade receivables and inventory as loan securities. Furthermore, there are
bank account pledges as well as transfers of insurance claims to the mentioned
banks. The company’s real estate is encumbered with land charges in the same context. The liabilities of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, due to
banks amount to EUR 57.8 million; Rs. 4,933 million as per the balance sheet date
(PY EUR 77.4 million; Rs. 6,605 million ).
The risk of availment from these contingencies for liabilities of Mahindra Forgings
Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen, is regarded as improbable in upcoming years due to
going concern of all affiliated companies.
(2)

Off balance sheet items

Other financial liabilities of rental and lease obligations contain lease contracts to be
classified as off balance sheet items in accordance with section 285 No. 3 HGB.
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Lease transactions for assets used for administration (e.g. cars, IT hardware) and for
assets used in connection with operating activities (e.g. technical machinery and
equipment) have been concluded by SCHÖNEWEISS & Co. GmbH. These transactions were concluded within the scope of ordinary operating activities. The underlying
assets have not been capitalized. The lease contracts have a maturity of 36 to 60
months. During the short financial year 2013 total expenses from these transactions
amounted to EUR 573 k; Rs. 48,900 k (PY 698 k; Rs. 59,567 k). Regarding the factoring agreement concluded with ICICI Bank during the short business year, please see
section III. (3). There are no further material off balance sheet items.

(3)

Other financial liabilities
31 Decem- 31 March
ber 2013
2013
EUR k
EUR k

Rental and leasing costs (machinery, forklifts
and office equipment)

1,748

2,269

Investment purchase commitments at reporting date

1.578

995

31-Dec-13

31-Mar-13

Rs k

Rs k

Rental and leasing costs (machinery, forklifts
and office equipment)

149,174

193,636

Investment purchase commitments at reporting
date

134,667

84,913

(4)

Average number of employees
2013

Employees (white-collar)
Factory workers (blue-collar)
Thereof part-time staff
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2012 / 2013

76

82

288

316

364

398

8

15

(5)

Board of Management

During the reporting period, the Board of Management comprised:
-

Burkard Rausch (Finance, member of the board of Mahindra Forgings Europe
AG), Warendorf,

-

Thomas Körner (Sales, member of the board of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG),
Schwelm (until 5 December 2013)

-

Dr. Michael Muckelbauer (Technology), Dortmund

-

Edmundo Fernandez (CEO, member of the board of MFE AG, Plant director of
CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain), Vitoria / Spain (as of 5 December 2013)

Only one member of the board of management received a salary from the company,
therefore the easement of section 286 (4) HGB is applied.
(6)

Remuneration to prior members of the Board of Management

Remuneration of prior members of the Board of Management including those of their
bereaved amounts to EUR 363 k; Rs. 30,978 k in total (PY EUR 479 k; Rs. 40,878 k).
The provision for current pensions for these persons amounts to EUR 4,591 k; Rs.
391,796 k (PY EUR 4,700 k; Rs. 401,098 k).
(7)

Auditor fee

The auditor fee is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as per 31 December 2013 of Mahindra Forgings Europe Aktiengesellschaft, Aalen.
(8)

Consolidated financial statements

The present annual financial statements will be included in the consolidated financial
statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG, Aalen, as per 31 December 2013 for the
smallest group of companies. Furthermore, the company’s annual financial statements
will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil as well as in the consolidated financial statements of CIE Automotive
S.A., Bilbao/Spain, for the largest group of companies.
Due to section 325 (3) HGB the consolidated financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Europe AG are published in the electronic Federal Gazette. The consolidated fi-
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nancial statements of CIE Automotive S.A., Bilbao/Spain, and of Autometal S.A., Sao
Paulo/Brazil, are published at their respective locations.

Hagen, 24 January 2014

SCHÖNEWEISS & CO GmbH
Management
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 APRIL 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013
The directors present the audited financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Global Limited (the “Company”)
for the period ended 31 December 2013.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is to hold investments.
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL YEAR END
The Company changed its reporting date from 31 March to 31 December and these financial statements run
from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013.
The comparatives figures are for the period from 01 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and consequently, the
comparative figures for the financial statements are not comparable.
RESULTS
The results for the period are shown in the statement of comprehensive income and related notes.
DIRECTORS
The present membership of the board is as follows :
1. Couldiplall Basanta Lala.
2. Sanjay Vasant Joglekar
3. Mohammad Akshar Maherally
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period, which present fairly
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
AUDITORS
The auditors, Grant Thornton, have indicated their willingness to continue in office until the next Annual
Meeting.
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY UNDER SECTION 166 (d) OF THE MAURITIUS
COMPANIES ACT 2001
We certify, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that we have filed with the Registrar of Companies all such
returns as are required of Mahindra Forgings Global Limited under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001
during the period ended 31 December 2013.

______________________________________
For International Financial Services Limited
Secretary
Registered Office:
IFS Court
TwentyEight
Cybercity
Ebene
Republic of Mauritius

Date: 14th February, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mahindra Forgings Global Limited, the
“Company”, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the
requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 7 to 25 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd)
TO THE MEMBER OF MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:
 we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as
auditors;
 we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and
 in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from
our examination of those records.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the member of the Company as a body in accordance with Section 205
of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to it in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s member as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Grant Thornton
Chartered Accountants

K RAMCHURUN, FCCA
Licensed by FRC

Date: 14th February, 2014

Ebene, Republic of Mauritius
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 APRIL 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013

Notes

Period from
01 April to
31-Dec-13

Period from
01 April to
31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Professional fees
Audit fees
Licence fees
Foreign exchange loss
Bank charges

12

OPERATING LOSS
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Fair value gain
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax expense

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
INR

-

-

-

-

8,610
2,919
1,627
123
39
13,318

734,777
249,107
138,848
10,497
3,328
1,136,557

14,048
3,021
1,424
199
70
18,762

1,198,856
257,812
121,524
16983
5974
1,601,149

-13,318 -

9

Year ended
31-Mar
2013
EUR

1,136,557

-18,762 -

1,601,149

652,204

55,659,089

844,276

72,050,514

638,886

54,522,532

825,514

70,449,365

-

8

-

638,886

54,522,532

825,514

70,449,365

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

-

-

-

-

Items that may be classified subsequently
to profit or loss

-

-

-

-

638,886

54,522,532

825,514

70,449,365

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME:

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR,
NET OF TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Non-current assets
Current
Loan
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments
Current assets

Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals

Total equity and liabilities

31-Dec
2013
INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

9

34,941,089
34,941,089

2,981,872,535
2,981,872,535

34,288,885
34,288,885

2,926,213,446
2,926,213,446

10

495,879
2,885
3,102
501,866

42,318,314
246,206
264,725
42,829,245

506,308
4,253
1,843
512,404

43,208,325
362,951
157,282
43,728,558

35,442,955

3,024,701,780

34,801,289

2,969,942,004

13

33,849,836
1,584,595
35,434,431

2,888,745,004
135,229,337
3,023,974,341

33,849,836
945,709
34,795,545

2,888,745,004
80,706,806
2,969,451,810

11

8,524
8,524

727,439
727,439

5,744
5,744

490,194
490,194

35,442,955

3,024,701,780

34,801,289

2,969,942,004

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated capital
Retained earnings
Total equity

31-Dec
2013
EUR

Approved by the Board of Directors on 14th February, 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Stated
capital
EUR
Balance at 01 April 2012

Stated
capital
INR

Retained earnings Retained earnings
EUR

EUR

33,849,836

2,888,745,004

120,195

10,257,441

Profit for the year

-

-

825,514

70,449,365

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

825,514

70,449,365

Balance at 31 March 2013

33,849,836

2,888,745,004

945,709

80,706,806

Balance at 01 April 2013

33,849,836

2,888,745,004

945,709

80,706,806

Profit for the period

-

-

638,886

54,522,531

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

638,886

54,522,531

33,849,836

2,888,745,004

1,584,595

135,229,337

Balance at 31 December 2013
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note

Period from

Period from

01 April to

01 April to

Year ended

Year ended

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

Operating activities
Profit before tax

638,886

54,522,532

825,514

70,449,365

-652,204
-13,318

-55,659,089
-1,136,557

-844,276
-18,762

-72,050,514
-1,601,149

Loan repayment received
Increase in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in accruals
Net cash used in operating activities

10,429
-1,259
2,780
11,950

890,011
-107,444
237,245
1,019,812

15,825
-206
-340
15,279

1,350,506
-17580
-29016
1,303,910

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

-1,368

-116,745

-3,483

-297,239

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period / year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period / year

4,253
2,885

362,951
246,206

7,736
4,253

660,190
362,951

Cash and cash equivalents made up of:
Cash at bank

2,885

246,206

4,253

362,951

Adjustment for:
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Operating loss before working capital changes
Changes in working capital
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)
Mahindra Forgings Global Limited, the “Company”, was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius under
the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 on 05 December 2006 as a private company with liability limited by
shares and holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission. The
Company's registered office is IFS Court, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene, Republic of Mauritius.
The principal activity of the Company is to hold investments.
The Company changed its reporting date from 31 March to 31 December and these financial statements
run from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013.
The comparatives figures are for the period from 01 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and consequently, the
comparative figures for the financial statements are not comparable. The current figures are for the period
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).
India Rupee (INR) amounts are included solely for convenience, These translations should not be
construed as representations that the EUR amounts actually represent. or have been or could be converted
into INR. As the amounts shown in INR are for convenience only, the rate of 1EUR = 85.34 INR has been
used for the purpose of presentation of the INR amounts in the accompanying financial statements for the
two years ended 31st December, 2013 and 31st March 2013.

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

2.1

New and revised standards that are effective for the annual period beginning on 01 April 2013
In the current period, the following new and revised Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) are mandatory for the first time for the financial period beginning on 01 April
2013:
IAS 27
IAS 28
IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12
IFRS 13
IFRS 7
IFRS 10, 11
and 12
IFRS 1
IAS 1
IAS 19
IFRIC 20
Various

Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7)
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance – Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
Government Loans - Amendments to IFRS
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1)
Employee Benefits (Revised 2011)
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Annual improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

The directors have assessed the impact of these revised standards, interpretations and amendments and
concluded that only IAS 1, Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1)
and IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement have an impact on the disclosure of these financial statements.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

2.2

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Company
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations to existing Standards have been published by the IASB but not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Company.
Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements.
Information on new Standards, Amendments and Interpretations is provided below.
IFRS 9
IAS 39
IAS 36
IFRS 10, 12
and IAS 27
IAS 32
IAS 19
IFRIC 21
Various

Financial Instruments
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to IAS 39)
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36)
Investment Entities (Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)
Levies
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2013 Cycle

3.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Overall considerations
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement
bases summarised below.

3.2

Revenue
Interest income is recognised on the accrual basis using the effective interest method, unless collectability
is in doubt.

3.3

Expenses
All expenses are accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income on the accrual basis.

3.4

Taxation
Tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income comprises of deferred tax and
current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise of those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date.
Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements.
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting date.
Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.5

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs, except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are
measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are
described below.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial
liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed for impairment at least
at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of
financial assets.
All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets that are either classified as held
for trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition.
Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using
a valuation technique where no active market exists.
The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of an investment in zero
percent fully convertible debentures in a fellow subsidiary and repayable within 7 years (as disclosed in
Note 9 to these financial statements).
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Company’s loan and cash and cash equivalents fall into this category of
financial instruments.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.5

Financial instruments (Contd)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities consist of payables and accruals.
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

3.7

Equity
Stated capital represents the value of shares that have been issued.
Retained earnings include all current period and prior years’ results as disclosed in the statement of
comprehensive income.

3.8

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation based on
the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense in the statement of comprehensive income.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

3.9

Related parties
Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or company has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating policy decisions.

3.10

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in EUR which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
3.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.10

Foreign currency translation (Contd)
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary
items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value
which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

3.11

Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When an indication of
impairment loss exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down to its recoverable
amount.

3.12

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the
current period.

4.

SIGNIFICANT MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Significant management judgement
The following is a significant management judgement in applying the accounting policies of the
Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.
Determination of functional currency
The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions
and exchange differences arising therefrom are dependent on the functional currency selected. The
directors have considered those factors and have determined that the functional currency of the
Company is the EUR.
Estimation uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be
substantially different.
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MAHINDRA FORGINGS GLOBAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
4.

SIGNIFICANT MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Fair value of financial instruments
Management apply valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where
active market quotes are not available. This requires management to develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate.
Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in
an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK
Risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The main types of risks
are market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarised below:

Financial assets
Non-current

31 December
EUR

31 December
INR

31-Mar-13
EUR

31-Mar-13
INR

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Convertible debentures of fellow subsidiary
Current
Loan and receivables
Loan
Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Current
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Payables and accruals
Total financial liabilities

34,941,089
34,941,089

2,981,872,535
2,981,872,535

34,288,885
34,288,885

2,926,213,446
2,926,213,446

495,879
2,885
498,764

42,318,314
246,206
42,564,520

506,308
4,253
510,561

43,208,325
362,951
43,571,276

35,439,853

3,024,437,055

34,799,446

2,969,784,722

8,524
8,524

727,438
727,438

5,744
5,744

490,193
490,193
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK
Risk management objectives and policies
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate measures and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and in the Company’s activities.
The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets and derivatives for speculative
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below.

5.1

Market risk analysis
The Company is not exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments. Market risk is
comprised specifically of currency risk and interest rate risk, which result from both its operating and
investing activities.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The Company is not exposed to any currency risk as most of its financial assets and financial liabilities
are denominated in the Euro which is the functional currency of the Company.
The currency profile of its financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

Long term exposure
Euro (EUR)
Short term exposure
Euro (EUR)
United States Dollar (USD)

Financial
assets
31-Dec-13

Financial
assets
31-Dec-13

Financial
liabilities
31-Dec-13

Financial
liabilities
31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

EUR

INR

Financial
assets
31-Mar
2013
EUR

Financial
assets
31-Mar
2013
INR

Financial
liabilities
31-Mar
2013
EUR

Financial
liabilities
31-Mar
2013
INR

34,941,089 2,981,872,535

-

-

34,288,885 2,926,213,446

-

-

498,764
42,564,520
35,439,853 3,024,437,055

4,680
3,844
8,524

399,391
328,047
727,438

510,561
43,571,276
34,799,446 2,969,784,722

5,744
5,744

490,193
490,193

Interest rate sensitivity
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company does not have interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities and it is therefore
not exposed to interest rate risk on these financial instruments.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK (Contd)
Risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

5.2

Credit risk analysis
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised
at the reporting date, as summarised below:
31-Mar
31-Mar
31-Dec-13
31-Dec-13
2013
2013
EUR
INR
EUR
INR
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Convertible debentures of fellow subsidiary
34,288,885
2,926,213,446
34,941,089 2,981,872,535
34,288,885
2,926,213,446
34,941,089 2,981,872,535
Current assets
Loan
Cash and cash equivalents

495,879
2,885
498,764

42,318,314
246,206
42,564,520

506,308
4,253
510,561

43,208,325
362,951
43,571,276

35,439,853 3,024,437,055

34,799,446

2,969,784,722

(i)

The Company holds an investment in zero percent fully convertible debentures in a related company,
repayable within 7 years, subject to some trigger events. The directors consider that this investment is
not exposed to any credit risk.

(ii)

The Company has given a loan to a related company, which is unsecured, interest free and receivable
on demand. The directors consider that no credit risk is associated with this loan.

(iii)

The credit risk for the bank balance is considered negligible, since the counterparty is a reputable bank
with high quality external credit ratings.

(iv)

The carrying amounts disclosed above are the Company’s maximum possible credit risk exposure in
relation to these instruments.

(v)

None of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

5.3

Liquidity risk analysis
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might be unable to meet its obligations.
The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring all its cash inflows and outflows.
The Company maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements and the financial support
of its related companies is sought where necessary.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK (Contd)
Risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

5.3

Liquidity risk analysis (Contd)
At 31 December 2013, the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which are
summarised below:

Within 1 Within 1
Year
Year
EUR
INR

Payables and accruals

8,524 727,438

This compares to the maturity of the Company’s financial liabilities in the previous reporting year
ended 31 March 2013 as follows:
Within 1 Within 1
Year
Year
EUR
INR

Accruals
5.4

5,744

490,193

Concentration risk
The Company has invested in an unlisted company whose securities are considered to be illiquid.
Such illiquidity may adversely affect the ability of the Company to acquire or dispose of such
investment. This investment may be difficult to value and to sell or otherwise liquidate and the risk
of investing in such company is much greater than the risk of investing in publicly traded securities.
On account of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated values may differ significantly
from the values that would be used had a ready market for the investment existed.

6.

Fair value measurement

6.1

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant
inputs to the measurement, as follows:
-

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) and
Level 3: unobservable market data inputs for the asset or liability.
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6.

Fair value measurement (Contd)

6.1

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Contd)
The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are classified under level 3.
31-Dec-13

Level 1
EUR

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
31-Mar-13

Level 1
INR

Level 1
EUR

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Level 1
EUR

-

Level 2
EUR

Level 2
INR

-

-

Level 2
EUR

-

Level 3
INR

34,941,089 2,981,872,535

Level 2
EUR

-

Level 3
EUR

Level 3
EUR

-

Total
EUR

34,941,089 2,981,872,535

Level 3
EUR

34,288,885 2,926,213,446

Total
INR

Total
EUR

Total
EUR

34,288,885 2,926,213,446

There has been no transfer between level 1 and 2 during the period.
Measurement of fair value
The method and valuation technique used for the purpose of measuring fair value are detailed below:
Convertible debentures
The fair value of the financial asset is estimated using the discounted cash flow valuation technique.
Level 3 fair value measurements
The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of financial asset classified within Level 3 is as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
31-Dec-13
31-Dec-13
EUR
INR

Balance at 01 April
Fair value gain recognised
in statement of comprehensive
income
Balance at 31 December 2013

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

34,288,885

2,926,213,446 33,444,609

2,854,162,932

652,204
34,941,089

844,276
55,659,089
2,981,872,535 34,288,885

72,050,514
2,926,213,446

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change significantly amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, total assets or total
equity.
The Company’s other financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at their carrying amounts,
which approximate their fair values.
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7.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns to its member.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to its member, buy back shares or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. For the year ended 31 March 2013 and
period ended 31 December 2013, the Company was not geared.

8.

TAXATION

(i)

Income tax
Under current laws and regulations, the Company is liable to pay income tax on its net income at a rate
of 15%. The Company is, however, entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of actual foreign tax
suffered and 80% of Mauritius tax payable in respect of its foreign source income, thus reducing its
maximum effective tax rate to 3%. Capital gains from sales of units and securities are exempt from
income tax in the Republic of Mauritius.
The Company has received tax residence certificates from the Mauritian authorities that it is a tax
resident of the Republic of Mauritius, which is renewable on an annual basis subject to meeting certain
conditions and which is eligible to obtain benefits under the double tax treaties between the Republic of
Mauritius and the Republic of India and the Republic of Mauritius and the Federal Republic of
Germany.
The Company had a tax loss of EUR 13,318 for the period from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013.
At 31st December, 2013, the Company has accumulated tax losses which will be carried forward and
available for set off against taxable profits as follows:
The foregoing is based on current interpretation and practice and is subject to any future changes in tax
laws and in the double tax treaties between the Republic of India and the Republic of Mauritius and the
Federal Republic of Germany and the Republic of Mauritius.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at the rate of
3%. At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the tax losses carried
forward as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available in the foreseeable future.
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8.
(iii)

TAXATION (Contd)
Income tax reconciliation
The income tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the effective tax rate of the Company as follows:
Period from

Period from

Year ended

Year ended

31-Mar

31-Mar

2013
EUR

2013
INR

01 April to 31
01 April to 31
December 2013 December 2013

EUR

INR

Profit before tax

638,886

54,522,531

825,514

70,449,365

Tax calculated at the rate of 3%
Exempt income not subject to tax
Deferred tax asset not recognised
Tax charge

19,167
-19,566
399
-

1,635,712
-1,669,762
34050
0

24,765
-25,328
563
-

2,113,445
-2,161,491
48046
0

9.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(i)

Convertible debentures of fellow subsidiary
31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

Balance at start
Fair value gain
Balance at end

(ii)

28,986,821
652,204
29,639,025

2,473,735,304
55,659,089
2,529,394,393

31-Mar
2013
EUR
28,142,545
844,276
28,986,821

31-Mar
2013
INR
2,401,684,790
72,050,514
2,473,735,304

Deemed investment in fellow subsidiary
Balance at start and at end
Total

5,302,064

452,478,142

5,302,064

452,478,142

39,941,089

3,408,572,535

34,288,885

2,926,213,446

During prior years, the Company acquired zero percent fully convertible debentures, maturing within 7
years and also subject to some trigger events, in Mahindra Forgings International Ltd, a fellow
subsidiary.
In accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the debentures are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. For subsequent
measurement, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.
The Company acquired convertible debentures from its fellow subsidiary, Mahindra Forgings
International Ltd. The difference in transaction price and fair value of convertible debentures on initial
recognition has been recorded as “Deemed investment in fellow subsidiary”.
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10.

LOAN
31-Dec
2013
EUR

Current
Loan to a related party (Note 10 (ii))

(i)

31-Dec
2013
INR

495,879

31-Mar
2013
EUR

506,308

42,318,314

The movement in loan during the period/year is as follows:

Balance at start
Repayment during the period
Balance at end

31-Dec-13

31-Dec-13

EUR

INR

506,308
-10,429
495,879

31-Mar
2013
INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

43,208,325
-890,011
42,318,314

The loan to a related party is unsecured, interest free and receivable on demand.

11.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

31-Dec
2013
INR

31-Mar
2013
EUR

4,680 399,391
3,844 328,047
8,524 727,438

Payable to a related company (Note 11 (i))
Accruals

31-Mar
2013
INR

522,133
-15,825
506,308

(ii)

31-Dec
2013
EUR

43,208,325

5,744
5,744

44,558,830
-1,350,506
43,208,324

31-Mar
2013
INR
490,193
490,193

(i)

This amount is payable to Mahindra Gears International Ltd, a related company and is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

12.

PROFESSIONAL FEES

31-Dec
2013
EUR
5,164
1,470
1,050
926
8,610

Administration fees and disbursements
Directors’ fees
Fees for tax filings
Secretarial fees
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31-Dec
2013
INR
440,696
125,450
89,607
79025
734,778

31-Mar
2013
EUR

31-Mar
2013
INR

9,403 802,452
2,202 187,919
1,298 110,771
1,145
97,714
14,048 1,198,856
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13.

STATED CAPITAL

31-Mar-13
and
31-Dec-13
EUR

Issued and paid:
33,849,836 ordinary shares of EUR1 each

31-Mar-13
and
31-Dec-13
INR

33,849,836

2,888,745,004

In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, the main rights and obligations attached to the
ordinary shares are as follows:



14.

confer to its holder the rights to attend and exercise one vote at meetings of members generally and
class meetings of the ordinary shares;
have a right to receive any dividend or distribution; and
be entitled, on a winding up, to share in the assets of the Company available for distribution.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the period from 01 April 2013 to 31 December 2013, the Company had transactions with related
parties. The nature, volume of transactions and balances with the related parties are as follows:
Debit/(credit) Debit/(credit)

balances at balances at
Nature of relationship

Nature of
transactions

Fellow subsidiary
Loan Receivable

Volume of Volume of
transactions transactions

31-Dec

31-Dec

INR

2013
EUR

2013
INR

10,429

890,011

495,879 42,318,314

4,680

399,391

-4,680

5,165

440,781

3,445

293,996

EUR

Debit/(credit)b Debit/(credit)b
alances at
alances at

31-Mar-13

31-Mar-13

EUR

INR

506,308

43,208,325

-399,391

-

-

-925

-78940

-2,723

-232,381

2,182

186,212

1,263

107,784

Fellow subsidiary
Payable

Administration
Administrator, Secretary and
fees and
Mauritius Tax Agent

Administrator, Secretary and
Professional fees
Mauritius Tax Agent

(i)

The loan to the related company is unsecured, interest free and receivable on demand.

(ii)

The payable to the related company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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15.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has no litigation claims outstanding, pending or threatened against it, which could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results as at 31 December 2013.

16.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no events after the reporting date which requires disclosure or adjustment to the
31 December 2013 financial statements.

17.

HOLDING COMPANIES
The directors consider Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited (formerly known as Mahindra Forgings
Limited), a quoted company incorporated in India, as the Company’s immediate holding company and
CIE Automotive S.A., a quoted company incorporated in Spain, as the Company’s ultimate holding
company.

237

